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Directors’ Report

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited Registration No. 03471082

'he directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of GMAC-RI'C Holdings Limited (the Company)
for the year ended 31 December 2012

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company s principal activity 1s (o act as a holding company Histonically the Company s subsidiaries have operated within
the mortgage related finance industry 1n the Umted Kingdom

Over the last few years the Company disposed of the majority of its subsidiaries On 30 September 2010, the indirect sharcholder
Ally Ninancial [nc (Ally) {formerly GMAC Inc ) completed the sale of the shares in GMAC-RFC Limited as part of a larger
divestment of 11s mortgage activiuies, to an investment fund managed by Fortress Investment Group LLC As a result at year-end
2012, the Company only held shares in GMAC-RIC Property Finance Limuted ( GPF ) The main activity of GPI™ 1n 2012 was
management of commercial loans to residential property developers in the UK and management of litigation relating thereto

These financial statements are being prepared on a break up basis as the parent expects to hiquidate the entity within the next
twelve months [n addition the directors consider that for accounting purposes, the Company 1s consolidated by ResCap since the
latter has effective control over its assets  On May 14, 2012 ResCap filed voluntary peutions for relief under chapter 11 of the
United States Bankruptcy Code 1n the United States Bankrupicy Court for the Southern District of New York The Company
does not [eel that the Bankruptey filing will have an impact to these financials or the support ResCap has provided

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

[n hght of the Company s principal actuivity of portfolio management, the directors focus 15 the oversight of the servicing and
asset management and hitigation activities

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The proftt for the year carmied forward to reserves at 31 December 2012 was £254 623 (2011 loss £{169,082)) The directors do
not recommend the payment of a dividend for year ended 2012 (2011 £ml} At 31 December 2012 the Company has a posttive
equity position of £9,198 000 (2011 £8 943,000)

DIRECTORS

The directors who served durning the year and up to the date of signing were as follows

John Paul Nowacki {appoiwnted 19 February 2013

Claudia Wallace (appointed 19 February 2013)

Vinoy Nurstah (appointed 19 February 2013)

James Whitlinger (resigned 19 February 2013)

Mark Tweed (resigned 14 September 2012)

None of the directors has any beneficial interest in the ordinary share capital of the Company None of the directors had any
interest erther during or at the end of the year 1n any matenal contract or arrangement with the Company

THIRD PARTY INDEMNITIES

Qualifying third party indemmuty provisions for the benefit of the directors were in force during the year under review and
remains 1n force as at the date of approval of the director s report and financial statements

SECRETARY

SPM Corporate Services Limited acied as the Company secrctars during the year and subsequently

PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINTIES AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Ihe Company s policies towards Liquidity, credit, currency and interest rate nisk are set out in Note 2 1o the financial statements




Directors’ Report

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited Registration No. 03471082

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors” Report and the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
clected to prepare the Company financial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to
*  Sclect suntable accounung policies and then apply them conststently,
»  Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

+  State whether apphecable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained n the financial statements,

*  As noted 1n the Directors report, the Board has concluded that for this financial year the presentation of the accounts
should be on a break up, rather than a going concemn basis

I'he directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of traud and other rregularitics

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that

(a) so far as they are aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

{b) they have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order 1o make themsclves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006 auditors duly appointed by the members of the Company shall, subject to
any resolution to the contrary, be deemed 1o be reappointed for the next financial year PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP having
expressed thetr witlingness, will therefore contiue n office

On behalf of the board

John Paul Nowacki
Dhrector
11 October 2013

(v}




Independent Auditors’ Report
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 10 THE MEMBERS OF GMAC-RFC HOLDINGS LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of GMAC-RFC Holdings Limtted for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
comprise the Profit and Loss Account the Balance Sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framewerk that has been
apphied in their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accountng Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilitics sct out on page 5, the directors are responsibie for the
preparation of the financial statements and for beng sausficd that they give a tree and fair view Our responsibility 1s (o audit and
express an opimion on the financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Audiung Practices Board s Lihical Standards for Auditors

This repert, including the opinions has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose ' We do not 1n giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report s showa or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This ncludes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company s circumstances and have been consstently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the annual report to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements [f we become aware of any apparen! material
nusslatements or inconsistencies, we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements
s give atrue and fair view of the state of the company s affaurs as at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts profit for the year then
ended

»  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and

*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Preparation

In forming our opinten on the financial stalcmients which 1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the disclosurcs
made 1n note | to the financial statements concerning the gomg concem basis of accounting Following the year end the directors
have decided that the company will be hquidated within the next twelve months Accordingly, the going concern basis of
accounting 1s no longer appropriate  Adjustments have been made in these financial stalements to reduce assets to their realisable
values and to provide for labilities arising from the decision

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 \
ln our opimion the information given in the Dhrectors’ Report for the financial vear for which the financial statements are |
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements 1

|




Independent Auditors’ Report
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If,
our opinion

¢ adequate accounting tecords have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from
branches not visited by us, or

+ the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
+  certain disclosures of directors” remuneration specified by law are not made, or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

W'%

James Hewer (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

18 October 2013




Profit and Loss Account

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

Year ended 31 December (£ in 000’s) Note 2012 2011
Release of provision held against investment n subsidiary 6 483 —
Loss taken on subsichary — €1))
Fees recervable and other income 25 —

Operating mcome / (loss) 508 (€1))]
Administrative expenses 3 (139) (139)
Currency translation (loss) (114) -

Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 255 {170)
Taxation on profit / (loss) on ordinary activities 5 — 1

Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 255 (169)

The Company had no acqmsitions or discontinued operations and accordingly the above profit and loss account (s 1 respect of

continuing operations

The Company has no recogmsed gamns and losses other than those included in the results above, and therefore no separate

statement of total recognised gains and losses has been presented

There 15 no difference between loss on ordinary activities before taxation and the loss for the years stated above, and thewr

historical cost equivalents

The Notes on pages 10 to 14 form part of these financial statements




Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

COMPANY NO 03471082

A131 December (£ 1n 000's) Note 2012 2011
Current assets
Investments tn subsidiancs 6 6,198 5,715
Debtors amounts falhing due within one year 7 — 921
Cash at bank and n hand 8 4,193 3,511
Total Current Assets 10,391 10,147
Creditors_amounts falling due within one year 9 (1,193} (1,204}
Net assets 9,198 8943

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital — —
Profit and loss account 11 9,198 8 943
Total shareholder’s funds 11 9,198 8,043

The financial statements on pages§t0 14 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 October 2013 and were signed on its
behalf by

John Paul Nowacks
Director




Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

I ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s principal activity 1s (o act as a holding company The Company 15 a wholly owned subsidhary of Residential
Capital LLC (ResCap) a company incorporated in the Unmited States of Amertca The directors regard ResCap as the ultimate
parent company

As described 1n the Directors” Report on page 4 the directors intend to hgquidate the Company within the next twelve months
Accordingly the going concern basis of accounting 15 no longer appropriate  The financial statements have been prepared on a
break-up basis of accounting and 1n accordance with the Compamies Act 2006 and UK applicable Accounung Standards This
requires the Company assets to be stated at their net recoverable amounts and to provide for certain costs associated with
Liquidation of the Company

BASIS OF PREPARA I'ON

The profit and loss account and balance sheet have adapted the format laid down 1n Schedule 1 to [he Large and Medium-sized
Compantes and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S§ 2008/410) to the Compames Act 2006 to present its results
and the state of the Company’s affairs respectively In the opinion of the directors this is required due to the special nature of the
Company s business

The Company has decided 1o take advantage of the intermediate parent company excmption given in FRS 2 Accounting for
Subsidary Undertakings’ and sccuon 401 of the Companies Act 2006 (the  Act) as it 15 ncluded 1 the consohdated financial
statements of ResCap Accordingly, these financial statements are for the Company only

CASH FLOW STATEMENT AND RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

The Company 15 included 1n the conseohdated financial statements of ResCap. which arc publicly available The Company has
taken advantage of the excmpuion from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms of T'inancial Reperting Standard |
(Revised 1996) and 1s exempt under the terms of Iinancial Reporting Standard 8 from disclosing related party transactions (but
not balances) with entities that are part of ResCap members group

REVENUE AND COST RECOGNITION
[nterest income and interest expense are recognised in the profit and loss account on an aceruals basis

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The funchional currency of the Company 1s Bntish Pounds Monetary assets and liabilines denominated i foreign currencies
have been translated into Briish Pounds at the market rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Foreign exchange
differences arc taken to the profit and loss account in the year in which they anse  Income transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into Briush Pounds using average market rates of exchange for the penod to which the income relates
Expense transactions denemenated in foreign currencies are translated into British Pounds using market rates of exchange at the
date of the transaction

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment Dividends received and receivable are
credited to the Company s profit and loss account to the extent that they represent a realised profit for the Company

PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES

A provisien 15 recognised when st 1s more hikely than not that a present obligation exists at the balance sheet date, it 15 probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligatien The Company considers that 1t has a present obhgation to cover the losses incurred by its subsidiartes, and
therefore a provision has been recognised where a subsidiary has overall net habilities

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax 1s provided in full on timing differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax ora
night to pay less tax at a futurc date, at rates expected 1o apply when they crystailise, based on current tax rates law and the
currently enacted regulaton Timing differences anise from the inclusion of income and expenditure in taxation computations
perods different from those in which they are included in the financial statements

Deferred tax assets arc recogmsed to the extent that it 15 regarded as more likelv than not they will be recovered Deferred tax
assets and liabihities are not discounted




Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

2. FINANCIAL RISKS AND INSTRUMENTS

The Company s financial instruments comprise of cash and liquid resources and various 1tems such as trade debtors and trade
creditors that anse directly from 1ts operations

The main financial nsks faced by the Company relate to liquidity  eredit, interest rate risk and currency risk

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Company’s policy 15 to manage liquicity risk by using available cash balances ‘lhe directors do not believe there 1s a
significant hiquidity nisk i the Company

CREDIT RISK

I'he Company 15 exposed to credit risk on cash balances with banks 1he cash in bank 1s held with a financial instiution that has
an A grade credit rating The directors periodically assess the bank for credit worthiness

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk 1s the nisk that changes 1n interest rates will result 1n higher financing costs and / or reduced income from the
Company s mterest bearing financial assets and liabiliies At the end of 2012, the Company does not have any nterest bearing
habilities The cash balances of the Company are non-interest bearing

CURRENCY RISK

Che Company has cash balances denomunated in US dollars  The Company docs not mutigate this risk

CAPITAL DISCLOSURE

[he directors consider capital to comprise of 1ssued share capital and reserves During 2012, capital moved from £8,943 000 to
£9,198,000 1he Capital increase of £255,000 15 due 1o a profit for the year

3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

31 December (£ 1n 000's) 2012 2011
Legal and professional fecs 106 61
Auditors’ remuncration statutory audit fees 12 55
Other gencral expensc 21 23
I otal admimistrative expense 139 139

In pnor vears, the Company paid audnt fees for 1is subsichary investiment 1 he company 1s no longer covering the audit fees for
its subsidiary mnvestment resulting in a reduction in audnt fees for the current year

4, DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Company has no employees and services required are contracted from third parties The directors recerved no remuneration
from the Company n respect of qualifying services rendered during the year




Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

5. TAXATION ON PROFIT/LOSS) ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Year ended 31 December (£ 1n 000’s) 2012 2011
(2) Analysis of charge in period

UK current year corporation tax at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) — —

Adjustment n respect of prior year — ()

Tax chargef{credit) —_ n

{b) Factors affecting current tax charge / (credit) for the year

The tax assessed for the year 1s lower (2011 higher) than the standard rate of

corporation tax in the UK of 24 5% (2011 26 5%)

Profit / (loss) before tax 255 (170)

Tax charge/(credit) on profit/(loss) at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 62 (45)
Effects of

Expenses not deductible 28 45

Release of provision non taxable (118) -

Adjustment n respect of prior year for losses carried back —_— 4]

Unutilised tax losses carned forward 28 —
Current tax chargef{credit) for the year — (1)

Durning the year, with effect from | Apnl 2012, the rate of corporate tax was reduced from 26% to 24% hence the current tax rate
applied n these financial statements 1s the biended rate for 2012 of 24 5% The 2012 Finance Act further reduces the corporation
tax rate to 23% effective from 1 Aprit 2013 and the 2013 Finance Act, enacted on 17 July 2013, has mtroduced further reductions
to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 and to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015

At 31 December 2012 and 201 1, deferred tax assets of £4 1 million and £4 2 million respectively have not been recogmsed due to
uncertainty surrounding the availability of suitable profits in the future These unrecogmised assets have been calculated at a tax
rate of 23%, which had been enacted at 31 December 2012 (2011 25%)

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(£ n 000’s) 2012 2011
Cost
At 1 January 51,719 51,750
Gain /(loss) from subsidiary — GnD
Sold / hquidated during the year (see Note below) (1,719) —
At 31 December 50,000 51,719
Provision
At 1 January 46,004 46,004
Release of provision on Liguidation of subsidiary during the year 1,719 —_
Release of provision held against investment 1n subsidiary {(483) —
At 31 December 43,802 46,004
Net book value
At 31 December 6,198 5715

During 2012, the Company hquidated all remaining investments with the exception of GMAC-RFC Property Finance Limited
The net book value change from investment in subsidiary 1in 2012 was £483,219 (2011 (£30,949)) representing gains /(losses)
incurred from the Company’s investment in GMAC-RFC Property Finance Limited

2012 2011
£°000 £7°000

Cost*
At 31 December 50,000 51,717

The Company’s subsidiary undertaking includes all wholly owned subsidianies The subsidiary 15 set out below

Company Principal activity Incorporated 2012 2012 Proportion of
Company voting rights
Ownership

GMAC-RFC Property Finance Mortgage related United Kingdom 100% 100%

Limited intermed:ation

The directors’ consider the value of the investment to be supported by the underlying assets

12



Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

7. DEBTORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31 December (£ 1n 000’s) 2012 2011
Group relief receivable — 921
Total — 921

At 31 December 2012, the Company has settled all amounts owed by Group Relief from Motors Insurance Company Linuted

8. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

31 December (£ 1n 000’s) 2012 2011
Cash at bank 4,193 3,511
Total 4,193 3,511

9. CREDITORS. AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31 December (£ 1n 000°s) 2012 2011
Amounts due to fellow subsilianes (Note 12) 1,182 1,182
Accruals 11 22
Total 1,193 1,204

Amount due to GMAC-RFC Property Finance Limuted are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment date
10. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

31 December (£7000) 2012 2011

Authonsed
100 ordinary shares of £1 each (2011 100 shares) — —_

Allotted, called up and fully paid
1 ordinary shares of £1 each (2011 1 shares) — —

11. PROFIT AND L.OSS ACCOUNT

(£ 1n 000’s) 2012 2011

At 1 January 8,943 9,112
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 255 (169)

At 31 December 9,198 8,943

12 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDER’S FUNDS

At December 31 (£ 1n 000’s) 2012 2011
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 255 (169)
Shareholder’s funds at { January 8,943 9,112
Shareholder’s funds a1 31 December 9,198 8,943

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The directors regard Residential Caprtal, LLC as the viumate controlling party The Company has applied the exemption within
Financial Reporting Standard 8, which permuts the non-disclosure of transacuons with related parties, which are included 1n the

consolidated financial statements of Residentral Capital, LLC

At 31 December 2012, the Company was owed £ml (2011 £921,430) in Group Relief from Motors Insurance Company Limited

a sister company of Residenual Capual, LLC

13




Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2012
GMAC-RFC Holdings Limited

At 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Company owes £1 181,797 1o GMAC-RFC Property Finance Limuited a subsidiary of the
Company

Residential Capital, LLC 1s the parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group of undertakings for which {financial
statements are drawn up and of which the Company i1s a member

14 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKINGS
The immedhate parent undertaking 15 Residential Capital LLC which 1 incorporated in Delaware U S A

Copies of the Group financial statements may be obtained from the Company Secrctary at the registered offices of Residential
Capual, LLC, 8400 Normandale Lake Blvd, Minncapohs MN 55437 United States




RESIDENTIAL CAPITAL, LL.C

(Debtors-in-Possession)

Consolidated Financial Statements as of
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
200 Renaissance Center

i Suite 3800
e o Itte Detroit, M1 48243
© USA
Tel +1 313 366 3000
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www deloitte com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Member of
Residential Capital LLC

We have audited the accompanying Consohdated MNnancial Statements of Residential Caputal. LLC and
1ts subsidiaries (the "Company™) {Debtor-in-Possession) (a wholly owned subsidiary of Alily Financial

[nc ) which are comprised of the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the
related Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, Changes 1n Equity and Cash Flows for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consohidated Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements 1n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant te the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement
whether due to fraud or error

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility 1s to express an opimon on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America Those standards requure that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures n
the consclidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consol:dated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements tn
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control Accordingly, we express no
such opimion An audit also includes evaluating the appropniateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion

Opimion

In our opinion, the consohdated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ali material
respects the financial position of Residential Capital LLC and us subsidiaries as of December 31. 2012
and 2011 and the resulis of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31. 2012 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America




Emphasis of Matter Regarding Affihate Transactions

As discussed in Note 24 to the consolhidated financial statements the Company has entered into a number
of significant agreements and transactions with iis affiliates Our opimon 1s not modified wath respect 10
this matter

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Bankruptcy Proceedings

As discussed in Note | to the consohdated financial statements. the Company has filed for reorganization
under Chapter 11 of the U S Bankruptcy Code The accompanying financial statements do not purport to
reflect or provide for the consequences of the bankrupicy proceedings In particular, such financial
statements do not purport to show (1) as to assets their realizable value on a hquidation basis or their
availabihity to satisfy habiluties, (2) as to prepetution habihties. the amounts that may be allowed for
claims or contingencies or the status and prionty thereof, (3) as to member’s interest accounts, the effect
of any changes that may be made 1n the capitalization of the Company, or (4) as to operations. the effect
of any changes that may be made 1n 1ts business Our opinion 1s not modified with respect to this matter

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
goimng concern As discussed 1n Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the magmitude of the
Company's potential habiliies and 1ts near term debt matunities combined with its liquidity and capital
needs raise substantial doubt about 1ts ability to continue as a going concern Management's plans
concerning these matters are also discussed 1n Note 1 to the financial statements The financial statements
do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty QOur opinion s not
modified with respect to this matter

Report on Supplemental Consohidating Schedules

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opimion on the consohdated financial statements
as a whole The Consolidating Balance Sheet and the related Consolidating Statements of Comprehensive
Income and of Cash Flows are presented for the purpose of additional analysis of the consolidated
financial statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of
the individual companies, and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements These
supplemental scheduies are the responsibility of the Company's management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements Such schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures apphed in our audit of the
conselidated financial statements and certain additional procedures including comparing and reconciling
such schedules directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consohidated financial statements themselves and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenica [n
our opimon, such schedules are fairly stated in all materal respects 1n relation to the consoldated
financial statements as a whole
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
Residential Capital LLC
{Debtors-1n-Possession)

December 31, ($ in thousands) 2012 2011
Assety
Cash and cash equivalents §1,630,213 $618,699
Morigage loans held-for-sale ($13,156 and $56 976 fair value elected) 344,120 4,249,625
Finance recenvables and loans, net
Consumer ($469,923 and $835 192 fair value elecied) 594,794 1,022,730
Commercial 134 38,017
Allow ance for loan losses (7,453) (28 616)
Total finance recenvables and loans, nel 587,475 1032131
Mortgage servicing rights — 1,233,107
Accounts recevable, net 1,020,100 3,051,748
Other assets 271,518 6,628,152
Assels of held—lor—sale operations 6,858,670 —
T'otal assets $10,712,096  $16,813,462

Liabibties

Liabilttics not subyject to compromise

Borrowings
Debtor-in-possession credit facilities $1,449,354 —
Borrowings from Affihates 1,133,128 1,189 364
Collateralized borrowings i securitization trusts ($447,723 and $829,940 tar value clected) 447,723 830,318
Other borrowings 282,232 4,705,404
Total borrowings 3,312,437 6,725,086
Other habthities 727,062 9996.026
Liabiliugs ot held—{or—sale operations 2,780,426 —
Total habilities not subject to compromuse 6,819,925 16,721 112
Liabihties subject 10 compromise 4,215,215 —
Total Liabtlities 11,035,140 16721112
Fquity
Member’'s interest 11,755,962 11,433 776
Accumulated deficit (12,038,036) (11,279,560)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (40,970) (61,866)
Total equity (323,044) 92 350
Total habihties and equity $10,712,096  $16,813 462




Consolidated Balance Sheet
Residential Capital, LLC
(Debtors-1n-Possession)

The table below includes the assets of consoldated vaniable interest entities (VIEs) that can be used only to scttle obligations
of the consolidated v anable interest entities and the halnlities of these entties lor which creditors (or bene ficaal anterest holders)
did not have recourse to our general credit at December 31 2012 and December 31, 2011

2012
Continumng  Held—for—sale 2011

December 31, (3 i1 thousands) operations operations
Assels
Mortgage loans held—lor-sale 55,832 $331,624 58 658
Finance recervables and loans, net

Consumer ($469.,923, $60,977 and $835,192 [ar value elected) 594,794 60,977 998,509

Allowance for loan losscs (7,453) — {10,126}

[ otal finance receivables and loans, net 587,341 60,977 988 383
Accounts receivable, net 17,960 887,088 1,027 411
Other assets 28,843 — 29 494
Total assets $669,976 $1,279,689 $2,053,946
{.aabilities
Borrowmgs

Deblor-n-possession credu faciliy (a) $1,260,000 $— §—

Collatcralized borrowings in sccuritization trusts (3447723, $51 184 and

$829,940 fair value elected) 447,723 51,184 830,318

Other borrowings 104,534 — 855,631

I otal borrowings 1,812,257 51,184 1,685 949
Other Liabthues 56,778 39 29,099
Total liabihities 51,869,035 851,145 $1,715 048

a)  The Debtor-in-possession credit Facility 15 guaranteed by Residential Capital LLC and certain of its subsidiaries

The Notes to the Consolidated Financtal Statements are an integral part of thesc statements




Consolidated Statement of Income
Reswdennial Caprlal LILC
(Deblors-in-Possession)

Year ended December 31, (S m thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Revenue
Interest income $295,336 $356 034 $817,808
[nterest expense 274,406 399,606 593,522

Net financing revenue 20,930 (43,572) 224,286
Other revenue
Servicing tees 745,293 839,172 971 443
Servicimg asset valuation and hedge activities, net (327.074) (355,715) 222 571
Total servicing income net 418,219 483 457 1194016
Gam on mortgage loans, nct 249,520 223,013 651,037
Gain on foreclosed real estate 8,949 (3.919) 34,353
Other revenue, net 184,219 29,792 4931%)

Total other revenue 860,907 730,343 1,830,091
Total net revenue 881,837 686,771 2,054,377
Provision for loan losses (1,293) (3,972) {14,252)
Nomnterest expense
Compensation and benefits 473,011 315,711 258,771
Professional fees 181,445 116,375 71,339
Data processig and telecommumeations 67,766 78,875 112,963
Occupancy 20,420 24,288 19,530
Executory contract cure costs 231,452 — —
Mortgage fines and penaltics 86,722 204,000 —
Representation and warranty expense, net (72,749) 324 070 670,452
Other noninterest expense, net 389,281 370,352 390,010

Total nomnterest expense 1,377,348 1,433,671 1523065
Income (loss) from continuing operations before reorgamization items and

income taxes (494,218) (742,928} 545,564

Reorganization items 285,068 — —
Income (loss} from continmng operations before income taxes (779,286) {742,928) 545,564
[ncome tax {bencfit) expense (4,122) 16 051 6,919
Net income (loss) from continuing operations (775,164) (758,979) 538,645
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, ncl of tax 16,688 (86,084) 36 430
Netincome (loss) (758,476) (845,063) 575,075
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 20,896 {18 156) 358
Comprehensive income (loss) ($737,580) (3863 219) $575,433

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Residential Capual, LLC

Year ended December 31, (8 in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Net income {loss) (§758,476)  ($845,063) §575,075

Other comprehensine income (loss), net of tax

Unrealized gains on investment sccurities

Net unrcalized (losses) gains arsing during the period — (666) | 606

Net realized losses reclassified to net mcome (loss) — (676) —

Net change —_ (1 342) 1,606
Translation adjustments

Translatwon (7.390) 53 21729

Net change (7,390) 53 21,729

Defined bencfit pension plans

Net loss and prior service costs and transition obligations anising during the

period (28,179) {16 867) (22.977)

Less  Net gan, prior service Losts, and transition obligations reclassified to net

NCOML 56,465 — —
Net change 18,286 (16 867) 2297
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of Lax 20,896 (18,156) 358
Comprehensn e income (loss) (8737.580) (3863 219) $575,433

I'he Notes to the Consolhidated Financial Statements are an integral pan of these statements




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Residential Capntal LLC
(Debtors-in-Possession)

=y

Accumulated
other
Member’s Accomulated  comprehensine Fotal
(8 i thousands) interest delicat income (loss) equity
Balance at January 1, 2010 $11,324 371 (311 005,303) (844 068) $275,000
Cumulauve cffect of change 1in accounting
principles as of Januany 1, 2010, net of tax

Adoption ot ASU 2009-17 — (4,269) — (4,269)
Net income — 575075 — 575,075
Other comprehensive income, net ol tax — — 358 358
Balance at December 31, 2010 $11,324,371 (310,434 497) (343 710) $846,164
Balance at January 1 2011 $11 324,371 ($10,434,497) ($43,710) $846,164
Net loss — (845,063} — (845,063)
Capital contribution 109 405 _ — 109,405
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — (18,156) {18,136)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $11,433,776 ($11,279,560) (561 866) $92,350
Balance at lanuary 1, 2012 $11,433,776 (811,279,560} (561,866) $£92.350
Net loss — (758,476} — {758,476)
Capital contributton 322,186 — — 322,186
Other comprehensive ingome, net of lax — — 20,896 20,896
Balance at December 31, 2012 $11,755,962 {812,038,036) (540,970) (8323,044)

The Notes 1o the Consolidated I'iancial Statemments are an integral part of these statements




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Residential Capital LLC
(Debtors-in-Possession)

Year ended December 31, ($ 11 thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Operating activities

Net income (loss}) (5758.476) (8845 063)  $575075

Reconcihation ot net income (loss) Lo net cash provided by operating }
acliviues ‘

Deprectation and amortization 25,071 27,245 32975

Accretion ol deferred concession (38,308) (101,113) {110 009)

Prowvision for loan losses (1,400) 24,021 14,618

Gain on mortgage loans net (249,520) (222,159 (482 187)

Reorganization tems 81,579 — —

Net (gain) loss on other assels (9.674) 16 134 (36,385)
Ongmations and purchases of mortgage loans held—tor—sale {15,858,476) (60,675,667) (70,295,821)
Proceeds from sales and repayments of mortgage loans held—for—sale 15,224,079 59.613,292 70342416 .
Change in fair value of mortgage scrvicing nights 140,657 812,435 725 351
Impairment of held-for-sale operations — — (973}
Equity 0 earmings of investees n excess of cash received — — (54,649)
Nel change 1in

Accounts rcceivable 1,072,428 752,588 393,032

Other assels 3.037,706 (1,438,938) (3,737 896)

Other hiabilitics (2,932,136) 2,465 601 3,068,161
Net cash provided by operating activities 33,530 428,376 433,708
Investing activitics |
Net decrease in consumer finance receivables and loans 2,073 546,135 2,493,434 !
Net decrease in commercial finance receivables and loans 381,010 46,432 214,989
Net decrease in investments in real estate and other — 4,543 107 187
Proceeds from sales of forcclosed and owned real estate 57,085 108,349 404,019
Proceeds from sale of business unit, net (80,890) (n) — (122,782) (b)
Net decrease in restricted cash 236,962 160,775 73,511
Other, net 62,482 12,335 833,151
Net cash provided by mvesting activitics 658,716 878,569 4003509
Financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in borrowings lrom Affiliates 140,264 (228,007) (362,017
Proceeds from 1ssuance of collaterahized borrowings in sccuritization — — 232,754
Réﬁﬂ‘ﬁhcnm of collateralized borrowings 1n secuntization trusts (305,927) (466 636) {2,178,383)
Proceeds from debtor-in-possession credit facilities 1,449,354 — —
Proceeds from other borrowings 1,138,843 787 323 471,395
Repayments of other borrowings (2,108,788) (1,439,342} (2,914,19])
Net cash provided by (used 1n) financing activitics 313,746 {1,346,660) (4,750,442)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalenis 5,522 (13,790) 64,695
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equinalents 1,011,514 (53 505) (248,530)
Change n cash and cash equivalents of operations held—tor—sale —_ — 155473
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1, 618,699 672 204 765,261
Cash and cash cquivalents at December 31, §$1,630,213 $618 699 $672,204

{a) Proceeds include cash and cash equivalents of $80 9 millien related to the business unit at the time of disposition
(b) Procceds are net of cash and cash equivalents of $452 1 million related 1o the business unit at the e of disposiion

The Noles 1o the Consolidated Financial Statemenis are an integral part of these statements




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Resadential Capntal, LLC
{Debtors-in-Possession)

Year ended December 31, (5§ i thousands) 2012 20N 2010
Supplemental disclosures
Cash paud for
Interest 5170,052 $442,175 $782,718
Income 1axes 412 37648 3,650
Reorgamzation items
Professional fees 143,200 — —
Bebtor in possession credit facility issuance costs 59,492 — —
Debtor m possession credit facility commiment fees 797 — —
Non cash items
Mortgage loans held—tor—sale transierred to consumer finance recervables and
loans 391 4 756 30 535
Consumer finance recervables and loans wransferred to montgage loans held—for—
sale 41,146 72,876 326 939
Consumer finance receivables and loans transferred to other asscts 12,698 16,098 199,011
Mortgage loans held—for-sate transferred 1o other assets 19,527 47 073 107,540
Mortgage loans held—for—sale transferred 10 accounts recenable 1,071,577 1,169 108 655 836
Mortgage servicing rights recognized upon the transfer of financral assets 16,556 54,426 184,494
Capual contribunions through forgiveness of borrowings 196,500 109,405 —
Capital contribution through forgiveness ot the MSR total return swap hability 125,686 — —
Change upon imiial adoption of new accounting standard (ASU 2009-17)
Increase i asscts of operations held—for—sale —_ — 10,242 675
Increase 1n habihines of operations held—for—sale — — 10,079,011
Increase 1n consumer finance receivables and loans _ 1,210,769
Increase i collateralized borrowings in securitization trusts — —_ 1,143,766
Deccrease in consumer finance receivables and loans upon deconsolidation -—_ — 1,968,859
Decrease n collateralized borrowings upon deconsolidation — —_ 1,545,409
Other disclosures
Procceds [rom sales and repavments of consumer finance receivables and loans
engnally designated as montgage loans held—for—sale §139,083 3157228  $1,247,754
Reconcthation of morigage loans held-for—sale
Mortgage loans held-for-sale at January |, $4,249,625  $4,654,907  $5,309,529
Onginations and purchases of mortgage loans 15,858,476 60,675,667 70,295,821
Gain on sale ol mortgage loans, net 249,520 222,159 448,721

Proceeds from sales and repayments of mortgage loans
Proceeds from sales and repayments of loans transferred from ¢onsumer finante

(15,224,079) (59,613,292) (70,342.416)

recens ables and loans (131,194)  (225.421)  (906,238)
Onginations of mortgage scrvicing rights (16,556) (54,426) (184,494}
Transfers to consumer finance recuivables and loans 59N {4,756) (30,535%)
Transfers ffom consumer linance receivables and toans 41,146 72,876 326,939
Transfers to accounts receivable (1,071,577 (1,169 108) (655,836)
Transfers to other assels (19,527) (47.073) (107,540)
Net change 1n delinquent loans subject to repurchase option 233,907 (102247 540,934
Transfer to assets of operations held—for—sale (3.895,578) — —
Other, net 70,548 (159 661} (39,978)
Mortgage loans held-for—sale at December 31 8344120 $4249625  $4,654,907

The Notes to the Consohidated Financizl Statements are an integral part of these statements




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residential Captal, LLC
(Debtors-in-Possession)

1. Description of Business, Basis of Presentation and Changes 1n Sigmficant Accounting
Policies

Residenual Capntal, LLC (ResCap, Company we, our, or us}is anon-consolidated w holly owned subsidiary of GMAC Morigage
Group LLC (GMAC Mortgage Group), which 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Ally Financial Inc (Ally Inc)

Our operations are principally conducted through our subsidiaries GMAC Mortgage, LLC (GMAC Mortgage) and Residential
Funding Company, LLC (RFC) Historically we brekered, onginated, purchased, sold, sccuntized and serviced residential mortgage
loans in the United States  We brokered substantially all of our loan production Irom our onigination channels to Ally Bank, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Ally Inc  Substanually all of our loan purchases were from Ally Bank  Prior to May 1, 2082 we purchased
primanily agency chgible and government msured or guaraniced loans from Ally Bank under the terms of a Master Mortgage Loan
Purchasc and Sale Agreement (MMLPSA) Lifective May 1, 2012, we no longer purchase Fedoral National Mortgage Association
(Fannie Mae) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) eligible loans onginated or purchased by Ally Bank
(Fannie Mae Freddie Mac and Government National Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae) are collectively referred to as the GSEs)
Following our Chapter 1 filing we have not oniginated loans directly with borrowers except in Nevada and Ohio  We did, however,
commut to purchase, and purchased, from Ally Bank, mortgage loans insurcd by the Federal Housing Authornty (FEIA) or guaranteed
by the US Department of Veterans Affawrs (VA) pursuant to a morigage loan purchase and sale agreement we cntered into with
Ally Bank 1n Mayv 2012 Our commitment 10 purchase mortgage loans pursuant 1o that agreement lerminated upon the closing ol
our servicmg platform sale on February 15, 2013, except with respect to the remamming pipeline of mortgage loans that Ally Bank
had commutted to a borrower, prior 1o February 15, 2013 to oniginate, but which had not yvet been origmated as of such date  Loans
ongmated or purchased n conformity with the underwniting guidelmes of the FHA and VA are generally sold to sccuntizations
guaraniced by Gmnie Mae  Sec Note 24 - Related Party Transactions for additional information

Since the sales ol our ongmation and scrvieng assets i January and February 2013, our primary business activities consist of
the management and sale of our remaining assets and operations We continue 10 purchase newly onginated FHA/VA loans from
Ally Bank that were mtercst locked prior to the sale or were in the pipehne at the date of the sale We alse modify FHA/VA msured
loans on our balance sheet that mect certamn eligibihity requirements  [hesc newly onginated and moditied loans are chgible 1o be
poolcd and soldinto a Ginmie Mae secunitization Qur remaining assets and operations consist ¢f non-conforming domestic residential
mortgage loans, our captive mortgage reinsurance portfolio, and himited assets {primanly cash) in our remaming iicrnational
subsidiaries m Canada the United Kingdom and Continental Europe Our remaining assets are being run-ofl, sold or worked out to
maximiZz our returm

Bankruptcy Proceedings

On May 14, 2012 (the Peution Date), ResCap and certam of us wholly owned subsidianes (collectively, the Debtors) filed
voluntary petiions (Chapter 11 Cases) for relief under chapter 11 of the United States Bankrupicy Code in the United States
Bankruptcy Coun for the Southern District of New York (Bankruptcy Court) Our Chapter 11 Cases were consolidated for the
purpose of jomnt administrauon  Factors contributing to our Chapter 11 Cases include (1) the magnitude of the Debtors' potential
hability for breaches of representations and warranties made in connection with loan sales, as well as the significant ime and defense
costs 1n respect of huigation claims alleged with respect to such loan sales, irrespective of the Debtors substantial defenses, (1) the
averwhelming debt burden combined with near-term maturities of credit facilities and (1) continuing volatility 1n the mterest rate
markets, affecting the Debtors' abiliy to hedge the value of their mortgage servicing nights and to comply with theirr financial
covenants We have also been heavily dependent on Ally Inc for capital and hquidity support Ally Inc had indicated that it would
not continue any such support and would not exiend the maturity dates of 1s various crudit facilites with us  As a result, we do not
expect to be able to sausly all of our obhgations as they come due  Accordingly, there 1s substantial doubt about our ability to
continue as a going concern

As a result of the Chapter 11 Cases, Ally Inc has deterrmined that 1t no lenger has control or sigmificant influence over the
operating decisions of the Debtors, and 1t does not expect to regan control or significant wiluence over the Deblors under any
reorganization plan  Lherclore eflecuve May 14, 2012 we were deconsohidated from the Ally Inc financial statements

The filing of the Chapter 11 Cases constituted an event of default or otherwise tniggered accelerated repay ment obligavons
under all of our pre-petition debt obhigations  Under Chapter 11, the filing of a bankruptev petition automatically stays most actions
against a debter including most actions to collect pre-petitton indebtedness or to exercise control over the property of the debtor's
estate Absent an order of the Bankruptey Court certain of the Debtors' pre-petition habihiies are subject to seittement under a plan
of reorganization



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residenual Capunal, LLC
{Debtors-in-Posstssion)

I he Bankruptey Court approved the continwing operatton of our primary business activities including ongnating, purchasing,
selling, secuntizing and servicing residential mortgage toans The Bankrupiey Court also approved our payment of certain pre-
petien hiabihties, including taxes employ ee related habihities, and other obligations related to our continuing operations

As part of the Chapter 11 Cases, the Debtors sought approval of the sale of substantially all of their operations and related assets
(Section 363 Asset Sales) [he Debtors also entered nto an agreement with Allv Inc and its subsidiaries, other than the Deblors
(collectivily, the Ally Group Scttlement Agreement) and arc actively engaged in working with creditor constituencies to provide
for the terms of a Chapter 11 plan (Plan) which those paritres would support  The Ally Group Setilement Agreement contemplated
certain milestone ruquiremnents that the Debtors farled to satisfy, mcluding the Bankruptey Court's conflirmation of the Plan on or
before October 31 2012 While the farlure to meet this October 31 milestone would have resulted 1n the Ally Group Settlement
Agreement’s automatee termination, Ally Inc and the Debtors agreed to monthly wemporary warvers of this automatic termination
through I'ebruary 28,2013 1his waiver wasnot exiended beyond this date, and the Allv Group Settlement Agreement has terminated
Any plan filed in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases, and all motions related to the Chapter 11 Cases, are subject to approval by
the Bankruptcy Court See Note 2 - Voluntary Reorgamzauon Under Chapter 11 for additional information related 1o our Chapter
il Cases

On November 20 2012 (he Bankruptev Court approved the Section 363 Asset Sales which include the Debtors' ongimation,
capital markets and servicing platforms and related assets as well as a legacy loan portiolie  The Section 363 Asset Sales were
completed on January 31, 2013, February 5, 2013 and February 15, 2013 See Note 2 - Voluniary Reorganization Under Chapter
Il and Note 4 - Discontinued Operauens and Assets and Liabilines FHeld-For-Sale for additional information

We expect that the Debtors' bankruptey cases will continue to be admimistered under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptey Code tor
4 period of ume, which will be dependent on the timing of the confinmation of a Plan  Since the proceeds of the Section 363 Asset
Sales and the remaining assets of the Debtors are less than our pre-petitton ltabilities, holders of certatn sceured and unsecured debt
will likely receive less than payment an full for thewr claims

Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

While there continues to be substantial doubt for us 1o continue as a going concern we have prepared the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and the sansfaction of
habtlities 10 the normal course of business We belicve this 1s appropriate due to the (act that a formal hiquidation plan has not been
commutted to or filed and confirmed by the Bankruptey Court As discussed above, the Debtors expect to file a plan of reorganization
with the Bankruptcy Courtin 2013 These financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the eventual
hquidation of the Company The Consolidated I nancial Statements include our accounts and accounts ol our majoriy-owned
subsidianies after ehminaung all sigmficant intercompany balances and transactions and mnclude all vanable interest entiiies (VIEs)
in which we ate the primary beneficiary

Our accounting and reporting policics conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of Amenca
(GAAP) The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires managemeni to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of the financial statwments and that affect income and expenses
during the reporung period  In developing the estumates and assumptions, management uses all available evidence howeser, actual
results could differ because of uncertamtics associated with esumating the amounts, ttnung, and hkelihood of possible outcomes

We operate our international subsidianies in a similar manner as we operate i the United States of Amenca (US or United
Stales), subject 1o local laws or other circumstances that may cawse us to modify our procedures  The financial statements of
subsidiarics outside of the Unined States are measured using the local currency as the funcuonal currency  All assets and habihnes
of foreign subsidianies are translated nto US dollars using the period end exchange rales  [he resulung translation adjustments are
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of equuly  Income and expense items are translated at average
exchange rates prevailing during the reporting penod  Any foreign currency transaction gans or losses are recorded directly to the
mcome siatement regardless of whether they are realized or unrealized

[Duning 2011 we denufied errors in periods prior to 2011 which were not matenal to those prior peniods  As a result we
corrected those errors in 2011 resulting in addihional expense of $72 9 nullion, an increase o payablcs to affilates of $47 4 nullion
and a nct cash payment of $ 25 § million  The misstatement had no impact on our consolidated financtal condition at December
31,2011

Debtor-in-Possession Accounting

As aresult of the Chapter || Cases, we have applied the provisions of ASC 852, Reorganizanions, which does not ordinarily
change the application of GAAP with respect 1o the preparation of our financial stalements It dees however require that financial
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residential Capual, LLC

(Debtors-in-Possession)

statements for peniods including and subscquent to our Chapter 11 Cascs distinguish betwcen ransactions and events that are directly
associated with the reorgamization procecdings and the ongoing operations of the business, as well as addiuonal disclosures

Effectne May 14,2012, habilities subject to compromise n our Chapier 11 Cases are distngwished from fully secured habiliues
not expected 1o be compromised and from post-petiion hiabihties  Where there 1s uncertamty about whether a secured claim 15
undersecured or will be imparred under the Plan, we have classified the entire amount of the claim as a liability subject to compromise
We ceased accruing contractwal imterest and amortizing deferred 1ssuance costs and deterred concesstons telated to pre-petition debt
obligations that are subjcct 10 compromise  Such habilities are reported at historic carrying value or the amount of the allowed
claim, even 1f we expect them to settle for lesser amounts  These claims remain subject Lo future adjustments which may resuli from
ncgoliations, actions of the Bankruptey Court, disputed claims, rejection of executory contracts and unexpired leases, the
determination as to the value of any collateral securing claims, proofs ef claim or other cvents  Changes in the carrymg value of
habilitics subject to compromise in conncction with actions of the Bankruptcy Court will be recorded as reorgamization items on
our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenues, expunses (including professional fees and Debtor-in-Possession facility fees), realized gains and losses, and
provisions for losses resulung from the rcorganization are reported separately on our Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income as reorgamzation items  We expensed as incurred the costs associated with our post-petition Debtor-in-possession credit
tacthtics

Use of Assumptions and Cntical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements 1in conformity with Generally Accepled Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of the financial
stalements and income and expenses during the reporting penod and related disclosures and entical accounting estimates In
deviloping these estimates and assumptions, management uscs available evidence at the ume of the finangial statements Because
of uncertainties associated with eshimatng the amounts, ttming and hkelihood of possible outcomes, actual results could differ from
our csimates An accounting estimate 1s considered criucal if the estimate requires management to make assumptions about matters
that were haghly uncertain al the ime the accounting estimate was made, and 1f different estimates reasonably could have been used
or changes in the accounting ¢stimate arc reasonably likely 10 occur {rom period to peried that would have a material impact on our
financial coadition, results of operations or cash flows 1f actual resulis differ from our assumptions, it may have an adverse impact
on Lhe results of operations and cash flows

Valuation of Held-for-sale Operations

We carry platform or other disposal groups as held-for-sale when all the following conditions are met {a) management commuts
to a plan and has authonitv 1o sell, (b) the disposal group can be sold immediately i 1s current form and subject to normal and
customary terms, (c) active program is in place to complete a sale of the assets {(d) at a price that 1s reasonable 1in relavon to s
current fair value, (c) subject to certamn cxceptions, the sale 1s probable and will be recognized within the next twelve months, and
(f) actions required to complete Lhe sale mdicate that 115 unlikely that sigmficant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan
will be withdrawn

Disposal groups are carried at the lower of carry ing amounts er fair value, less costs to sell We estimated the fair value of the
disposal group based upon the executed asset purchase agreement adjusted as appropriate, for changes in the composiion of the
disposal group, and reduced for anticipated selling costs  Business transactions of this nature are ntrequent and highly dependent
on the lacts and circumstances of the disposal group The assets and habalinies of held-for-sale disposal groups are camed scparately
on our Consoltdated Batance Sheet as assets and habilitics of held-for-sale operations

[isposal groups thatmeet the discontinued operations criteria have current and prior period income and expensc items (including,
anv gain or loss related to any disposat group lower of cost or fatr value adjustment) presented within discontinued operations n
our Consohdated Statement of Comprchensive [ncome  Disposal groups that do not meet the discontinued operations ¢riteria
continue to be reflected 1n continuing operations m our Consohidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Valuation of Mortgage Loans Held—for-Sale

Mortgage loans held-for—sale are ty pically pocled together and sold into certain cxit markets depending on the underlying
atiributes of the loan product type interest rate, and credit quality  To the extent observable market prices arc not avaitable, we will
determine the fair value of mortgage loans held—for—sale using internally developed valuation models  These loans are valued on
a discounted cash flow basis utilizing cash flow projections from mtemally deseloped models that require prepay ment, defauli and
discount rate assumptions To the extent avatlable, we will utilize market obscrvable inputs such as interest rates and market spreads
1f market observable inputs are not available, we are required to utilize internal inputs, such as prepasment speeds credit losses
and discount ratcs - While numerous controls exist to calibrate, cotroborate and vahdate the internal inputs, they require the use of
Judgment by us and can have a significant impact on the determination of the loan s estimalted fair value
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Valuation of Mortgage Servicing Rights

Mortgage servicing nights (MSRs) represent the capitalized value of the night to reccive luture cash flows from the servicing
of mortgage loans for others MSKs are a sigmificant source of value dern ed from oniginating or acquinng mortgage loans Because
residential mortgage loans ty picatly contain a prepay ment option berrowers often clect to prepay their mortgage loans by relinancing
at tower rates duning declining interest rate environments  The borrowcr's ability to prepay 1s at umes impacted by other factors 1n
the current envirenment that mav himat their cligibthty to refinance (e g a igh loan to value ratio) When this occurs, the sircam
of cash flows generated from servicing the onginal merigage loan s terminated  As such, the market value of MSRs has histoncally
been very sensiive Lo changes in interest rales and tends Lo decline as market nterest rates dechine and increase as interest rates rise
We capitalize MSRs on residential mortgage loans that we have oenginated and purchased based upon the fair value of the servicing
rights associated with the underlving mortgage loans at the ume the loans are sold or securiized  GAAP requires that the value of
MSRs be determined based on market transactions for comparable servicing assets 1f available [n the absence of reprusentative
market trade information, valuations should be based on other av aillable market evidence and modeled market expectauons of the
present value of future estimated net cash flows that markelt participants would cxpect from strvicing When observable prices are
not avalable, management uses internally developed discounted cash flow modils to estimate the fair value

These internal valuatton models estimate ned cash flows based on internal operating assumptions that we belhieve would be
used by market participants combined with markct—based assumptions for loan prepayment rates, mnterest rates, default rates, and
discount rates that management behieves approximate yields required by nvestors for these assets  Semvicing cash flows pnimanly
mclude scrvicing fees, ancillary income and late fees less operating costs to service the loans The estimated cash flows are discounted
using an option—adjusted spread-denved discountrate Management considers the best avaslable information and exercise s sigmficant
udgment m estimating and assuming values for key variables i the modeling and discounting process  All of our MSRs are carried
at estimated fair value

We use the following key assumptions i our valuation approach

+  Prepayment speeds — The mostsignificant dnivers of MSR value are actual and torecasted portfolio prepay ment behavior
Prepayment speeds represent the rate at which borrowers repay thew morigage loans prior to scheduled matunty  The
most sigmficant factor mlluencing prepayment speeds 1s the terest rate envirenment  However, prepayment speeds are
nfluenced by a number of factors such as the value of the collateral, government programs, and other market lactors As
inierest rates nse, prepayment speeds generally slow, and as mterest raics dechine prepayment speeds generally aceelerate
When mortgage loans are paid or expected te be paid carlier than originallv cstimated, the expected future cash flows
associated with servicing such loans are reduced We primarily use third-party models to project residential mortgage
loan payoffs In other cases, we estimate prepayment speeds based on histoncal and expected future prepayment rates
We measure model performance by comparing prepayment predictions against actual results at both the portfolio and
product level

*  Discount rare — The cash flows of our MSRs are discounted utilizing approprate risk-adjusted vield assumptions that,
when applied to projecied cash flows produce benchmarked tair value

«  Base mortgage rate — The base mortgage rate represents the current market inieress rate for newly ongwnated mortgage
loans This rate 1s a key component in ¢stimating prepay ment speeds of our portfolio because the difference between the
current base morigage rate and the nterest rates on exisling loans 1n our portfohio 15 an ndication of the borrower's
likelihood to refinance

»  Costto service — [n genceral, servicing cost assumptions are based on actual expenses directly related to scrvicing  These
servicing cost assumphions are compared to market-servicing costs when market intormation 1s available Qur servicing
cost assumptions mclude expenses assoctated wath our activttics related to loans m default

+  Volapfny — Volatihity represents the expected rate of change of interest rates  The volatility assumption used 1 our
valuation methodology 15 intended to estimate the range of expected outcomes for future interest rates  We use imphed
volatility assumptions 1 connection with the valuation of our MSRs Implied velaulity 1s defined as the expected rate of
change 1n interest rates denved from the prices at which options on interest rate swaps or swaptions arc trading

We also periodically perform a series of reasonableness tests as we deem appropriate including the following
»  Review and compare data provided by an independent third-party broher We evaluate and compare our fair value price,

muluples, and underly ing assumptions to data, including prepay ment speeds, discount rates and cost to scrvice provided
by an independent third—party broker
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. Review and compare pricing of publich traded interest-only securiies We exaluate and compare our fair value to
publicly traded interest-only stnipped mortgage-backed secunities by age and coupon for reasonableness

«  Review and compare fair value price and muluples 'We evaluate and compare our fair value pnice and muluples to market
tar value price and multiples in external surveys produced by third-parucs

+  Compare actual monthly cash flows to projections We compare actual monthly cash flows to those projected 1n the
MSR valuation Based upon the results of this comparison we assess the nced 1o modity the individual assumptions used
mn the valuvanon  This process calibrates the mode! to actual servicing cash flow results

*  Rewiew and compare recent bulh mortguage servicing right acquusition activily  We evaluate the reliability and relevancy
of market trades mcluding the valuation unplied and the Section 363 Assets Sales  Unul very recently, there was a lack
of comparable transactions between willing buycrs and sellers in the bulk acquisition market which are the best indicaters
of fair value However we continte to momitor and track markel activity on an ongoing basis

We generally expect our valuation to be wittun a reasonable range of these comparisons  Changes i these assumptions could
have a significant impact on the determination of fair value  In order to develop our best cstimate of {air value management reviews
and analyses the outpul from the models and makes adjustments to the valuation 1o take into consideration other factors that may
not be captured  To the extent a valuation 1s deemed to be outside a reasonable range 1t may be adjusted accerdingly

The assumptions used m modeling expected future cash flows of MSRs have a significant impact on the fawr value of MSRs
and potentially a corrcsponding impact to earnings  See Note 8 — Servicing Activihies for sensiivity analysis At December 31,
2012, based on the market information obtained, we determined that our MSR valuations and the assumptions used to value those
servicing righis were reasonable and consistent with what an indupendent market participant would use to value the assets

Liabilities Subject to Compromise

Liabilities subject to compromise refate to pre-pention habilities that are not lully secured and have a possibility of not being
{ully paid as part of the bankruptey process Liabilitics subject to compronmse are initially recorded in the same manner as habilities
not subject to compromise During the Chapter 11 Cases, claims will be filed and the Bankruptcy Court will determene the allowed
clamm values Al that ume, the hhabiliies will be updated to the allowed claim values  These claims will ulumately be setiled based
on the final outcomes of the bankruptey Any change from cumrent values 1o allowed values, or from allowed values (0 uliimate
pavouts, will be recorded as reorgamizational items 1n the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Liability for Representation and Warranty Obligations

The hability for representation and warranty obligations reflects management's best estimate of probable lifetune loss  We
constder histonical and recent demand trends 1n establishing the reserve The methodology used to estimate the reserve considers a
vancdy of assumptions including borrower performance (both actual and cstimated future defaulis) repurchase demand behavior,
historical loan defect expenence, histonical and estumated future loss expenience, which mcludes projections of future home price
changes as well as other qualitative factors including wvestor behavior In cases where we have limmted or no current or histonical
demand expenence with an investor, because of the inherent difficulty 1n predicting the level and iming of future demands, 1 any,
lossts cannot be reasonably estimated, and a hability 1s not recopized  Management momitors the adequacy of the overall reserve
and makes adyustments to the level of reserve, as necessary, after consideration of other quahitative factors including ongoing dialogue
with counterpartics  [his reserve does not consider impacis of anv lingation or settlements that may occur as part of the Chapter
11 Cases

Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and certain highly hquid investment secunties with maturities of three months
orless from the date of purchase Cash and cash equivalents that have restricitons as 1o our ability to w ithdraw the funds are included
in other assets  The fair value of cash equivalents approximates book value because of the short matunities of these mstruments

Mortgage Loans Held—for-sale

Loans held-for-sale are camried at lower of cost or lair value or at esumated fair value  The majonty of held-for-sale loans are
pooled together lor purposes of determining the lower ot cost or fair valuc based on loan characteristics  Loan onigination fees, as
well as discount points and incremental direct erigination cost are imtially recorded as an adjustment of the cost of the loan and are
reflected in the gain or loss on sale of loans when sold  Faiwr v alueis determined by tvpe of loan and 1s generally based on contractually
tstablished commutments from investors current investor yeld requirements current secondary market pricing or cash flow models
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using market-based vield requirements Our fair value option election loans pnmanily consist of conforming and government-
insured mertgage leans  Sce Note 20 — Fair Value for details on tair value measurcment

We hold conditional repurchase options in ofl-balance shuel sccuniizations as a result of our ownurship of mortgage servicing
nights that allow us to repurchase a loan at parifit exceeds a certain pre-specified dehnquency level (e g 90days) We have discretion
regarding when or 1t we will exercise these options, but gencrally we will do so only when 1t 15 1n our best interest  We recognisze
these asscts that can be repurchased under the condiuonal repurchase option (and any related hability to pav the trust) once the
conditton has been sausfied but only in those s1tuanons where we have determined that we would have a more than trivial benefit
We do not record an asset (or related Liabiliy to pav the trust) when delinguent loan repurchase options are both quantitatn cly and
qualitatively deep oul of the money, bucause we would not have a more than inivial benefit from the options

Fair Yalue Measurements

Fair value 1s defined as the exchange price that would be reccived 1o sell an assct or pad to transfer a hability {exit price)
in the principal or most advantageous market 1n an orderly transaction betwcen market participants at the measurement date  Far
value 1s based on the assumptions market partictpants would use when pricing an asset or habiliy  Additionally, entities are required
to consider all aspects of nonperformance nisk, including the entity 's own crednt standing, when measuring the fair value of a labihiy

A three-level hierarchy 1s used when measunng and disclesing fir value  The fair value hierarchy gives the haghest pniority
to quoted prices available in active markets (1¢, observable inputs) and the lowest pniontty to data lacking transparency (e,
unobservable mputs) A instrument s categonization within the fair value hierarchy 1s based on the lowest level of sigmificant input
to 1ts valuation The following 15 a description of the three hicrarchy lovels

Levdl | Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 1dentical assets or habilitics at the measurement date  Additionally
we must have the ability to access the active market, and the quoted prices cannot be adjusted by us

Level 2 Inputs arc other than quoted prices meluded 1n Eevel 1 that are observable for the asset or hability either directly
or indirectly  Level 2 mputs include quoted prices i active markets for sumilar assets or habilines quoted prices
in mactive markets for identical or similar assets or liabilitics or inputs that are observable or can be corroborated
by observable market data by correlation or other means for substantially the full term of the assets or habilities

Level 3 Unobservable inputs are supported by little or no market activity The unobservable inputs reprisent management’s
best assumptions of how market participants would price the asscts or liabilities  Generally, Level 3 assets and
habilies are valued using pricing models discounted cash llow methodologies, or similar techniques that require
sigmficant judgment or estimation

Transfers  Transfers mto or out of any hicrarchy level are recognized at the end of the reporung ponod in which the transter
occurred There were no matenal transfers between anv levels duning the year ended December 31, 2012

Secuntizations and Variable [nterest Entities

We secunitize, sell, and service consumer morigage loans  Securitization transactions typically invelve the use of vanable
nterest entities and are accounted for esther as sales or secured financings  Economic interests in the securitized and sold assets are
gencrally retained in the form of residual interests, and servicing nights

In order to conclude whether or not a variable interest entity is required to be consolhidated, carelul consideration and judgment
must be given to our continuing involvement with the vaniable interest entity  In circumstances where we have both the power lo
direet the activities of the entity that most significantly tmpact the entity’s performance and the obliganon to absorb losscs or the
right to recein e benefits of the entity that could be sigmificant we consohidate the entity, w hich would also preclude us from recording
an acceunting sale on the transaction In the case of a consolidated vaniable interest entity, the accounting 1s consistent with 4 secured
financing thatis, we continue to carry the loans and we record the securiized debt on our balance sheet  Further, there 1s no specific
accounting record of our economic interests, rather, they are captured as the difference between the recopnised assets and habilities

in transactions where cither one or both of the power or cconemic criteria mentioned above are not met, we determine whether
or not we achiey e a sale for accounting purposes In order to achieve sale for accounting purposes, the assets being transferred must
be legally 1solated not be constrained bv restrictions Irom further transler, and be deemed to be beyond our control 1 we were to
fail anv of the three critena for sale accounting, the accounting would be consistent wuth the preceding paragraph (1 ¢, a secured
borrowing) However, 1f we meet the cniteria the transaction would be recorded as a sale, and the vaniable mterost entity would not
be consolidated See Note 7 — Secunitizations and Vanable Interest Entities for discussion on vanable interest entities

Gains or losses on off-balance sheet secunitizations take into consideration the fair value of the retained tnicrests including the
value of certan servicing asscts or liabilities, which are imtially recorded at fair value at the date of salc  The esumate ol the lair
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value of the retamned interests and servicing requires us e excrcise sigmiicant judgment about the uming and amount of future cash
flows from the interests  See Note 20 — Fair Valtue for a discussion of fair value estimates

Gains or losscs on off-balance sheet securitizabions are reported 1n gain on mortgage loans net  Changes in the faur value of
retamned interests are reflected 1n other revenue, net Retamed interests, as well as any purchased securities, are included i other
assets  Sccunties that are noncertificated and cash reserve accounts related to securitizations are mcluded 1n other assels

In the past we have also retained the nght to service the consumer mertgage loans soid 1n secunitization transactions s olving
Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae Freddie Mac, and private investors  We received servicing fees based on the securitized loan balances
and certan ancitlary fecs all of which are reported 1n servicing fees

Whether on or off balance sheet the investors in the sccuntization trusts gencrally have no recourse to our assets outside of
customary market representation and warranty provisions

Finance Recevables and Loans

We classify lnance recervables and loans ither as held-for-sale or held-for-investment based on management's assessment
of 1ts intent and abihity te hold for the forcseeable future or unul maturity Management's intent and ability may change from ume
to ume depending on anumberol factors including economic hquidity and capnal conditions Management's view of the loresceable
future 1s generally a twelve~month period based on the longest reasonably rehiable net income, iquidity and capital forecast penod

We elccted the fair vatue option for consumer mortgage finance receivables and loans related 1o certain of our on-balance
sheel securttizations, mncludmg those securiization trusts that were consclidated vpon the adopuion of ASU 2009-17  [hese
securttized morigage loans are lugally 1solated from us and are beyond the reach ol our creditors  They are measured at fair value
using & portfolio approach The values for loans that with other assets and hiabilitics constitute a secunitization trust may differ
considerably from loans held-for-salc that can be sold i the whole-loan market  This difference anises pnmanly duc to the liguidity
of the assct-backed (ABS) or mortgage-backed (MBS) sccurnity market and 18 evident in the fact that spreads applicd to tower rated
ABS/MBS are considerably wider than spreads observed on senior bond classes and e the whole-loan market The objectine in
linking the fair value of these loans to the lair value of the related securitization debt is to properly account for our retamned economie
mterest i the securihizations  See Note 20 - Fawr Value for detanls on fair value measurement

The balanee of our consumer finance receivables and loans are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of unearned
income, premiums and discounts and allowances Uneatned income, which includes deferred ongination fees reduced by ongination
caosts, 1s amortized over the contractual hie of the related finance recewvable or loan using the imterest method

Our portfolio stgments are based on the fevel at which we develop and document our methodology for determinung the
allowance for loan losses  Addionally, the classes of finance receivables are based on several factors mcluding the method for
monutoring and assessing credit sk, the method of measuring carrying value, and the nsk charactenistics of the finance receivable
Based on an cvaluation of our procuss for developing the allowance for loan tosses including the nature and extent of exposure to
credit nsk arising from our finance receivables, we have determined our portfolio segments to be consumer and commereial

+ Consumer morigage — Consists of the following classes of finance receivables

*  lst Morigage — Consists of residential mortgage loans that are secured 1n a first-lien position and have prionty
over all other Liwns or claims on the respective collateral

*  Home equity — Consists of residential home equity loans or mortgages with a subordinate—licn position

«  Commercial — Consists of the following classes of finance receivables
* Commercial and Industrial Morigage — Consisis prnmanly of warehouse lending

+ Commercial Real Estate Mortgage — Related primanly 10 activities within our international operations which
provided financing to residential land developers and homebuilders

Charge—offs

Consumer first-lien mortgage loans, which consist of our entire st mortgage class and a subset of our home equity class that
are secured by real estate, are written down to the estimated Fair value of the collateral, less costs to sell, once a morigage loan
becomes 180 davspastdue Second-hen consumer mortgage loans within our consumer home equity ¢lass are charged offat [80 days
pastdue First and second~lien consumer mortgage toans in bankruptcy that are 60 days past due are written down to the estimated
fair value ol the collaleral, less costs to sell wilhin 60 davs of receipt of notification of filing from the bankruptey court Loans are
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considered collateral dependent at the tme foreclosure proceedings begin and are charged off to the esumated far value of the
collateral, less costs to sell

Coemmercial loans are individually evaluated and where collectabihity of the recorded balance 1s in doubt are winitten down to
estimated fair value of the collateral less costs to sell Generally, all commercial loans, both collateral and noncollateral dependent,
are charged off when they are 360 das s or more past due

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses (the allowance) 1s management's estimate of incurred losses on the consumer and commercial
finance receivable and loan portfolios  We determine the amount of the allowance required for cach of our portfoho segments based
on its relative nisk charactenistics The evaluation of these factors for both consumer and commercial finance reccivables and loans
wvolves complex, subjectinve Judgments  Additions to the allowance are charged to current peniod earnings through the prosvisson
for loan losses, amounts determined 10 be uncollectible are charged directly against the allowance, net of amounts recovered on
previously charged—off accounts

Lhe allowance 1s comprised of two components reserves established for speaific loans evaluated as impaired and portfolio-
level reserves established for large groups of tvpically smaller balance homogenous loans that are collecuvely evaluated for
impawrment  We evaluate the adequacy of the allowance based on the combined tolal of these (wo components Determining the
approprateness of the allowance 15 complex and requires judgment by management about the effect ol matters that are inherently
uncertain It 1s possible that others, given the same information, may at any pont in nme reach different reasonable conclusions

Measurement of impairment for speeific reserves 1s generally determined on a loan-by-loan basis  An individual loan 1s
considered impaired when, bascd on current information and events, 1t 1s probable that we will be unablc to collect all amounts due
{both principal and interest) according to the contractual terms of the agreement  Loans determined to be speaificallv impaired arc
measurcd based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, an obscrvable
market price, or the estimated lawr value of the collateral less estimated costs 10 sell, w hichever s dutermined to be the mostappropriatc
When these measurement values are lower than the carrying value of that loan impairment 18 recognized  Consumer loans that arc
deemed not Lo be individually impaired are pooled with other loans with similar risk charactenistics for evaluation of impairment
for the portlolio-level allowance

Forthe purpose of calculating portlolio-level reserves, we have determined logical grouping of loans into two portfolio segments
consumer merigage and commercial  1he allowance consists of the combination of a quantitative assessment component based on
statistical models, a retrospective evaluation of actual loss information to loss forecasts, and may include a qualuative component
based on management judgment Management takes into consideration relevant qualitanve tactors, including cxternal and internal
trends such as the impacts of changes in underwriting standards, collections and account management effectiveness, geographic
concentrations, and cconomic events among other factors that have occurred but are not yet reflected in the quantitative assessment
component Allquatitative adjustments are adequately documented, reviewed and approved through our established nsk governance
PrOLESSLS

There were no changes to our accounting policy or our allowance methodology during the period ended December 31 2012

Mortgage Servicing Rights

Primary servicing nights represent our right to service consumer reswlential mortgage loans  Primary servicing imvolves the
collection ot payments from individual borrowers and the distnbutton of these payments to the master servicer  Master servicing
rights represent our right fo service mortgage—and assci-backed sccurities and whole-loan packages ssued for investors  Master
scrvicing involves the collection of borrower payments from prnimary servicers and the distnbution of those funds to investors We
may at times purchase and scll primarv and master servicing rights through transactions with other market participants

We capualize the value expected (o be realized from performing speeified mortgage servicing activities for others as MSRs
when the cxpected future cash flows from servicing arc projected to be more than adequate compensatton for such activities These
capitahized servicing nights are purchased or retained upon sale or sccuritization of mortgage loans MSRs are not recorded on
securitizations accounted for as secured financings

We measure all mortgage servicing assets at fair value ' We define our servicing rights based on the avalabihiy of market inputs
and the manner m which we manage the nsks of our servicing assets  We lev erage available relevant market data to determine the
fair value of our recognized seryicing assels
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net, at their expected realizable v alue and include servicer ady ances and recenvables  Servicer
advances are generallv made to mamntain scheduled investor cash flows in the event of borrower detault or delinquency and may
reflect payments of property taxes and tnsurance premiums in ads ance of collection from borrowers principal and interest payments
to nvestors prior to their caltection from borrowers and amounts advanced for morigages in foreclosure  Servicer ady ances recenve
prionity cash flows, including contractual interest 1n the event of foreclosure or iquidation As aresult, the collection of the adv ances
15 reasonably assured We establish a reserve for any servicing advances where collectability 15 1n doubs

Loan insurance guarantee receivables anse because of mortgage loans acquired from off-balance sheet secuntizations guaranteed
by GNMA as a result of borrower default or contractual delinquency triggers ultimately become claims for resmbursement from the
FHA or VA Mortgage loans arc reclassified to receivable when the loan 1s deemed imparred  An mnsurance claim is filed with the
appropriate government guarantor agency (FILA or VA) for chgible morigage loan principal, interest and foreclosure related expenses

Claims receivable are evaluated lor impairment based upon the rermbursement policies of the FHA and VA

Dervative Instruments and Hedging Actinvities

Weuse dernvative instruments for risk management purposes  Certain of'our derivative instruments were designated as qualilying
hedge accounting relatonships other denvative nstruments do not qualily for hedge accounting or bave not been elecied to be
designated as a quahifying hedging retationship  All derivatis e financial instruments whether designated for hedge accounung or
not are recorded as other assels or other habilives and are measured at farr value  Addinenally, we repon denvatve financial
mstruments on a gross basis  Changes i the lair value of dertvative financial instruments held for nsk management purposes that
are not designated as hedges under GAAP arc reported in current penied earnings

Foreclosed Assets

Assets are classified as forcclosed and included in other assets when physical possession of the collateral 1s taken regardless
of whether foreclosure proceedings have taken place  Foreclosed assuts are carried at the lower of the outstanding balance at the
time of foreclosure or the fair value of the asset less estimated costs to sell  Losses on the revaluation of foreclosed assets are charged
to gain on mortgage loans, net at the time of foreclosure  Declines in value afier foreclosure are charged to other noninterest expense

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, are reported in other assets  Included
in property and equipment are certain bulidings turmiture and fixtures, lcasehold woprovements, 17 hardware and sottware and
capualized sofiware costs  Depreciation 1s computed on the straight-line basis over the esumated useful hives of the assets, which
generally ranges from 3 to 30 years  Capitalized softwarc is generally amortized on a straight—line basis over its uselul life, which
generally ranges from three to five vears  Capitahized sofiware that 1s not expected te provide substantive service potential, or for
which development costs significantly «xceed the amount origimally expected, 1s considered impaired and wnitten down to fair value
Software expenditures that are considered general admiristrative or of a mammtenance nature are expensed as incurred

Legal and Regulatory Reserves

Our legal and regulatory reseryes reflect management's best estumate of probable losses in connection with legal and regulatory
matters  As a legal or regulatory matter develops, management, in conjunction with intermal and extemal counsel handling the
matter, evaluates on an ongomng basis whether such matter presents a loss contingency that 1s both probable and estimable I, at
the time of evaluation, the loss conungency related o a legal or regulatory matter 1s not both probable and estimable, the matter will
continue to be monitored for further developments that would make such loss conungency both probable and esumable When the
loss contingency related to a legal or regulatory matter 1s deemed to be both probable and esttmable we will establish a hability
with respect to such loss contingency and record a corresponding amount to other noninterest expense, net  [o estimale the probable
loss, we evaluate the individual facts and circumstances of the case including information learned through the discoveny process,
rulings on dispoesitive motions, settlement discussions our prior history with similar matters and other rulings by courts, arbitrators
or others  1he reserves are continuously monitored and updated to reflect the most recent information related to cach matter

Additionaily, in matters for which a loss contingency 1s not deemed probabte, but rather reasonably possible to occur we would
attempt Lo estiimale a loss or range of loss related 1o that event, 1l possible | or these matiers, we do net record a iabihity  However,
if we are able to estimate a loss or range of loss, we would disclose this loss 1f it is matenal to our consohdated financial statements
[o esumale a range of probable or reasonably possible loss, we evaluate each ndividual case in the manner desenibed above We
do niot accrue for matters for which aloss event s deemed remote  The Debtors' Chapter 11 Cases automatically stay most itigation
unless otherwise subject to an order ol the Bankruptcy Court
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Liability for Representation and Warranty Oblhgations

We sold loans that were included 1n securitizations guaranteed by the GSEs and to whole—loan purchasers In addition,
subsequent to 2007 we infrequently sold loans to investors through private-label sccuritizations  Prior to 2007 our volume of
private label secunitization 1ssuance was considerably larger and incleded securitized loans where monolines sured the related
bonds In connection with these activities we provide to the GSLEs, mvestors, monoline, and whole-loan purchasers varous
representations and warranties related to the loans seld  These representations and warranties generally relate to, among other things,
the ownership of the loan the validity of the hen sccuring the loan the loan’s compliance wih the enteria tor inclusion in the
transaction, including compliance with underwnting standards or loan criteria established by the buyer ability to dehiver required
documentation and compliance with apphicable laws Generally, these representations and warranties may be enforced at anv ime
ovir the life of the loan

Upen a breach of a representation, we correct the breach in a manner conforming to the provisions of the sale agreement This
may require us either to repurchase the ioan, to indemmfy (make-whole) a party for incurred losses, or provide other recourse to a
GSE, monoline, or investor  Repurchase demands and claims for ndemnification payments are generally reviewed on a loan-by—
loan basis to validate 1f there has been a breach requining repurchase or a make—whole pavment  We actively contest claims to the
extent we donotconsider them valid [n cases where we repurchase loans, we bear the subsequent eruditlosson the loans Repurchased
loans are classificd as held—for—sale and mitially recorded at fair value  Any mitial impairment 1s charged to the habdity for
representation and warranty obhgations

At the ime a loan is sold, an estimate of the fair value of the labthity 1s recorded and classified 1n other liabilities and recorded
as a component of gain on mortgage loans, nct  We recognize changes in the hability throughout the iifc of the sold loans, as
necessary when additional relevant mformation becomes availlable  Changes in the hability are recorded as representation and
WAITanty expense

Remnsurance Arrangements

We have entered into excess layer remsurance agreements with non-affiliated private mortgage surance (PMI) companies
that provide PMI for certain of our mortgage loan servicing portfolio We assume the nsk of loss over a specified first loss percentage
tor covered loans and i return carn a portion of the PMI premium associated with those mortgage loans  We reserve for loss and
loss adjustment expenses when notices of default on msured mortgage loans are recerved and the speaified first loss percentage
covered by the ceding company 1s cxhausted

Income Taxes

We are a division of Ally Inc | a corporalion, lor income tax purpeses | s status was noither impacted by the bankruptcy
filing t1n May 2012 nor by any changes in how Ally Inc accounts for uts interest inus  Our status as a division of Ally Inc 15 expecied
to continue unbi} such ume as Allv Inc no longer holds its ownership interest in us  We arc subject to corporate U S ["ederal, state
and local taxes and are ncluded in the consolidated Ally Inc U S Federal and unitary and/or consolidated state income tax retums
We provide forour U S Federal and state laxes on a stand alone basis which 15 conststent with the apphicable tax sharing agreements
with direct and indirect parent companies through Ally Inc These agreements require the Company to calculate taxes based on the
income tax hability that would be delermined as W we were a separate affiliated group of corporations filing consohdated U S
Fideral and state income tax returns - Our forcagn businesses have been and conunuc to operate as corporations and are subject to,
and provide tor, U S Federal state, and/or foreign income tax

[ncome taxes are accounted for using the assel and liabiliy method  Under this method deferred tax assets and habilites are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and lilabilities and their respective tax basis  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected
to applv to taxable income n the years in which those temporary differences arc expected to be recovered or settled  The effect on
deferred tax assets and habiliies of a change m tax rates 1s recognized in income n the penod that includes the enactment date
Deferred 1ax assels are recognized subject to management's judgment that realization 1s more hikely than not

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Fair Value Measurement - Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements in US GAAP and IFRS (ASU 2011-04)

As of January 1 2012, we adopted Accounting Standards Update {ASU) 2011-04 which amends ASC 820, Farr Value
Measurements The amendments in ths ASU clarily how to measure fair value and contain new disclosure requirements to provide
more transparency into Level 3 far value measurements  ASU 2011-04 15 mtended 10 improve the comparablity of far value
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measurcments presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with U S GAAPand IFRS The ASU must
be applied prospectively The adoption did not have a material impact to our consolidated financial condition or results of operations

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Balance Sheet - Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabihities (ASU 2011-11)

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 1ssued ASU2011-11, which amends ASC 210, Balance
Sheet  This ASU contains new disclosure requirements regarding the nature of an entity's nights of setoff and related arrangements
associated with 1s financial wnstruments and derivative instruments  [n addition, m January 2013, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2013-01,
which simply clanfied the scope of ASU 2011-11  The new disclosures will give financial statement users imformation about both
gross and net exposures ASU 201 1-11 and ASU 2013-01 are effective for us on January 1, 2013 and retrospective application is
required Since the guidance relates only to disclosures, adoption 15 not expected to have a material eftect on our consolidated
financial condition or results of operations

Comprehensive Income - Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
(ASU 2013-02)

In February 2013 the § ASB 1ssued ASU 2013-02, which amends ASC 220, Comprehensive Income  The ASU contains new
requirements reltated to the presentation and disclosure of items that are reclassificd out of other comprehensive income  The new
requirements will give financral statement users a more comprehensive view of items that are reclassified out ofother comprehensive
mcome ASU 2013-02 15 effective for us on January | 2013, and s to be apphed prospectively  Since the guidance rilates only to
presentatson and disclosure of information, adoption 1s not expected to have a matenal eftect on our consohidated financial condition
or results of operations

2. Voluntary Reorgamization Under Chapter 11

Operation and Implication of the Chapter 11 Cases

Under section 362 of the Bankrupley Code, the filing of a bankruptcy peution automatieally stays most actions against a debtor,
including most actions to collect indebiedness incurred prior to the petition date or to exercise control over property of the debtor
Accordingly although commencement of the Chapter 11 Cases tniggered defaults on all of our pre-petition debt obligations, creditors
are stayed from taking any actions as a result of such defaults  As aresult of the Chapier 11 Cases, the realization of assets and the
sattsfacuon of habiliues are subject to uncertainty  As debtors-in-possession under the Bankrupicy Code we may, subject to approval
of the Bankruptcy Court, sell or otherwise dispose of assets and liquidate or scttle labuities for amounts other than those reflected
in our Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of our first day motions, filed on the Peution Date and subsequently approved by the Bankruptey Count, the Debtors
recened approval to pay or otherwise honor certain pre-petitton obligations generally designed o stabilize the Debtors’ operauons
including certain employee wages and benefit obligations, cash management, tax matters loanonginations and servicing and payment
of' pre-petiton claims of certain vendors deemed critical to the Debtors' ongoing business Amounts incurred for goods and services
after the Petition Date are paid tn the ordinary course of business  We have retained, with Bankruptev Court approval legal and
financial professionals to advise us on our Chapter 11 Cases and certain other professionals to provide services and advice 1o the
Debtors in the ordinary course of business  From ume to nme, the Deblors may seek Bankruptey Court approval to retan additional
protessionals  The Debtors may also be required to pay for costs incurred by other parties with an interest i the Debtors Chapter
Il Cases We have incurred sigmficant costs associated with the Chapter 11 Cases and will continue 1o incur costs unul such time
as all assets sales are completed, proceeds are distnibuted to our creditors and other requirements for wind down and hquidation are
completed

The US Trustee for the Southern District of New York has appointed an official commttee of unscecured creditors (UCC) The
UCC and s legat representatives have 2 nght to be heard on all matters that come before the Bankruptey Count affecting the Debtors

On June 20, 2012, the Bankruptcy Court approved the appointment of an independent examiner and, subsequently the United
States Irusice for the Southern Distnct of New York appointed former bankruptey judge Arthur J Gonzalez, Fsq as the examiner
(the Examuner)  On July 27, 2012, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the scope of the Examuner's myvcstigation
which includes, among other things an analysis of (a) all material pre-petition transactions between or among the Debtors and Ally
Inc Cerberus Capital Management, L P and uts subsidiaries and affiliates and/or Ally Bank (b) certain post-petition negotiations
and transactions with the Debtors, including with respect to plan sponsor plan support and seulement agreements the debtor-in-
possession financing with Atly Inc, the stalking horse assel purchase agreement with Ally Inc , and the servicing agreement with
Ally Bank, (c) all state and federal law claims or causcs of action the Debiors proposed to be released as part of the Plan and (d)
the release of all existing or potential ResCap-related causes of actton against Ally Inc held by third parties  On February 7, 2013,
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the Examiner informed the Bankruptcy Court that the investigation and related report will not be completed unul carly May 2013,
although there 1s no assurance that the Examiner will not need additional tme

Employee Matters

On August 15, 2012 the Bankrupicy Court entered an order approving the Debtors’ key employee retention plan (KERP) for
certan non-insiders and the pavment of amounis thereunder as admanmistrative expenses  The KERP provides for vesting and pay ment
linked to the closing of the Section 363 Asset Sales The KERP 15 requured, n all respects 1o conform to the requirements and
restrictions of the Troubled Asset Relief Program {1ARP)  All post-petition accruals under the KERP have been recorded on our
Consochidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as reorganization items

Following a hearing on October 17,2012, the Bankruptey Court entered an erder approving the Debtors' key employce incenuve
plan (KLIP} for certain insiders, comprised of senior management of the Debtors and the payment ol amounts there under as
administrative expenses  The KEIP provides for incentive awards 1o certain insiders that arc closely aligned 1o the negotiation and
closing of the Section 363 Asset Sales as well as scamless transition to the purchaser(s} winthoult mterrupting customer service The
goal of the KEIP 15 to presenve and maximize the value of the estate for the benefit of its creditors  The KEIP provides for vesting
and pavment linked to the closing of the Section 363 Asset Sales and to plan confirmation

On December20 2012 the Coun approyved the Deblors' motion with respectto certamn compensation matters related 1o pay ments
of deferred cash issued on or afier the Pettion Daie 1o certan of the Debtors' employ ees for postpetition services  In accordance
with the motion, the Debtors are authorized o reimburse Ally Inc for paymenis cxpected to be made i conncction with such deferred
cash and directed the Dobtors to establish and fund an escrow account for the bunefit of Ally Ine  Pavments lrom the escrow account
will be made on the carlier of the eficctive date of a Plan or the remittance of the deferred cash to employees On January 3 2013
the Debtors funded the escrow account

On January 29, 2013, the Court approved the Debtors mouon with respect to payments under the Company's annual incentive
plan to ehigible employees, whereby the Debtors were authorized, but not direcled, 1o distribute payments so kong as such paviments
met certain criteria and were consistent with anv TARP restnictions  The Debtors made payments under the annual incentive plan
to eligible employees on March 1, 2013

Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreements

On May 15, 2012, the Debiors obtained Bankruptcy Court interim approval of a fullv cotnnutted 31 45 billion superpriority
sentor secured debtor-in-possession credut faciliy (DIP) arranged by Barclavs Bank PLC between and among GMAC Mortgage
Borrower LLC and REC Borrower LLC (collectively, the DIP Borrowers), and ResCap, GMAC Morigage, RFC and certain other
subsidharics of ResCap (cellecuvily, the DIP Guarantors), Barclays Bank PLC, as admimstrative agent, and other lenders that from
time to ume may become party thercto  The DIP Borrowers and DIP Guarantors are all Debtors  Pursuant to the terms of the DIP,
the $1 45 billion facility consists of three tranches $1 06 hullion of A-1 term notes, $200 0 million of A-2 term notes and a $190 0
million revolver The DDIP was approved by the Bankruptey Court on June 25, 2012 The $190 0 millon revolver was terminated
effective January 31 2013 Sce Note 11 - Borrowings for additional information

[he DIP termination date was the earliest of 18 months from May 16, 2012 (the DIP closing date), the substantial consummation
of a reorgamizanion plan for any Debior that 15 confirmed pursuant to an order ¢ntered by the Bankruptey Court, or in the event of
acceleration and terrmination of the commument  The DIP was repaid on February 15, 2013 and terminated

On Oclober 19, 2012 we amended the DIP Agreement and pand fees of 32 0 millton  The amendments to the DIP Agreement
permitted (1) a one-time sate of whole loans 1f the proceeds were used to pay down debt and (1) up te $200 0 miliion 1n sales of
FHA insurance backed morigage loans and VA guaranteed mortgage loans that were currently pledged as collateral for the Amended
and Restated Allv Inc Line of Credit (LOC)

We were required (o maintain consolidated hquidity of (1) not tess than $250 0 milhon 1n the aggregate for four consecutive
days and (1t) not less than $75 0 million in the aggregale at any tme  We were also required to mamtam a mimmum of $50 0 million
m certain bank accounts that are maintained as collateral for the DIP For the period ended December 31 2012 we were in compliance
with these requirements

The DIP proceeds could be used in each case in accordance with the approved DIP budget, to repay n full certain indubledness
outstanding as of the Petiion Date (the Pre-Petition Refinanced Facilitics}, to pay the fees cosis and expenscs incurred in connection
with the DIP and for general corporate purposes  There were limuauons on the use of DIP proceeds, including restnictions n
connection with investigations, imibiation of prosecution of any claims aganst any party o the DIP or holder of obhigattons of the
Pre-Petinon Refinanced Faciliues, making any pre-peuitton pay ments, except as authorized by the Bankruptey Courtand in accordance
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with the approved DIP budget, or for any purpose that could materially or adverselv modify or comprormuse the nights of any parts
to the DIP or which would result in the occurrence of an event of default  In addition te certain customary obligations, the DIP
required us to provide certain reports including penodic budget reports penodic cash sources and uses of funds reponts periodic
cash flow forccasts and borrowing base and collateral reports

On May 25 2012 ResCap, GMAC Mongage and RIC along with curtain other guarantor affibates, completed an amendment
10 the LOC 10 provide up to 5220 0 mithion of posi-petition debtor-n-possesston financing (Ally DIP), provided that the aggregate
amount of the pre- and post-petiion draws under the LOC and Ally DIP {plus any unpawd interest, expenses or other costs payable
thereunder) may not exceed $600 0 million, and provided further, any borrowings in excess of $200 0 million shall be made at Al
Inc's sole discretion  The Debtors could use $130 0 million of the proceeds from the Ally DIP solelv for the post-pethiion purpose
of repurchasing FHA and VA loans from GNMA securitizations n connection with delinquency triggers apphicable to GMAC
Mortgage under Chapter 18 of the Ginnie Mac Guide, to elfcct foreclosures, convevances or other normal course loss mitigation
activities and to allow for trial loan modifications under programs implemented by the Debtors  The Debtors could use $50 0 million
of the proceeds from the Ally DIP subject to the limitations noted above for general corporate purposes  The Ally DIP was repaid
on February 5, 2013

Cash Collateral Requirements

In connection with our Chapter 11 Cases, we are required to manage cash in accordance with vanous orders of the Bankrupicy
Court  As such, cenan cash recenved by the Debtors must now be segregated and held as cash collateral in bank accounts (Islands)
spectfic to certain secured creditors The scgregation of cash receipts among the [slands 1s dotermined by the ongin of the cash
recelpt, 1 ¢, cash s allocated to Islands based upon the facility to which the related asset 1s pledged Cash collateral for each Island
can be used only 1n accordance with the terms of the cash collateral orders with cach of our respective secured creditors  The Debtors
may also use addittonal unencumbered cash (including any proceeds of certain unencumbered assets) to fund their operations
Ongong cxpenses incurred by the Debtors not specifically allocated to a particular Island are funded pro-rata with cash from the
Istands based on each Island's respective asset collateral base

Pursuant to the terms of the Bankruptcy Court order authortsing the Debtors to use the cash collateral of Ally Inc and the
holders of the Junmior Secured Notes (“the Jumor Secured Noteholders™), the Debtors' ability to continue using cash collateral was
set to expire upon the closmg of the Section 363 Assel Sales  The partics entered nto several stipulations consensually exlending
the Debtors' use thercod, however, in Apnl 2013, Ally Inc and the Jumor Secured Noteholders determined not to allow the Debtors
to continuc using cash collateral beyond Aprid 18,2013 Asaresult, on Aprl 8, 2013, the Debtors filed amotion requesting authority
to conunue using cash collateral without the consent of Ally Inc and the Jumior Secured Noteholders  The motion currently 1s
scheduled to be heard by the Bankrupicy Court on April 30, 2013 Following the Debtors' filing of the mouen, Ally Inc and the
Junior Secured Noteholders agreed to allow the Debtors 1o continue using cash collateral to April 30, 2013 so that the mouon can
be heard at the Apnl 30, 2013 heaning

Section 363 Asset Sales

As part of our Chapter 11 Cases the Debtors filed a motion with the Bankruptey Court, for, among other things, authonty to
sell substanually all of their assets pursuant to Section 363 of the Bankruptey Code, to establish bidding precedures to permit higher
and better buds, seting a date for an auction should such bids be recerved, and setting a hearing date tor the approval of the sale of
the assets to the winmng bidder(s)

On May 13 2012, as amended and restated on June 28, 2012, ResCap, together with certain of its subsidianes, entered into an
Asset Purchase Agreement with Nationstar Mortgage LLLC (Natonstar) (the Platform Stalking Horse Bid) The assets being sold
in the Platform Statking Horse Bid consisted of the Debtors' mortgage origination and servicing business and certain other mortgage-
related assets (the Platform Asscts), Nationstar was also assuming certam specified habihties

On June 28, 2012 RisCap, together with certamn of 1ts subsidhanies, entered nto an Assel Purchase Agreement with Berkshire
Hathaway Inc (Berkshire) (the Legacy Portfolio Stalking Horse Bid}  I'he assets being sold in the Legacy Porttolio Stalking Horse
Bid consist ol mertgage loans held-for sale and other retained financial assels

The Plattorm Stalking Horse Bid, in addition to the business platforms and other asscts, contemplated the assumption and
assignment of cerian of the Debtors contracts  The Asset Purchase Agreement(s) provided the purchaser(s) the option to exclude
any contract(s} [rom the list ol assumed contracts no later than two day s prior to the closing date(s) Bankruptcy Code Scction 365
requires the Debiors to cure, or provide adequate assurance that it will promptly cure any amounts due under such contrac(s) at the
time of assumpuon On July 26 2012, the Debiors provided notice of the intent to assume and assign certain contracts and the cure
amounts rclated thereto 1 he deadline for objecung to any cure amounts was September 28, 2012 Fhe deadline for objecuing 10
the assumption by the Debiors and assignment to the purchaser(s) was November 19, 2012

24




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residential Caputal, LLLC
(Debtors-in-Posscession)

On October 24 2012, the Debtors completed the aucuon for the Plattorm Assets  1he highest and best bidder was determined
to be Ocwen Loan Senvicing LL.C {Ocwen), subject to the finatization of an asset purchase agreement (the Ocwen Asset Purchase
Agrecment) and confirmation of the bidders financing abihity  The terms of the Ocwen Assct Purchase Agreement included an
assignment provision whereby Ocwen assigned the Ocwen Asset Purchase Agreement and any and ail nghts or obligations there
under to Walier Investment Management Corporation (Walter), or its aftihiates, solely with respect to purchased mortgage scrvicing
nights and related assets 1n respect of Fanme Mae loans and certain assets related to the ongmation of Fanmie Mac loans  Upen
termination of the Platform Stalking Horse Bid we were obligated to pay a break-up fee of $24 0 million to Nationstar  The break-
up fec was recorded te Reorganization ltems on our Censolidated Statement of Comprihensive Income

On October 25, 2812, the Debtors completed the auction for the Ligacy Portfolio Assets  The highest and best bidder was
determined to be Berkshire

On November 20, 2012, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving Ocwen and Berkshire as the purchasers of the Debtors
Platform and Legacy Portlolio Assets 1he Debtors closed the Walter transaction on January 31, 2013 and recerved $492 0 mulhion
in net sales proceeds the Berkshire transaction on February 3, 2013 and recerved $1 410 0 milhon net sales proceeds and the Ocwen
transaction on February 15, 2013 and recened $2 097 8 million n net sales proceeds

Following a heaning on August 29, 2012, the Bankruptcy Court approved the de minimis assel sale moton, whrch set forth
procedures lor the sale of assets under $15 0 million  Addiional asset sales or other dispositions of assets will be made by the
Debtors from ume 1o ume with the goal of maximizing return Any sales in excess of $15 0 million will require approval by the
Bankruptey Coun

Executory Contracts

Under Sccuion 365 of the Bankruptey Code, the Debtors mav assume, assume and assign or reject certain executory contracts
and unexpired leascs, subject to approval of the Bankruptcy Court  In gencral, rejection of an executory contract or unexpired lease
15 treated as a pre-petihion breach and, subject to certain exceptions relieves the Debtors from performing their future obligations
To the extent the Deblors reject an executory contract or unexpired lease, the contract counterparty or lessor 1s entitled to a pre-
peution general unsecured clamm for damages caused by such a breach  Generally, the assumption and assignment of an exccutory
contract or unexptred lease requires the Debtors to cure, or satisfy, all pre-petiion obhigations under such contracts or leases

On July 26, 2012 the Debiors filed a notice of intent o assume and assign certamn execulory contracts unexpired leases of
personal property and unexpired leases of nonresidential real property and cure amounts related thereto  The Debtors expect certain
of their contracts and uncxpired leases (Assumed Contracts) to be assumed and assigned as part of the Scetion 363 Asset Sales The
deadline tor counterpartics objecting to the approval of any cure amounts so provided 1n the notice was September 28, 2012 The
deadline tor counterpartics to object to the assumption by the Debtors and assignment of an Assumed Contract was November 19
2012

The Debtors received 39 objecuions from counterparties with respect 1o cure amounts andfor assumption and assignment of the
Assumed Contracts Anticipated cure amounts were accrucd as of December 31,2012 See Note 13 - Other Liabilities for additional
information  Any cure amounts 1n excess of amounts previously recorded were recorded as executory coniract cure costs on the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  In January and February 2013, the Debtors, paid 3313 1 mullion in connection
with assumed contracts including payments to annie Mac and | reddic Mac of $265 0 million and $39 4 million, respectively  See
Note 23 - Commuments, Contingencics and Other Risks for additional mformation Additional cure amounts could anise 1faddittonal
contracts are assumed and assigned n the future

[he Debtors are aunthonized by the Bankruptey Court to settle cure claims less than $1 0 million without Bankruptey Court
approval Cure clmm setilement amounts in excess ol $1 0 rllton must be approved by the Bankrupicy Court

Reorganmization Plan and Related Settlements

On December 26, 2012, the Bankruptey Court approved the Debtors motion requesting the appontment of a medator to assist
the partics in resolving certain 1ssues related to the formulaton and confirmation of a Plan  There can be no assurance that the
mediation process will continue or will ulimately lead to @ successful agreement among the parties

On February 28 2013 the Bankruptey Court approved the Debtors motion to extend the exclusive periods to file a reorgamization
plan (Exclusine Plan Peniod} with the Bankruptcy Count and solieit acceptance of such plan (Sohicitation Pertod) to May 29, 2013
and July 29, 2013, respectively
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On February 28, 2013 the Bankrupicy Court approved the Debtors motton to appoimt a Chief Restructuning OfTicer (o assist
in the completion of the reorgamization plan

In connection with the motions approved by the Bankruptev Court on I ebruary 28, 2013 the Debtors consented to the UCC
secking standing in the Bankruptcy Court to prosecute and/or settle the Debtors” alleged claims against Ally Inc and agreed to settle
clams agamnst Ally Inc only with UCC consent

In connection with the filings in May 2012, Ally Inc and uts direct and indirect subsichanes and affiliates had reached an
agreement with the Debtors and ceriain creditor constituencics on a prearranged Chapter 11 plan The Plan included the proposed
Ally Group Sculement Agreement, which included, among other things an obhigation of Allv Inc to make a $750 mitlion cash
contribution to the Debtors’ estate and a release of all existing or potental causes of action between Ally Inc and the Debtors, as
well as a release of all existing or potential ResCap related causes of action against Ally Inc held by third parties  As a result of the
termination of the Ally Group Settlement Agreement on February 28 2013, Ally Inc 1s no longer obligated to make the $750 million
cash contribution and neither party 15 bound by the Ally Settlement Agreement  Further, Ally Inc 15 not entitled to recenve any
releases from eather the Dobtors or any third party claimants, as was contemplated under the Plan and Ally Group Settlement
Agreement

As ofthe Pcution Date, two groups of institutional investors in residential mortgage-backed securiues (RMBS Investors) issued
by us and our affiliates and holding at least 25 percent of at least one class m cach of 290 sccuntizations agreed (o sentle alleged
representation and warranty claims agamst the Debtors' estates i exchange for a total $8 7 bilhion allowed claim i the Debtors'
bankruptcy cases, subject to the applicable securitization trustees’ acceptance ot the terms of the settlement (collectively, the RMBS
Settlement) The RMBS Investors also signed separate plan support agrecments (PSAs) wath the Debtors and Ally Inc 1 support
of the Plan at the ume they entered into the RMBS Scutlement  To date, RMBS Investors holding at least 25 percent of at least one
class m cach of 334 sccuntizations have agreed o the RMBS Sctilement  These 334 securitizations have an aggregate onginal
principal balance of approximately $189 billion {out of a total 0f 392 outstanding securilizations sponsored between 2004 and 2007,
which have an aggregate oniginal principal balance 0r$221 Obidlon) The RMBS Settlement 18 subject to Bankruptey Court approval,
and the Bankruptes Court has scheduled a heanng to consider such approval m laie May 2013 The PSAs are not part of this
scheduled Bankruptey Count hearing A number of creditors have rassed objections to the RMBS Scttlement, the trustees represonting
the securitization trusts and Ally Inc have filed statements i support of the Debtors' motion to approve the RMBS Settlement
Separately, the Debtors have faled to meet several Plan milestones in thar bankrupicy cases, each of which has given the RMBS
Investors the nght to terminate the PSAs upon three business days advance wnitten nolice to the Debtors and Ally Inc  The RMBS
Investors have not given the Debtors and Ally Inc such a nouce to date but have the nght to do so at any ume If the RMBS
Settlement 1s not approved or if the RMBS Investors decide not 1o suppert any proposed Plan, 11 could significantly impact the
likelihood of a smooth plan confirmation process

In connection with our Chapter 11 Cases, the Debtors wiil continue to negotiate scttlement agreements w here appropnialte, all
of which will be subject to the approval of the Bankruptey Court  1here can be no assurances that any Plan or proposcd seutlement
will be approved by the Bankruptey Count

Pre-Petition Claims

On June 30, 2012, the Debtors filed siatements and schedules with the Bankruptey Court setting forth the assets and habihties
of cach of the Dcebtors as of the Peution Date  All of these schedules are subject to amendment or modification

Following a hearing on August 29 2012, the Bankrupicy Court approyved the motion 1o sct the Bar Date, which required general
claimanis to submit ¢laims no later than the close of business on November 9, 2012 (subsequenily cxtended to November 16, 2012}
and governmental entities to submit claims no later than the close of business on November 30, 2012 Subject to certain exceptions,
the Bar Daies apply to all claims against the [Dibtors that arose prior to the Petinon Date  Approximately 6,400 proofs of claim
totahing $97 3 billion have been filed against the Debtors  RMBS Trustees were given until March 1, 2013, to file claims and the
Debtors’ continue o recerve amended claims  Approximately 400 addiuonal claims totaling approximately $2 0 bilhon were filed
Claims by creditors will be investuigated and resolved in connection with a claims resolution process, which could include the Debtors
filing objections 1o ¢laims that arc deemed to be unsubstantiated, filed after the Bar Date, resolved through the Dobtors” sales
transactions, and/or duphcative of other claims filed in connection with the Debtors” Chapter 11 Cases  This process 1s expected to
take a constderable amount of time to complete  As a result, the number and amount of allowed claims 1s not known nor can the
ulumate recoserv with respect to allowed claims be estimated at this ime  As claims are resolved, the Debtors will make adjustments
to their recorded habalities as appropriate Any such adjustments could be matenal to our consolidated financial position and results
ol operations

26




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residential Capual, LLC
{Debtors-in-Possession)}

3. Combined Debtor-in-Possession Financial Information

substdiaries and our captive remsurance subsidiary

Following are the Consolidaung Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2012 and the Consohdating Statements of Comprehensive
Income and Cash I'lows for the period May 14, 2012 (the Petiion Date) through December 31, 2012 These Consohdating Financial
Siatements are presented on the same basis as the accompany ing Consolidated Financial Statements  Non-debtor entities include
certain special purpose entities consolidated on our Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with GAAP, our international
Sec Note 7 - Sccuntizations and Vanable Intercst Entines lor additronal

information

Consobdating Balance Sheet

Ehminations and

December 31, 2012 (5 2 thausands) Debtors Non-Debtors reclassifications Consohdated
Assels
Cash and cash cquivalents S1,582,168 848,045 — 51,630,213
Mortgage loans held—for-sale 344,104 16 — 344,120
Finance receivables and loans, net
Consumer 469,923 124,871 — 594,794
Commercial —_ 134 — 134
Allowance for loan losscs — {7,453) - (7,453)
[ otal finance receivablis and loans, net 469,923 117,552 —_ 587,475
Accounts receivable net 1,017,203 4,051 (1,154) 1,020,100
Other assets 326,276 (a) 141,972 (196,730) 271,518
Assets of held-for-sale operations (¢} 6,858,670 — _— 6,858,670
Total assets 510,598,344 $311,636 (8197,884) $10,712,096
Liabilities
Liabilities not subject Lo compromise
Borrowings
Debtor-in-possession credit facilitics $1,449.354 (b) §— $— 51,449,354
Borrowings from Affilhales 1,133,074 2,931 (2,877) 1,133,128
Collateralized borrowings n seeuriization
trusts 147,723 —_— —_ 447,723
Other borrowings 177,698 104,534 — 282,232
[ otal borrowings 3,207.849 107 465 (2,877) 3,312,437
Other habiltties 681,123 (c) 75,244 (29,305) 727,062
Liabilitics of held-for-sale operations (e} 2,780,426 — — 2,780,426
Total liabilitics not subject to compromise 6,069,398 182,709 (32,182) 6,819,925
Liabshties subject to compronise 4,251,990 (d) — 36,775) 4,215,215
Total liabilities 10,921,388 182,709 (68,957) 11,035,140
Equity
Member's interest 11,755,962 3,876,858 (3,876,858) 11,755,962
Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) (12,038,036) (3,746,526) 3,746,526 {12,038,036)
Accumulated other comprehensive income
{ioss) (40,970) (1,405) 1,405 (40.970)
Total equity (323,044) 128,927 (128,927) (323,044)
Total liabilitics and equily 510,598,344 $311,636 (8197,884) §10,712,096

a) Includes $18 7 mulhion of receivables from non-debtors

b} Includes $189 4 million Ally Inc Line of Credit debtor-in-possession credn faciluy
c}  Includes $9 8 mullion ef habilities to non-debtors

d}  Includes $36 8 million of liabikities to non debtors,

)

See Note 4 - Discontnued Operations and Assets and Liabihues of Held-for-Sale for addiuonal infermation
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Consohdanng Statement of Comprehensine Income
For the pervod May 14, 2012 through December 31, 2012

Elimnations
and

(5 1n thousands) Debtors Non-Debtors  reclassifications Consohdated
Revenue
[nterest income §173,625 $5,323 (S245) §178,703
Interest Lxpense 131,471 3,095 (245) 134,321

Net financing revenue 42,154 2,228 — 44,382
Other revenue
Servicing fees 452,615 (178) — 452,447
Servicing asset valuation and hedge activities, net (323,932) — —_ (323,932)
Total servicing ncome, net 128,693 (178) — 128,515
Gain on mortgage loans, net 96,409 (1,190) — 95,219
Gain on foreclosed real estate 4,503 — — 4,503
Other revenue, net 143,277 8,805 (1,498) 150,584

Total other revenue 372,882 7,437 (1,498) 378,821
I otal net revenue 415,036 9,665 (1,498) 423,203
Provision for loan losses (474) (709) — (1,183)
Noninterest expense
Compensation and benefits 318,518 — —_— 318,518
Professional fees 36.058 28 — 36,086
Data processing and telecommunications 88,904 717 — 89,621
Occupancy 10,698 3 — 10,701
Executory contract cure costs 231,452 — — 231,452
Representation and warranty expense, net 30,988 — — 30,988
Mortgage fines and penalties (3.278) — — (3,278)
Other nominterest Lxpense, net 218,076 9,883 (1,744) 226,215

'l otal nominterest expense 931,416 10,631 (1,744) 940,303
Income {loss) from continuing operations hefore

reorganizatton items and income taxes (515,906) (257 246 (515917)
Reorgantsation items 285,068 — —_— 285,068
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
ncome taxes (800,974 (257) 246 (800,985)

Income tax (benefit) expensc (11,087) (138) — (11,225)
Netincome (loss) from continuing operations (789.887) (119) 246 (789,760)
Loss Irom discontinucd operations, nel of lax —_ (127) —_ (127)
Netincome (loss) (789,887) (216) 246 (789,887)
Other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax 24,576 (294) 294 24,576
Comprehensive income (loss) {8765,311) (8540) 5540 (8765,311)
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Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows
Tor the period May 14, 2012 through December 31, 2012

(S 1n thousands} Debtors Non-Debtors  Elimunations  Consolidated

Operating activities
Netincome (loss) (5789.887) {5246) 5246 (8789,.887)

Reconcihiatien of net income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used 1n) operating activitics

Depreciation and amortization 7,291 805 — 8,096
Proviston for loan losses (474) (816) — (1,290)
Gain on mortgage loans net (96,109) 1,190 — (95,219)
Reorganization 1tems 81,579 — — 81,579
Onginauons and purchases of morigage loans held—for—
sale (2,294,938) (30) — (2,294,968)
Proceeds from sales and repayments of mortgage loans
held-tor—sale 2,049,747 — — 2,049,747
Net gain on other assets (3,247) (207) — (3.454)
Change 1o Lair value ot morlgage scrvicing rights 324,117 — — 324,117
Net change in
Accounts recetvable 2,251,680 5,701 281 2,257,662
Other assets (2,854,181) (9,485) 54,529 {2,809,137)
Chher hiabilities 1,099,245 430,712 (58,018) 1,471,939
Net cash provided (used ) by operating activities (225477 427,624 (2,962) 199,185

Investing activities

Net decreasc in consumer morigage finance recevables and

loans 236,979 24,287 — 261,266
Nel decrease in commercial finance receivables and loans 386 3,694 — 4,080
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed and owned real estate 27,830 — — 27,830
Net decrease n resinicted cash 9,210 231,837 — 241,047
Other, nel 41,994 49 —_ 42,043
Net cash provided by investing activities 316,399 259,867 — 576,266
linancing activities
Net decrease 1n borrowings from Afliliates (252,716) 48 2,668 (250,000)
Repayments of collateralized borrowings in sccurnitization

trusts (194,236) — — (194,236)
Proceeds from debtor-1n-possession credit facilities 1,449,354 — —_ 1,449,354
Proceeds from other borrowings 140,769 3,257 — 144,026
Repayments of other borrowings (150,358) (688,772) — (839,130)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing acuivities 992,813 (685,467) 2,668 310,014
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash and

cash equivalents 4,109 590 294 4,993
Net increase in cash and cash equis alents 1,087,844 2,614 —_ 1,090,458
Cash and cash equivalents at May 13, 2012 494,324 45,431 — 539,755
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2012 $1,582,168 $48.,045 §— $1,630,213
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4. Discontinued Operations and Assets and Liabihties Held-for-Sale

On May 11, 2012 RFC and 1ts whollv owned subsidiary GMAC RFC Auntec, S A sold all of the oulstanding ordinary Class
I and Class 1l shares of GMAC Financiera, S A de CV SOFOM, ENR (GMAC Fmanciera) to a third parts lor $100 and a full
irrevocable and unconditional release and ermination of guarantees by ResCap and certain of 1ts subsidianies related to $124 3
million medium-term notes issued by GMAC Financiera We recogmized a gamn of $19 7 million upon completion of the sale  The
gain 1s recorded 1 net income (loss) from discontinued operanions on our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

On October 1, 2010, we completed the sale of our United Kingdom (U K Y and contingntal Europe {CE) platforms (collectively
IBG) These platforms included residential mortgage loan onigunation, acquisiion, servicing, assel management sale, and
secuntizations in the Unitcd Kingdom and continental Europe (the Nethertands and Germany }

The associated operations and cash flows have been eliminated from our operauions, and we do not have any continuing
mvolvementin GMAC IN'nanciera or IBG  For all peniods presented, the operating results were removed from continuing operations
and are presented separately as discontnued operations, netofinx The Notes to our Consehdated Mnancial Statements were adjusted
to exclude discontinued operations

Selected financial mformauon for these discontunued operations are summarized below

Year ended December 31, (3 w1 thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Total net revenue $17,350 ($34,211) $56 859
Provision tor loan losscs (107 27 993 28,870
Nomnterest expense 633 4 460 (5,286)
Income (loss) befere income taxes including direct costs to transact a sale 16,824 (86 664) 33.275
Incomc tax (benefit) expense 136 (580) (3,15%)
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations 516,688 ($86,084) $36,430

Section 363 Asset Sales

On November 20, 2012, the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving Ocwen, Walter and Berkshire as the purchasers of
the Debtors Platform and Legacy Portfolio Assets  The Debtors closed the Walier transaction on January 31, 2013 the Berkshire
transaction on February 5, 2013 and the Qewen transaction on February 15, 2013 The Platform Assets and the Legacy Portfolio
Assels are collectively considered to be a disposal group  The associated assets and habiliies were reclassified to held-for-sale
operations at December 31, 2012

Scction 363 asset sales did not meet the enteria for discontinued operations We will retaun a portfolio of assets that were
histonically originated through the platforms beng sold

W also reclassified a portion ol our on-balance sheet securitizations to assets and habilities of held-for-sale operations Upon
complection of the sales, we will no longer hold any vanable or controlling interests i the securitization entities at which point the
sceuritization trusts will be deconsolidated

We did not recogmze any impairment in connechion with the classification of these held-lor-sale operations as the fair value
less transaction costs exceeds the carrying value  The fair value less cost 1o sell was determined bascd on the exceuted purchasc
agreements as amended

In hght ofthe sigmificance of the disposal group to our overall financial condition and business operations, we have voluntanily
mcluded expanded disclosures with respectto the assets and habuhues ofheld-for-sale operations  To the extentapplicable disclosures
related to assets and habiliues of held-for-sale operatons are ncluded in the Notes to the Consolidated | inancial Statements and
are separzicly presented from continuing operations in tables and/or the notes thereto

[n accordance with the terms of the Platform Asset sales, upon closing, 1% of the purchase price with respect o each transaction
(Indemnusy Escrow Amount) was deposited into escrow accounts as a source of payment for potenual indemnification by the Debtors
against any losses incurred by Ocwen or Walteransing from a breach of  ‘Core Representations™ (as identified in the Assct Purchase
Agreement), which include, among other representations with respect to our financial siatements absence of certain changes or
events utletoassets purchased assets used in the business, the mortgage servicing portfolio scrvicing agreements matnat contracts,
Ginmie Mac loans, and certain matters related to real property leases hitigation and intellectual properts  The maximum
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mdemnification obligation of the Debtors cannot exceed the Indemnity Escrow Amount  [he indemmificauion obligations terminaie
on the carlier of one year from the respective transaction closing date and the entrv of a final order closing the Debtors' Chapter 11
Cases c¢xcept In the case of an outstanding claim aganst the escrow account in which case the termination date for that account
shall be the date upon which all such claims arc resolved  On January 31 2013, a $4 9 mitlion Indemnuty Escrow Amount was
deposited 1n connection with the Walter transaction On Februany 15,2013, a $20 9 million Indemmity Escrow Amount was deposited
n connection with the Ocwen transaction  On the termination date, any rematning Indemmty Escrow Amounts will be paid to the

Debtors

The asscts and labilives of our held-for-sale operations are summanzed below

(S wn thousands)

December 31, 2012

Assets

Morigage loans held—for—sale ($30,709 fair value elected)

5 3,886,793 (n)

Fmance receivables and loans, net ($60 977 tair value elected) 60,977
Mortgage scrvicing nghts 809,006
Accounts recewvable, net 2,028,372
Other assels 73,522

L otal assets 56,858,670
Liabihttes

Collateralized borrowings 1n sccuniiization grusts ($53,039 fair value clected) 553,039
Other habilities ($28,649 fair value clected) 2,727,387 (a)
Total lhiabilittes §2,780,426

(ay Includes montgage loans subject to conditional repurchase options of S2 5 bilkton sold to Ginme Mae guaranteed securiizations and 384 7

million sold to off-balance sheet private-label secuntization trusts at December 31, 2012

Recurring Fair Value

The following table presents the assets and habilities of our held-for-sale operations measured at fair value on a recurning basis
Refer to Note 20 — Fair Value, for descriptions of valuation methodologies used to measure material assets and habilitics at {fair

value and details of the valuation models, key nputs to these models, and significant assumptions used

Recurring fair value measurements

December 31, 2012 (3 in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels
Mortgage loans held—tor-sale (a) §5— S1,504 $29,205 $30,709
Consumer mortgage finance recervables and loans, net (a) — — 60,977 60,977
Mortgage scrvicing nights — — 809,006 809,006
Other assels
Trading secuntics

Mortgage— and asset— backed residential — 351 25,750 26,101

I otal assets S— 51,853 $924,938 §926,793

Lizbilities
Collateralized borrowings

On-balance sheet secuntization debt (a) §— 5—
Other habilities

Laability for option to repurchasc assels (a) — —

(553,039) (5853,039)

(28,64%)  (528,649)

1otal liabilitics S— §—

(581,688) (S81,688)

(a) Carned at fawr value due to fair value option elections
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The follow ing Lable presents quantitaus L information regarding the significant unobservable inputs used in valuing maienal
Level 3 assets and habihues from our held-for-sale operations measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Level 3
recurring Valuation Unobservable
December 31,2012 (8 in thousands) menasurements  (echmique input Range
Assets
Ceonsumer mortgage finance recenvables and loans Discounted
net (b} $60,977 cash flow Prepayment rate 32%-184%
Drefault rate 12%- 12 8%
Loss severity 40 0% - 100 0%
Mortgage servicing rights 809,000 {a) (a) {a}
Liabilities
Collateralized borrowings
On-balance sheet secuntization debt ($53,039) (b) (b) (b)

(a) See Note 8— Servicing Activities and Note 1 - Description of Business, Basis of Presentatton and Changes in Significant Accounting Policies
for information related to the significant unebservable inputs and valuauon techniques used 1n the mongage servicing nights fur value
measurement

(b} A pertfolio approach links the value of the consumer morgage finance receivables and loans, net to the on-balance sheet secuntizabion debt,
therefore the valuation techmgue, unobservable inputs, and related range for the debt 1s the same as the loans [ncreases 1n prepaymenis which
would pnmanly be driven by anv combination of lower projected morigage rates and higher projected home values, would result in higher
fair value measurement These drivers of higher prepayments {increased ability to refinance due 1o lower rates and higher propeny values)
have an opposite impact on the defauls rate creating an inverse relationship between prepayments and default frequency on the fair value
measurements Generally factors that contnibute to ligher default frequency also contribute to htgher loss severity

I'he tollowing table presents the reconcihation for all Level 3 assets and liabihties of our held-for-sale operations measured at
fair value on a recurring basis  [he table does not dully reflect the impact of our nisk management activitics  We reclaswified the
assets and hiabihties of our held-for-sale operations during the fourth quarter 2012 Thus the beginning balance for the below table
represents September 30, 2012 ending balances

Level 3 recurring fair value measurements

et gains/{losses)

September December
30,2012 mncluded in carnings 31,2012
Level 3 fair realized unreahzed Level 3 fare
(S wn thousand's) value gams (losses}  gains (losses)  Purchases Sales Issuances  Settlements value
Assets
Mortgage loans held-for-sale $31395 ($187) {5587} $6,589 §— 5— {57,305 £29,205
Consumer mortgage finance
receavables and loans net 64,278 12,121 {(a) (795} {a) — - — (14,627) 60,977
Mortgage servicing rights 849,544 -_ (40,915} (b) - — 37 — 809,006
Other assets
Trading securities
Mortgage- and asset-backed
residential securitics 27363 {80} (<) 1,824 {c) (3.357) 25,750
Total assets 5972,580 511,754 (540,473} 56,589 5— 8317 (825,889} $914,938
1 tabilities
Collaterahzed borrowings
On-balance sheet securinzatton debt (§5627) 8 (1 102)(a} § {B.576) (n) — 5— 5— 512,909 {553,039)
Cther habslities
Liabihity for option to repurchase
assets (30,239) 287 587 (6,589) - — 7305 {28,64%)
Total habslittes (586.509) (8315) (57 989} ($6,589) 5— 5— 520214 ($81,648)

(a) Fairvalue adjustment reported i other revenue net and related tnterest on loans and debt are reported 1 interest ncome and terest expense respeenvely
(b)  Fair value adjusiment reported in servicing asset valuation and hedge activities net
{c}  Fair value adjustment reported in other revenue net Interest accretion on these assets 15 reported i anterest income
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Nonrecurring Fair Value

We may be required to measure certain assets or habilities at tair value from time-to-ume  These penodic fair value measures

typically result from applicauon of lower of cost or fair value or certam impairment measures

{hese mems would consutute

nonrecurring {air value measures The table below presents those assets and liabilures ot our held-for-sale operattons which we

measured al fair value on a nonrecurring basis

Nonrecurring Lower of cost
fair v alue measures L otal or fair value
estimated or saluation
Dyecember 31, 2012 (5 1n thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value allowance
Mortgage loans held—for—sale §— S— $140,305 $140,305 (839,032)
Foreclosed assets §— $— S— 5—
[otal §5— §— $140,305 $140,305 (839,032)

The following 1able presents quantitative information regarding the significant uncbservable inputs used in +aluing sigrificant

Level 3 assets from our held-for-sale operations measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis

Level 3
nonrecurring Valuation Unobservable Range (weighted
December 31,2012 (8 e thousands) measurements techmique mput average)
Assels
Discounted cash
Mortgage loans held-for-sale $140 305 flow Prepay ment speeds 87%-127%

Default rate 54%- 16 1%
Loss scverity 50 5% - 98 5%
Discount Rate 14 55%
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5.

Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sale

T he compoesition of residennial morigage loans held—for—sale reported at carry ing value, were as follows

2012
Continuing Held—for-sale
December 31, (S i thousands) operations operations 2011
Ist Mortgage
[omestic (a) $331,121 £3.309,735 (b) 33497392 (b)
Foruign 5,877 — 12,011
Fotal 1st Mortgage 336,998 3,309,735 3,509,403
Home equiy
Domestic 7,106 577.058 740,222
Foreign 16 — —
lotal Home Lquity 7122 577,058 740,222
lotal {c} $344,120 $3,886,793 $4,249,625
(a) Includes mortgage loans for which we have clected the fair value option of $13 2 million and $30 7 million at December 31 2012 and $57 ¢
millen at December 31 2011 See Note 20 — Faur Value for additional informanion
(b) Includes mortgage loans subject to conditional repurchase options of $2 5 billion and $2 3 bilhon sold o Ginmie Mae guaranteed secunuzations
and $84 7 mtlhon and $105 8 mithon sold to off-balance sheet private-label secunitizatton trusts at December 31, 2012 and December 31 2011,
respectively  The corresponding biabulits 1s recorded i hiabilities of held-for sale operations and other habihties respectively  See Note 7 —
Sccurntizations and Vanable [nterest Entities for additional information
(¢) 1he carrying values are net of discounts of $24 0 mullion 5268 6 tullion and $313 1 mullion, fair value adjustments of 30 3 mullion $(30 2)
million and $(28 0) million lower of cosl or fair value adjustments of $12 5 mullion $39 0 million and 560 2 miilion, and unpaid principal
balance (UPB) wnie-downs of S0 9 milhion 31 2 billion and S1 5 bilhon at December 31, 2012 and December 31 2011, respecuvely
6. Finance Receivables and Loans, Net
I he composttion of finance receivables and loans, net reported at carrying value before allowance for loan losses, were as
follows
2012
Continuing Held-for-sale
December 31, (8 in thousands) Operations aperations 2011
Consumer
st Mortgage
Domestic $125,707 510,646 $130,024
Foreign — — 256,494
Home equity - Domestic 169,087 50,331 636212
Total consumer (a) (b) 594,794 60,977 1022730
Commercial
Commercial and industnal - foreign — — 23 860
Commercial reat estate - foreign i34 — 14 157
Tolal commercial 134 — 38,017
1 otal finance receivables and loans $594,928 360,977 $1 060 747
(a) Consumer mortgages include 3469 ¢ mullion 361 O muilion and $833 2 mullion at fair value as a result of fair value oplion elections  See
Note 20 — Fair Value for additional infermation
(b}  The gross carrving value 1s net of fair value adjustments of $1 @ ballion, $117 5 millien and St 6 billion and UPB wnite-downs of S0 0 milhon,

30 0 milhon and 38 0 mullion respectiveh
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The following 1able presents the acuvity 1n the allowance for loan losses on finance recen ables and loans, net

2012 2011
Year ended December 31,
(3 in thousands) Consumer Commeraal Total Consumer  Commercial Total
Allowance at January 1 513,638 $14,978 $28.616 $17,681 $25,129 $42 810
Provision for loan losses
From continuing operations 1,655 (2,948) (1,293) (5,143) 1,17t (3,972)
From disconunued operations (107) (107) 5,823 22170 27993
Charge-offs
Domesuic (4,238) — {4,228) (6,453} — (6,453)
I orcign {660) (G1) (721) (3410} (42 018) (45 428)
Total charge-ofls (4,898) (61) (4,959 (9 863) (42 018) (51 881)
Recovernies
Domestic 100 679 779 5,140 1,716 6 856
Foreign 55 2,853 2,908 — 6 810 6 810
Total recoverntes 155 3,532 3,687 3,140 8,526 13 666
Net charge-offs (4,743) 3471 {1,272) (4,723) (33,492) (38,215
Sale of business unit (3,097) (15,394) {18,491) — — —
Allowance at December 31 $7,453 S— §7,433 $13.638 $14 978 $28.616
Allowance for loan losses
Individually evaluated for impairment §2,538 §— §2,538 $3,035 $14 978 $18.013
Collectively evaluated for impawrment 4,915 —_ 4,915 10,603 — 10,603
IMnance recervables and loans
Individualty evaluated for impairment $7,299 5134 $§7,433 $8.,055 $38,017 $46.072
Collectively evaluated for impairment 117,572 — 117,572 179,483 — 179,483

(¥
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['he follow ing table preseats our past duc finance receivables and loans ncluding finance receivables and loans classified as
assets of our held-for-sale operations a1 gross carrying value

90 days
30-59 days  60-89 days  or more lotal
December 31, {8 n thousands) past due past due past due past due Current Total
2012
Consumer mortgage
Continuing operations
1st Mortgage §12,559 §3,353 §$41,708 §59,620 566,088  5125,708
Home equity 8,447 4,240 7,146 19,833 449,253 469,086
Total consumer continuing operations 21,006 9,593 48,854 19,453 515,341 594,794
Held—-for-sale operations
I1st Mortgage 1,065 192 2,354 3,611 7,035 10,646
Home cquity 1,263 566 2,301 4,130 46,201 50,331
Total consumer held-lor-sale operauons 2,328 758 4,655 7,741 33,236 60,977
Commercial
Commercial and industrial _— _ —_ — — —
Commercial real estate — — 134 134 — 134
Total commercial continuing operations — — 134 134 — 134
Total §23,334 510,351 §53,643 §87,328  §568,577  $655,905
201
Consumcr mortgage
Ist Mortgage 329,730 514664  $158255 $202,649  §183,809  $386,518
Home cquity 13 064 6,488 11 850 31,402 604,810 636212
Total consumer 42,794 21,152 170,105 234 051 788,679 1,022,730
Commercial
Commercial and industrial — — 322 322 23 538 23,860
Commeroial real estate — 1,736 12,212 13,948 209 14,157
Total commercial — 1,736 12,534 14,270 23,747 38,017
Total $42,794 $22,888  $182,639  $248 321 $812,426 51,060 747

The following table presents the gross carrying value ol our finance reccivables and loans in nonaccrual status

December 31, (5 m thousands) 2012 2011
Consumer mortgage

Continuing operations

1st Mortgage $55,968 $199,702
Home equity 24,828 36 651
Total consumer continuing operations 80,796 236,353
Held—for—sale operations
151 Mortgage 2,825 —
Home cquity 4,670 —
Total consumer held-for—sale operations 7495 —
Commercial
Commercial and industrial — 322
Commercial real estate 134 12,212
Total commercial continuing operattons 134 12,534
Total $88,425 $248,887

Management performs a quarterly analysis of its consumer and commercial finance receavable and loan portfolies using a range
of credit quahity indicators to assess the adequacy of the allowance based on histonical and current trends  Based on our allowance
methodology, our credit quality indhcators lor consumer mortgage loans are performing and nonperforming and for commercial
mertgage finance receivables and loans are pass and cniticizud
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Ihe follow ing table presents the credit quality indicators lor our consumer morigage loan pontfolio including finance recerv ables
classified as assets of our held-for-sale operations, at gross carry ing value

2012 2011
December 31, (8n thousands) Performing Nenperforming 1 otal Performing Nonperforming Total
Consumcr mortgage
Contnuing operations
Ist Morgage 869,739 §55.,968 S125,707 5186,816 $199,702 $386,518
Home equity 144,259 24,828 469,087 599,561 36,651 636,212
fotal consumer continuing
opcrations $513,998 580,796 $594,794 $786,377 $236353 §$1,022,730
Held-tor-sale operauons
1st Mortgage 57,821 $2,825 $10,646 5— — $—
Home equity 45,661 4,670 50,331 — — —
lotal consumer held-lor—sale
operations 853,482 $7.495 $60,977 —_ —_ —_

The following table presents the ercdit quahty indicators for our commercial finance recenable and loan portfohio at gross
carrving value  There were no commercial leans classified as held—for—sale operations at December 31, 2012

2012 2011
December 3, (81 thousands) Pass Criticized {a) I otal Pass Cniticized (a) Total
Commercial
Commeraial and industral S— §— §— 5— $23 860 $23.860
Commereial real cstale — 134 134 209 13 948 14 157
Total commercial $—- 5134 $134 $209 $37 808 $38 0L7

{a) Includes loans classified as special menton substandard or doubtful These classifications generallv represent loans 1n our portfolio that are
of higher default risk

As of December 31, 2012, the five largest state concentrauions based on carrying value for our U S —only finance receivables
and loans, net were as (ollows

Continuing  lleld—for-sale

December 31,2012 operations operations
California 95% 12 7%
Ohio 69 48
Michigan 63 §3
Texas 48 3o
Flonda 45 45
Other 630 667
Total 100 0% 100 0%

7. Secuntizations and Variable Interest Entities

Overview

W are involved 1n scveral types of securitization and financing transacuions that uulize special-purposc entities (SPEs) A
SPL 1s an entity that s designed to flfill o specified limited need of the sponsor  Qur principal use of SPEs 15 to obtain hquidity
by securiizing certan of our financial asscls

The SPEs mvolved in securitization and other financing transactons are generally considered VIEs  VIEs are entities that have

either a total equity nvestment that 1s insuffictent to permit the entity to finance its activities wathout additional subordinated financial
supporl or whose equity investors lack the ability to control the entity’s activitics
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Securitizatiens

We provided a wide range of consumer mortgage loan products to a diverse customer base  We often secunitized these loans
through the use of secunitization entiics which may or may not be consolidated on our Consolidated Balance Sheet We secuntized
conforming residenuial mortgage loans through GSE secunitizatiens and we histonically secunitized nonconforming mortgage loans
through private-label secuntizations

In executing a securitization transaction we sell pools of financial assets to a separate, transaction—gpecific securization entity
for cash, servicing rights, and in some transactions, other retamed interests  [n the case of prnivate-label securitizations, we sold the
financial assets 1o a wholly owned bankruptey remote SPE, which then transferred the financial assets o the transaction specific
entity The secuntization entity 1s funded through the 1ssuance ofbeneficial interests in the secunitized financial assets | he benefical
mterests take the form of cither notes or trust certificates that are sold to investors and/or retained by us  These beneficial interests
are coklateralised by the transferred loans and enutle the investors to speeified cash flows generated from the secunitized loans  In
the aggregate, these beneficial interests have the same average hie as the transferred financial assets

Each secunitization 1s governed by vanous legal documents that hmit and speaify the activities of the securitization entity The
securttization entity 15 generally aliowed to acquure the loans to 1ssuc beneficial intercsts 10 mnvestors to fund the acquisition of the
loans, and to enter into derivauves or other yteld mamntenance contracts (e g . coverage by monohine bond nsurers) to hedge or
nutrgate certain risks related to the financial assets or beneficial interests ofthe untity A servicer, who was generally us, 1s appointed
pursuant to the underlyving legal documents to scrvice the assets the securiizauon entity holds and the beneficial interests it 1ssues
Servicing functions mclude, but are not kmited to, making certain payments of properly taxes and msurance premms, default and
property mamntenance pavments, as well as advancing principal and interest payments before collectmg them from individual
borrowers  Our servicing responsibifities, which constitute continued involvement 1n the transferred financial assets, consist ot
primary servicing (1 e, servicing the underlying transferred financial assets) and/or master servicing (1 ¢, servicing Lthe beneficial
interests that result from the secunitization transactions) Certain secuntization vntities also require the servicer Lo advance scheduled
principal and interest payments due on the beneficial mterests 1ssued by the entity repardless of whether cash payments are received
on the underlying transferred financial assets Accordingly, we are required to make these servicing advances when applicable  Sce
Note 8 — Servicing Activihies for addittonal information regarding our servicing rights

Thu GSEs provide a guarantee ot the payment ot pnincipal and interest on the beneficial intercsts issued tn securiizations  In
privatc-label securitizations, cash flows from the assets imtially transferred into the sccuriization entity represent the sole source
for pay ment of distributions on the beneficial interests 1ssued by the secuntizauon entity and for pay ments to the parties that perform
services for the securitization entity such as the servicer or the trustee  [n certan private-label securitizaiton transactions a liquidity
facility may exist to provide temporary hquidity to the entitv . The liquidity provider generally is reimbursed prior to other parties
1n subsequent distribution periods  Monoline msurance may alse exist to cover certain shortfalls to certan investors in the beneficial
interests 1ssued by the securiization entity As noted above, in certain priv ate-label securtizations, the servicer is requured Lo advance
scheduled princapal and interest payments duc on the beneficial interests regardless of whether cash payments are recenved on the
underlymg transterred financial assets The serviceris allowed to reimburse itslf for these servicing advances Addnonally cenain
private-label securiizauion transactions may allow for the acquisition of addinenal loans sebsequent to the imtial loan transfer
Principal collections on other loans and/or the 1ssuance of new beneficial mterests such as vaniable tunding notes, generatly fund
these loans, we arc often contractually required to invest in these new interests

We may retain beneficial interests in our private-tabel securiizations, which may represent a form of sigmificant continuing,
economic interest These retaned interests include, but are not hmited to, senior or subordinate mortgage— or asset-backed secunities,
nterest-only strips, principal-only strips, and residuals  Certain of these retained interests provide credit enhancement to the trust
as they mav absorb credit losses or other cash shortfalls  Additienally, the secunitization agreements may require cash lows to be
directed away from centain of our retaned interests due o specific over—collaterahization requirements, which may or may not be
performance-driven

We generally hold certain conditional repurchase options that allow us to repurchase assets from the secuniuzation entity  The
majonty of the secuntizations provide us, as servicer, with a call option that allows us to repurchase the remaining transferred
financial assets or outstanding beneficial interests at our chscretion once the asset pool reaches a prudefined level which represents
the point where servicing becomes burdenseme (a clean—up call option) The repurchase price 1s typically the par amount of the
loans plus accrued mterest Additionally, we may hold other conditional repurchase options that allow us to repurchase a transferred
financial asset1f certain events outside our control are met 1 he tvpical conditional repurchase optton 1s a delinquent loan repurchase
option that gives us the option to purchase the loan if it exceeds a certan prespeaified delinquency level We have discretien regarding
when or 1f we will exercise these opuens but generally we would do so only when 1t 18 1 our best interest

Other than our customary representation and warrants obligations, these securitizations are nonrccourse to us thereby
wansternng the risk of future credit fosses 1o the extent the beneficial interests in the securitization entities are held by third parties
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Representation and warranty provisions generally require us 1o repurchase loans or indemmify the innvestor or other partv for incurred
losses to the extent 1t 15 determined that the loans were nehgible or were otherwise defective at the ume of sale See Note 23 —
Commuments Contingencies and Other Risks for detaill on representaton and warranty provisions  We did not provide any
nonconiractual financial support to any of these entines dunag the year ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Other Variable Interest Entities

Debtor-in-Possession Credit Facility Entitres — On May 15, 2012, the Debtors obtaincd Bankruptcy Court intersm approval
of a fully commutted $1 45 billion supurprionity sentor sccured debtor-1n-possession credit facility  In connection with this faciluy,
four SPEs were created GMACM Borrower, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiany of GMAC Mortgage GMACM REO LLC, awholly
owned subsidiary of GMAC Borrower, LLC, RFC Borrower, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of RFC, and Ri'C REO, LLC, a
wholly owned subsidiary of RI'C Borrower, LL.C {collectively the DIP Entitiesy  We have concluded that these entities meet the
criteria of a variable interest entity The DIP Entities were established o provide financing for the Debtors in connection with their
Chapter 1t Cases The DIP Entities purchased certain assets as of May 16, 2012, mcluding certamn of the Debtors’ servicer advance
reccivables and morigage loans held-for-sale  Proceeds can be usced for general corporate purposes subject to certain conditions
The servicer advance recetvables consist of delinguent principal and interest advances we made as servicer (o various investors
property taxes and insurance premiums advanced to taxing authonties and insurance compames on behalfofborrowers and amounts
advanced for mortgages 1n forectosure  The DIP Entiuies funded the purchase of the receivables and loans through financing obtained
from third-party lenders  Lhe DIP Entiiies are consohidated on our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 2012 ResCap,
GMAC Mortgage, RE'C and certain other subssdianies ol ResCap are guarantors under the DIP We have not provided noncontractual
financial support to the DIP Enuties duning the year ended December 31, 2012

Home Lguity NNunding Entity — To assist i the financing of certain of our home equity mortgage loans, we formed a SPE that
1ssued variable funding notes to third-party mvestors that are collateralized by home equaty loans and revolving lines of credit This
SPL 15 consolidated on our Consolidated Batance Sheets at Devember 31, 2012 and 2011 The beneficial interest holders of this
VIL do not have legal recourse to our gencral credit We do not have a contractudl obhgauion to provide any type of tinancial support
in the future, nor have we provided noncontractual financial support to the untity duning the yearended December 31 2012 and 2011

Servicer Advance Funding Entity — To assistin the linancing of our scrvicer advance receivables, we formed a SPE that issued
term and vanable funding notes to third-party 1nvestors that were collateralized by servicer advance receivables  These servicer
advance recewvables were transferred to the SPL and consisted of delinquent principal and mterest advances we made as servicer Lo
various mvestors, property taxes and surance premums advanced to taxing authontics and msurance companies on behalf ol
borrowers and amounts advanced for morigages in foreclosure  The SPE funded the purchase of the recer ables through financing
obtained from the third—party mmvestors and subordinated loans or an equity contnibution from us  This facility was paid in full on
May 16, 2012 from the procceds of the DIP | he SPE was consolidated on our Consohidated Balance Shect at December 31, 2011
The third-party interest holder(s) of this SPE did not have legal recourse 1o our general eredit  We did not provide noncontraciual
financial support to the entity during the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Other — We have invol vement with other immaternial on-balance sheet VIEs Mostotthese VIEs are used for addittonal hquidity
whereby we sell contain financial assets to the VIE and 1ssue beneficial interests to third parties tor cash

Involvement with Variable Interest Entities

The determination of whether financial asscts transferred by us to VILs (and related liabihities) are consolidated on our balance
sheet (also referred to as on—balance sheet) or not consohdated on our balance sheet (also referred to as off-balance sheet) depends
on the terms of the related transactton and our continuing mvolvement (1f any) with the SPE We are deemed the primary beneficiary
and, therefore consolidate VIEs for which we have both (a) the power through voting rights or similar rights to dircct the activitics
that most significanthy mmpact the VIE’s economic performance, and (b) a v aniable interest {or vanable interests) that (1) obhigates
us to absorb losses that could potenually be significant to the VIE and/or (1) provides us the right to receive residual returns of the
VIE that could potentially be sigmficant to the VIE We determne whether we hold a sigmificant variable intercst in a VIE based
on a constderation of both qualitative and quanutative factors regarding the nature size and form of our invelvement with the VIE
W assess whether we are the pnmary berefician of a4 VIE on an ongoing basis
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Our s olvement with consolidated and nonconsohidated VIEs in which we hold a vanable interest were as follows

Maximum
Consolidated Assets of exposure to loss in
imvolvement nonconsohdated nonconsclidated
December 31, (5 1 thousands) with VIEs V1Es, net (a) V1Es (b)
2012
On-balance shect vanable nterest entities
Private-label securitizations
Continuing operations $521,651 5— S—
Held-lor-sale operations 60,581 — —
Debior-in-possesston credit facility — —
Continuing operations 27,921 —_ —
Held-for-sale operations 1,218,712 — —
Home equity funding 117,924 — —
Other 2,480 — —
Oft-balance sheet vanable intercst entities
Gnnie Mace sceunttizations - |leld-for-sale operations 2,521,475 (¢) 35,995,842 35,995,842
Privale-label securitizations - Held-for-sale operations 84,794 (d) 2,548,205 2,548,205
Total $4,555,538 $38,544,047 $38,544,047
2011
On-balance sheel variable interest entaties
Private-label securitizations $939,159 — $—
Servicer advance funding 955,823 — —
Home equity funding 156,423 — —
Other 2,541 — -—
Off—balance sheet v anable interest entities
Ginnie Mae securitizations 2,651,939 (¢) 44 126,607 44,126,607
Private-label securitizations 140,709 (d) 4,408,206 4,408,206
Fotal $4.846,594 $48 534,813 348,534,813

(a)  Asset values represent the current UPB of outstanding consumer mortgage loans within the VIEs

(b)  Maximum exposure o loss represents the current UPB of outstanding consumer mortgage loans based on our customary representation and
warranty provistons  This measure 1s based on the unhikelv event that all of the loans have underwnung defects or other defects that tngger a
representation and warranty provision and the collateral supporting the loans 1s worthless This required disclosuse 1s not an indication of our
expected loss

(c) Includes 30 0 mullion and $377 8 rmllion of mortgage servicing nights and $2 5 billien and $2 3 bilhon of mortgage loans hetd-for—sale that
are subject to condiuional repurchase options at December 31, 2012 and December 31 2011, respectively  The corresponding hability related
to condional repurchase option loans 1s recorded in habalities of held -for-sale operauons and other habiliies respecuively

(d) Includes 50 1 mallion and $26 5 million classified as other assets, $0 0 mtllron and $8 4 milhon classified as mortpage servicing nghts and
$84 7 millon and $105 8 million of mertgage loans held—for-sale that ase subject to conditional repurchase options at December 31 2012 and
December 31 2011 respecunely  The corresponding habihts related to conditional repurchase option loans 1s recorded 1n habihities of held-
for-sale operations and other habilimes respectively

On-balance Sheet Variable Interest Entities

We engaged i secuniization and other financing ransacuions that did not qualify for off-balance sheet treatment In these
situations we hold bencficial interests or other intercsts i the VIE, which represents a form of significant continuing economic
interest  The interests held melude, bin are not himted to, semor or subordinate morigage— or asset—backed securities, interest—only
strips, principal-only sinps reswduals, and servicing nghts  Certain of these retained interests provide ¢redit enhancement to the
securiization entity as they may absorb credn losses or other cash shortfalis Addiwonally, the securitization documents may require
cash flows to be directed away [rom certain of our retained interesis duc to specific over—collaterahizaton requirements which may
or may nei be performance-driven  Because these securitization entites are consolidated, these retaned interests and servicing
nghts arc not recognized as separate assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheet

We consolidate centain of these entines because we have a controlling financial interest in the VIE primanly due to our servicing,
activitics and because we hold 2 significant vanable interest in the VIE  We are the primary benefician of certamn private-label
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securitizatzon entities for which we perform servicing activiiies and have retained a significant vanable interest i the form of a

beneficial interest In cases where we did not meet sale accounting conditions under prevtous guidance unless we have made

modifications to the overall transaction, we do not meet sale accounting conditions under the current gmdance  In cases where w
substantive modifications are made, we reassess the transaction under the amended putdance based on the new circumstances

Consolidated VIEs represent separate entities with which we are invohved The third—party investors i the obligations of
consolidated VIEs have legal recourse only to the asscts ofthe VIEs and do nothave recourse to us, ¢ xcept for customary re presentation
and warranty provisions or sttuations where we are the counterparny to certain derivative transactions involving the VIE  Cash flows
from the assets are restnicted only Lo pay such hlabiliies Thus our econoemic exposure to loss from outstanding third-party financing
related 1o consolidated VIEs 1s significantly less than the carry ing value of the consolidated VIE assets  All assets are rustricted for
the bene (it of the beneficial inerest holders See Note 20 — Fair Value for discussion of the assets and abilhities for which the fair
value option has been elected

Off-balance Sheet Variable Interest Entities

The nature, purposce, and activities ol'nonconsohidated secunitization entities are similar 1o those of ourconsolidated secuntization
entities with the primary dilference being the naturc and extent of our continuing involvement  The cash flows from the asscts of
nonconsolidated securitization entities generally are the sole source of payment on the securitization entities” habilities The creditors
of these sceuritization entilies have no recourse 1o us with the exception of market customary representation and warranty provisions
as described in Note 23 — Commitments Contingencies and Other Risks

Nonconselidated VIEs include entities for which we enther do not hold significant vanable interests or do not provide servicing
or asset management tunctions for the financial asscts held by the secuniuzation entity Additionally, to quality for ofl-balance sheet
treatment, transfers of financial assets must meet sale accounting conditions m ASC 860 Our residential morigage loan securnitizations
consist of GSE and private-label securiizations  We are not the pnmary beneficiary of any GSE secuntization because we do not
have the power to direct the significant activitics of such ¢nunties  Addittonally we do not consohdate certain private-label
securitizations becausc we do not have a vanable interest that could potentially be significant or we do not have power to direct the ‘
activities that most sigmificantly impact the performance of the VIE |

For nonconsolidated secunitization entities, the transferred financial assets are removed trom our balance sheet provided the
conditions for sale accounting are met  The financial assets obtained from the securitization are primanlv reported as cash, servicing '
nights, or retammed inierests (1Fapphicable) As an accounting policy election, we elected fair value treatment for our MSR portfolio
Liabihties incurred as part of these secuntization transactions, such as representation and warranly provisions, are recorded at fair '
value at the tme of sale and are reported as other hiabslities on our Consohidaled Balance Sheet  Upon the sale of the loans we
recognize a gain or loss on sale [or the difierence between the asseis recogmized the asscts derecognized, and the hiabilities recognized
as part of the transaction

The following summarises the pretax gains and losses recognized on financial assels sold into nonconsolidated securitizations

Year ended December 31, (§ i thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Consumer mortgage — GSEs 5404,307 $686,833 $718,632
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The fellowing table summarizes cash flows received from and pawd to securitization entities that are accounted for as a sale
and in which we have a conuinuing imvolvement with the transferred assets (¢ g, senvicing) through both continuing and held-for-
sale operations that were outstanding duning the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consumer
mortgage

Year ended December 31, (S vt thousands) GSks Private-Label
2012
Cash proceeds from transfers completed durning the peniod 514,646,117 S—
Cash tlows received on retained interests 1n secuniization entities — 13,407
Servicing fees 419,848 161,003
Purchascs of previously transferred financial assets

Representation and warranty obhgations (43.474) (6,775)

Other repurchases (2,243,051) (28,775)
Other cash flows 1,909 96,787 ‘
Total net cash flows $12,781,349 §235,647 ;
2011 |
Cash proceeds from transfers completed during the period $59.814,651 $— ‘
Cash llows received on retained nterests in secuntization entitics — 17,132
Servicing fees 518,084 194,882
Purchases ot previously transterred financial assets

Representation and wamranty obhgations (143 340} (37 386)

Other repurchases (2,537,257} (145,798)
Other cash flows (6,302} 186,637
Total net cash flows $57,645.836 $215,467
2010
Cash proceeds from transfers completed durning the perod $68,821.918 $—
Cash flows recerved on retamed mnterests m secuntizauon entitics — 27 559
Servicing fees 476 901 188,553
Purchascs of previously transterred financial assets i
Representation and warranty obligations (388,873) (13,343} !
Other repurchases {(1,865,408) (260,638) .
Other cash flows (25,200) (20,165)
Total net cash flows $67.019,338 ($78,034)
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The tollowing table represents on—-balance sheet mortgage loans held—for-sale and consumer finance recenvable and loans, off-
balance sheet securiizattons, and whole loan sales where we have contmuing mmvolvement The table presents information about
delinguencies and net credit losses  See Note 8 — Servicing Activities for further dewail on total sersiced assels

Amount 60 days Net credit losses (recoverics)
December 31, Total UPB or more past due (a)
(S in thousands} 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
On-balance sheet loans
Consumer mortgage held-
for—sale
Continuing operations 380,357 54,650 917 (b) 5155943 $3045 234 88,503 530 580
Held-for-sale operations 4,224,668 (b) — 3,114,847 (b) - — —_
Consumer mortgage finance
receivables and loans
Continuing operations 1,644,582 2,623 763 163,203 422017 99,410 131 297
Held-for-sale operatons 178,433 — 15,272 — — —
Total on-balance sheet loans 6,428,040 7274 680 3,449,265 3471 251 107,913 161,877
Off-balance sheel secuntizaton
entities

Consumer mortgage —
GSEs - Held-for-
sa]e Qpera(mns 97,075‘052 13 1 ,75],844 6.964,240 7 675 8| t m'm nlm

Consumer mortgage —
nonagency - Held—for—

sale operations 45,240,581 60 768 935 9,897,034 11 232126 3,021,432 3981 684
Total off-balance sheet
securitizaiion entities 142,315,633 192 520 779 16,861,274 18 907 937 3,021,432 3 981 684
Whele loan transactions -
Held-for-sale operations (c¢) 14,479,962 17 516 446 1,938,016 2209 (088 473,249 695,066
Total $163,223.635 $2172,311,905 §22,248,555 524,588 276 83,602,594 54,818 627

n/m = not meangiul

(2) The 2mount 15 net of recovenes on loans that have resolved where we have previoushy disclosed a credit loss

{b) Includes mongage loans subject to conditional repurchase options with UPB of $2 5 billien and $2 3 bilhen sold te Ginmie Mae guaranteed
secuniuzations and UPB of $113 7 million and $131 & million sold to certain off-balance sheet nonagency consumer mortgage securitization
entities at December 3E, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respecuvely The corresponding liabilitv 1s recorded in habihities of held-for-sale
operatiens and other habilihies, respectively

(c) Whole-loan transactions are not part of a secuntization transaction but represent pools of consumer mortgage loans sold to investors  The
amount 1s net of recoveries on loans that have resolved where we have previously disclosed a crednt loss

Changes in Accounting for Variable Interest Entities

On May 11, 2012 1n connection with the sale of GMAC Financicra, we deconsolidated certamn on-balance sheet secuntization
entities that had previously been recogmized upon adoption of ASU 2009-17 Upon completion of the sale, we no longer hold any
variable or controlling interests in these secunitization entiies  Consolidated asscts and consolidated habihities of $244 6 million
and $270 4 million, respectively, associated with this transaction were derccogmized  There was no gain or loss recognized

In connections with our Section 363 Assct Sales and the reclassification to held- for-sale operations, 4 portion of our on-balance
sheel securiiizations and conditional repurchase option loans associated with our Ginme Mae guaraniced securihizalions were
reclassified to assets and habihiues held-for-sale  Upon completion of the sale of the Platform Assets to Ocwen and Walter and
completion of the wind down of our new v onginated Ginmie Mae secuntizations we will no longer hold any vanable or controlling
interests w the securibzation entities, at which pont the securttization trusts will be deconsolidated  See Note 4 - Discontineed
Operations and Assets and Liabihues teld-for-Sale tor addinonal mformation
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§ Servicing Activities

Mortgage Servicing Rights (MSRs)

The following table summmarizes our activiiy related to MSRs  See Note 20 - Fair Value for additional information

2012
Continuing Held-for-sale

Year ended December 31, (8 in thousands) Operations operations 2011
Estimated fair value at January 1, $1,233,107 S— §$1,991,586
Additions recognized on sate of morigage loans 16,179 n 54,357
Duspositions — — (401}
Changes i fair value

Due 1o changes in valuation inputs or assumptions used in the valuation

modet (194,554) 16,129 (552,970)

Other changes 1n fair value (205,188) (57,044)  (259,465)
Transfer to assets of held-for-sale operations (849,540 849,544 —_
Csuumated fair value at December 31, S— $809,006 51,233,107

Changes in fair value due to changes m valuauon mputs or assumptions uscd in the valuation models include all changes due
1 arevaluation by a model or by abenchmarking exercise  Other changes in lair vatue pnimanily include the aceretion of the present
value of the discount related to forecasted cash flows and the veconomic run-oit of the portfohio

The key economic assumplions and the sensiivity of the fair value of MSRs 0 immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes in
those assumptions were as follows

2012
Held-for-sale

December 31, (3 i1 thousands) aperations 2011
Weighted average life (in years) 41 43
Weighted average prepayment specd 17 7% 18 0%
Impact on fair value of 10% adverse change 5(93,525) $(71 223)
Impact on far value of 20% adverse change (175,276) (135,292)
Weighted average discount rate 49 2% 9 5%
Impact on lar value of 10% adverse change §(12,451) $(25,396)
Impact on fair value of 20% advirse change (23,673) (48,913)

These sensiuvities are hy pothetical and should be considered with caution  Changes n fair value based on a 10% and 20%
variation n assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumptions to the change in
fair value may not be hinear  Also, the effect of a vaniation in 2 particular assumption on the fair value s calculated without changing
any other assumption [n rcality, changes i one factor may result in changes in another (e g, increased market interest rates may
result i lower prepayments and mcreased credit losses) that could magnity or counteract the sensiivitics [urther, these sensiuvities
show only the change in the asset balances and do not show any expected change in the fair value of the instruments used to manage
the interest rate and prepaymenti nisks associated with these assets

Risk Mitigation Activities

The primary economic nisk related to our MSR 15 1nterest rate nisk and the resulting impact on prepavment speeds A significant
decline 1in mterest rates could lead to higher than expected prepayments that could reduce the vaiue of the MSRs  Prior to our
bankruptey filing, we economically hedged the impact of this nsk with both denvative and nondenvatinve financial tnstruments
These mstruments included ntercst rale swaps, caps and floors, options to purchase these wems, futures and forward contracts
constant menthly matunity (index trades), synthetic interest only and pnincipal only securittes andfor 1o-be-announced (TBAs)
securines  The net fair value of dernanve financial instruments used to mitigate thes nsk was $(199 8) million at December 31
2011 Under the terms of the Platform Asset salc, the ulumate purchase price to be paid for the MSRs bemng acquired 1s based on
the underly ing unpaid principal balance of loans serviced at the closing of the sale Asaresult while the MSR asset 1s cconomiecally
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exposed to changes i markel conditions, particularly nterest rates, we are no longer hedging this nsk as it will not impact the
proceeds to be recenved upon completion of the sale See Note 21 — Denvative Instruments and Hedging Activities for additional
information

The components of scrvicing valuation and hedge activities net, were as follows

Year ended December 31, (3 in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Change n estimated fair value of mortgage servicing nights (3440,657) ($812 435) ($725,351)
Change 1n fair value of derivative financial instruments 113,583 456,720 947,922
Servicing valuation and hedge activities net (8327,074) ($355 715) $222.571

Mortgage Servicing Fees
The components of scrvicing fees were as follows

Year ended December 31,  (§ w1 thousands) 2012 2011 201¢
Contractual servicing fees (net of guarantee fees and including,

sub-servicing} §538,611 $637 938 $724,776
Late fees 53,456 53,822 69,822
Ancillary fees 153,226 145412 176,847
Total §745,293 $839,172 §971,445

Mortgage Servicer Advances

In connection with our primary servicing activities (1 ¢ scrvicing of mortgage loans) we make certain payments for property
taxes and msurance premiums (cserow), default and property maitenance pavments (corporate) as well as advances of pnincipal
and nterest payments betore collecting them from individual borrowers

When we act as a subservicer of mortgage loans we perlorm the responsibilities of a pnmary scrvicer but do not own the
corresponding primary servicing rights  We receive a fee from the primary servicer for such services  As the subservicer, we have
the same responsibilities as a primary servicer n that we make certmin payments of property taxes and insurance premiums, default
and property mamntenance, as well as advances of principal and interest payments before collecung them from individual borrowers

In many cases where we act as master servicer we also actas primary servicer In connection with our master servicing activities,
we service the mortgage-backed and morigage—related asset-backed securitics and whole—loan packages sold to mvestors  As the
master servicet, we collcet mortgage loan payments from primary servicers and distribute those funds to investors in mortgage—
backed and asset-backed securitics and whole—loan packages As the master servicer, we are required to advance scheduled payments
to the securitization trust or whole-loan tnvestors  To the extent the primary servicer does not advance the payments, we are
responsible for advancing the payment to the trust or whole-loan investors  Reimbursements ol master servicer advances, including
contractual interest, are prienty cash tlows in the event of a de fault thus making their collection reasonablv assured  In most cases
we are required to advance these payments to the point of liquidation of the loan or reimbursement of the trust or whole-loan
1nvEsiors

We sold most of our MSRs 1n the Scction 363 Asset Sales o Walter and Qcwen in January and February 2013 Effective with
the closing of the Section 363 Assct Sale to Ocwen in February 2013, we no longer service mortgage loans  On February 15, 2013,
certam of the Debtors entered nto a Servicing Agreement (the Estate Servicing Agreement) and a Subscrvicing Agreement (the
Estate Subservicing Agreement) with Gewen  Under the Estate Servicing Agreement, Ocwen services substantially all of our owned
residential mortgage loans and related receivables on our behalt  Under the Estale Subservicmg Agreement, Ocwen services
substanually all of the residunuial mortgage loans and related receivables we had previously serviced for others as primary servicer
or master servtcer and for which we retamed the related MSRs beyond February 15, 2013 pending expected sale to Ocwen or transfers
to other servicers  Under the Cstate Subservicing Agreement Ocwen also subservices the residential loans we are obligated to
service for Ally Bank under the Ally Servicing Agreement  The Estate Subservicing Agreement does not require Ocwen to make
advances of principal or interest to investors or to make servicing advances  Accordingly, we continue te make advances of principal
and mterest 1o investors where required by the underlving scrvicing agreement subserviced by Ocwen under the Estate Subservicing
Agreement  We reimburse Ocwen for servicing advances to the extent not recoverable under the undery ing servicing agreement
We retamn the right 10 colleet these advances when ulumately recovcrable to the servicer under the underlving servicing agreement
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The following table sets forth mformation with respect to our senvicer advance receivables net

2012
Continuing  Held-for-sale

December 31, {3 i thousands) operafions  operations 2011
Primary servicer advances

Escrow advances 558,543 §757.273 3738 962

Principal and interest 5,852 552,979 687 969

Corporate advances 42,433 268,132 277,275
Total primary servicer advances 106,828 1,578,384 1,704,206
Subserviced advances —_ 214,704 226,008
Master servicing advances — 196,390 158,162
Reserve for uncollectible advances — (48,718) (43,651)
[otal servicer advances nel $106,828 $1,940,760 $2,044,725

Serviced Mortgage Assets

In many cases prior to the Scction 363 Assct Sales to Walter and Ocwen, we acted as both the primary and master servicer
However, m curtam cases, we also serviced loans that had been purchased and subsequently sold through a sccuritization trust or
wheole—loan sale whereby the onginator retained the primary servicing nghts and we retained the master servicing rights  All amounts

related to December 31, 2012 relate to held-tor-sale operattons unless otherwise indicated

The following 1able sets forth information concerning the unpaid principal balance of total serviced mortgage assets

2012
Continuing Held-for-sule
December 31, (S tn mullions) operations Operations 2011
On-balance sheet mortgage loans (a)
Held-for—sale and investment A3 2,185 § 4,481 $6,828
Off-balance sheet mortgage loans
l.oans held by third-party investors
Consemer mortgage private-label — 43,457 50,886
Consumer morlgage agency — 96,985 131 635
Consumer mortgage whole-loan portfohos —_ 12,718 15,104
Purchased servicing rights (b) — 2,625 3,247
Total primary serviced mortgage loans 2,185 160,266 207 700
Subserviced morntgage loans {¢) — 158,623 169,531
Master scrvicing only mortgage loans — 7,060 8,557
Fotal serviced mortgage loans §2,185 §3125,94% 3385 788

(a) Includes on-balance shect secutitization consumer finance recervables and loans  See Note 6 — Finance Recewvables and [ oans net for

additional infermation

(b) There 15 no recourse to us other than customan. contractual provisions relating to the execution of the services we provide
(c) Includes loans where we act as a subscrvicer under contractual agreements with the pnmarv servicer As subservicer there 1$ no recourse 10
us other than customan contractual provisions relating to the execution of the services we provide, except for loans subserviced on behalf of

Ally Bank See Note 24 — Related Panv Fransactions for addiiona! informaiton

46




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residenual Capital, LLC
{Debtors-in-Possession)

The follow ing table scts forth mformanon concerming the delinquency cvpertence n our domestic consumer mortgage loan
pnmary servicing portfolio, including pending foreclosures  All amounts refated to December 31, 2012 relate to held-for-sale

operations
1012 2011
Unpaid Unpaid
Number of prmcipal Number of principal
December 31, (5 inmilfions} loans balance loans balance
Total U S morgage loans primary serviced 1,301,831 5162,430 1,587,113 $207,380
Peniod of delinquency
30 to 59 days 55,674 87,501 67,239 $9,289
60 1o 89 days 24,529 3,570 25,138 3,695
90 days or more 32,276 5,153 27 570 4 467
Foreclosures pending 57,168 10,949 68,166 13,018
Bankruptcies 31,883 4,563 34,956 4 869
Total delinquent loans 201,530 %31,736 223,069 $35,338
Percent of U S mortgage loans prnimary serviced 15 5% 19 5% 14 1% 17 0%

We were also required 1o mamntain consolidated tangible net worth, as defined, of $250 0 million, under our agreement with a
GSE  This agreement expured effective July 31, 2012

At December 31, 2012, domestic msured private-label secuntizations with an unpaid principal balance ol $4 9 billion contain
provisions cntitling the monoline or other provider of contractual credit support (surety providers) to declare a scrvicer default and
terminate the servicer upon the failure of the loans to meet certain porifolio delinquency andfor cumulatine loss thresholds
Secuniizations with an unpaid principal balance of $4 3 billion had breached a delinquency and/or cumulative loss threshold While
we conlinue to service these loans and receive service fee income with respect to these securitizanions, the value of the related MSR
15 7ero at December 31,2012 Sccurniizations with an unpaid principal balance of $474 0 million have not yet breached a delinguency
or cumulative loss threshold  1he value of the related MSR 15 $3 0 miullion a1t December 31, 2012 These MSRs are classificd as
held-for-sale operations at December 31, 2012

9. Accounts Reccivable, Net

2012
Continuing Held-for-sale

December 31, (5 i1 thousands) operations operations 2011
Servicer advances, net $106,885 $1,940,760(a) $2.,045 446 (a)
Loan insurance guarantee receivable, net (b) 827,985 — 745 396
Servicing lees recervabic 3.805 78,295 87,208
Accrued interest receivable 23,658 8,062 37.962
Due from brokers for denvative trades — — 94,024
Other 57,767 1,255 41712
Total accounts receivable, net £1,020,100 §2,028,372 $3,051,748

(a) [he allowance for uncollectible servicer advances was 348 7 million and $43 7 mullion at December 31 2012 and December 31, 2011,

respectively
(b} Represenis mortgage loans in forectosure which are insured by the FHA or guaranteed by the VA net of a reserve for uncollecuble amountis
of $55 4 milhion and $21 8 milhon at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively
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10. Other Assets

2012
Conttnumg  Held-for-sale

December 31, ($ m thousands) operations operations 2011
Property and equipment at cost 5198 $246,623 $252 890
Accumulalted depreciation and amortization (198) (208,398) (207,645)
Net property and cquipment — 38,225 45245
Restricted cash (a} 211,856 — 448 819
Income taxes recervable 21,848 — 5111
Foreclosed assets 20,822 4,761 71.485
Collateral placed with dentvative counterpartics 10,000 —_ 1,065,287
Fair value of denivative contracts in recervable position 720 — 4,877,197
Trading securities — 26,102 33,303
Interests retamned i financial asset sales — - 23102
Other 6,272 4,434 28 603
[otal other assets $271,518 §73,522 $6,628 152

(a) AtDecember 31 2012 and 2011 $93 8 milhon and $93 8 million for a GSE collateral account, $85 6 million and $126 1 millien related to a
cash reserve account for our reinsurance business $2 0 mullion and $3 9 milhon for appeals bond for legal proceedings $28 8 nullion and
$112 0 million related 1o collateral posted with Atly Bank and 50 0 million and $76 1| mitlion related to funds collected but not vet dhstnibuted

to a third-party respectively

11. Borrowings

Ihe filing of our Chapter 11 Cases consututed an event of default or otherwise triggered accelerated repayment obhigations
under ali of cur pre-petition debt obligations  These pre-petition debt obligations have been reclassificd to short-term borrowings
wrespective of the ongmal term of the obhgation  Under Chapter 11 howesver, the filing of a bankruptcy petition automatically
stay s most actions agamst a debtor, including mostactions to eollect pre-petiion indebtedness or to exercise control over the property
of the debtor's estate  Certain of our Debtors' pre-petiion liabihiies are subject to settlement under the plan ol reorganization

In accordance with ASC 852, effective on the Peion Date, we ceased accruing contractual

interest and ceased amortiZing

deferred 1ssuance costs and concessions related 1o pre-peution habthues, including borrowangs, that are subject to compromise  1lad
we recorded 1nterest based on all of our pre-pelition obligations, interest expense would have increased $162 4 nilhion for the twelve
months ended Decuember 31,2012 Had we continued to amortize deferred concessions, our wnterest expense would have decreased

366 7 million for the twelve monhs ended December 31, 2012
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The weighted average nterest rate on borrowings not subject to compronuse at December 31 2012 was 4 2% The weighted
average interest rate on borrowings at December 31, 2011 was 6 7%

Summary of borrowings were as follow

2012
Not Subject to Subject to

December 31, (3 i thousands) Compromse Compromise 2011
Debtor-1n-Possession Credit Faciliies

DIP 51,260,000 5— $—

Ally DIP 189,354 — —
Borrowmngs from Affiliates

Ally Inc 1,133,128 — 939,364

BMMZ Repe — — 250,000
Collateralized borrowings n securitization trusts (a) 447,723 (b) -— 830,318
Other borrowings 282,232 — 1,242,015
Junior secured term notes — 2,328,292 2,366,600
Unsecured notes _— 973,380 967,945
Medium-term unsecured notes —_— — 128,844
Total borrowings $3,312,437 $3,301,672 $6,725,086
Short-term borrowings $1,987,355 $756,595
Long-term borrowings 51,325,082 $5,968.491

(a) Collateralized borrowings with an outstanding balance of $1 8 biilion and $2 6 billion were recorded at fair value of $447 7 milhion and $829 ¢
million as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively See Note 20 — Faur Value for additional information

(b)  Excludes $53 0 million of collateralized borrowings that were reclassified to lizbilities of held-for-sale operations  Secto Note 4 Discontimued
Operations and Assets and Liabihties Held-For-Sale for additional informatton

Prior to the Chapter 11 Cases, all of our credit facilities and certain other agreements contatned covenants that required us to
marintamn consolidated tangible net worth of $250 0 million as of each month end, consohidated hiquidity of $250 0 milhion daily, and
unrestricted hquidity of $250 0 milhion daily

The DIP required us to mamtain consolidated liquidity of (1) not less than $250 0 rmillion n the aggregate for four cansecutive
business days and (1) not less than $75 0 million in the aggregate at any tume It also required us to mamntam a mimmum of $50 0
rmillion 1n certain cash accounts that are maintamed as collateral tor the DIP As of December 31, 2012, we were 1n compliance
with these hiquidity requirements
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['he following table summarizes the outstanding, unused, and total capacity of our funding facilities at December 31, 2012

Unused 1 otal

(S in thousands) Outstanding capacity capacity
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Facilities

DIP $1,260,000 $190,000 $1,450,000

Allv DIP (a) 189,354 30,646 220,000
[otal Debtor-m-possession credit tacihities 1,449,354 220,646 (b} 1,670,000
Facilities with Aflihates

Ally Inc Semor Secured Credit Facility 747,128 — 747,128

Ally Inc LOC 380,000 -— 380,000

Ally Inc Data Centers 6,000 — 6,000
Total facihitics with aftiliates 1,133,128 — 1,133,128
Other funding facihitics

Mortgage servicing rights tacihty 152,000 — 152,000

Servicer advance funding faciluy 28,310 32,690 61,000

Home equity fundimg facility 101,922 — 101,922

Other funding facilities — 11,000 11,000

lotal other funding facilities 282,232 43,690 325,922
lotal funding facilities 82,864,714 §264,336 $3,129,050

(2) Borrowingsin excess of 5200 0 mullion shall be made at Ally Inc's sole discretion
{b) The DIP and Ally DIP were terminated dunng February, 2013

Debtor-In-Possession Credit Facilities

Pursuant to the terms of the DIP, the §1 45 bilhon facility consists of three tranches $1 06 billion of A-1 term notes, $200 0
milhion of A-2 term notes and 4 $190 0 million revolver The DIP was approved by the Bankruptey Court on June 25,2012 There
1s a sccond DIP facility 1n place with Ally Inc to provide up to 3200 0 million in funding, the Allv DIP

We have the option to have mtcrest on the loans provided under the DIP accruc at the Alternate Base Rate (ABR} plus the
applicable margin {2 75% for the A-1 term notes and revolver and 4 50% for the A-2 term notes) or the Adjusted Eurodollar Rate
(AER) plus the apphicable margin (3 75% for the A-1 lorm notes and revolver and 5 50% for the A-2 term notes) Wealsopay a 75%
revolving commitment fee  The ABR s a per annum rate equal to the greater of (a) the prime rate, (b) the Federal | unds effective
rate plus 50% and (c) the AER for a three month interest period plus 1 00% [ he ABR shali at no ume be less than 2 25% per
annum The AER shall at no time be less than | 25% per annum  We also have the opuion to choose an ALR nterest perod, which
can be one-, two-, three- or six-months  No interest period can extend beyond the termination date of the DIP

The DIP termination date was the earhest of 18 months from May 16, 2012, the DIP closing date, the substantial consummation
of a reorganization plan for any Debtor that 15 confirmed pursuant to an order entered by the Bankruptcy Court or in the event of
acceleration and termination of the commitment

The DIP proceeds could be used, 1n cach case in accordance with the approved DIP budget, to repay tn full certamn indebtedness
outstanding as of the petition date, to pay the fees, costs and expenses ncurred in connection with the DIP and for general corporate
purpases There were limitations on the use of DIP proceeds, including restrictions i connection with investigations, imtiatien or
prosecution of ans claims against parties 1o the DIP or holders of obligations of certain pre-petition refinanced facilities, 1o make
anv pre-petition payments, except as authorized by the Bankruptey Court and 1n accerdance with the approved DIP budget, or for
anv purpose that could materially or adversely modify or compromise the rights of any party 1o the DIP or which would result 1n
the occurrence of an event of default  In addivion to cenan customary obligations, the DIP requires us to provide certain reports
including peniodic budget reports periodic cash sources and uses of funds reports, penodic cash flow forecasts and borrowing base
and collateral reports

On May 16, 2012, we uscd DIP proceeds to repay in il our Pre-Petitton Refinanced Facihties, (our servicer advance funding
facility, GMAC Mornigage Server Advance Funding Company Lid (GSAPY), and our secured financing agreement, the BMMZ Repo)
In connecuion with the DIP, the DIP Borrowers entered into Recervables Purchase Agreements with GSAP whereby GSAFP sold
assigned, transferred set-over and otherwise comveyed to the DIP Borrowers all of us nghts, utle and interest in servicer advances
owned by GSAP on the closing date  In consideration ol the sale, the DIP Berrowers paid GSAP $468 0 mithion with respect to
servicer advances totaling $832 8 nullion  The DIP Borrowers also entered into Mortgage Loan Purchase and Contribution
Agreements with GMAC Mortgage and RFC whereby GMAC Morntgage and RFC sold, contributed assigned, transfurred set-over
and otherwise conveyed to the DIP Borrowers of their nights uitle and interest to and under certain mortgage loans ncluding all

50




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Residential Capital LLC
(Dcbtors-in-Possession)

nights clarms or actions GMAC Mortgage or RFC may have under anv related servicing agreement, subsenicing agreement or
custodial agreement and all related accounts In consideration ot the sale the DIP Borrowers paid $250 0 million to GMAC Morigage
and RFC with respect to mortgage loans with a carrying value of $371 0 million w hich used the proceeds to repay the BMMZ Repo

Under the terms of Recenvables Pooling and Purchase Agreements between GMAC Mortgage and RFC (the Oniginators) and
the DIP Borrowers, the Onginators automatically scll to the DIP Borrowers new servicer advances with respect 10 any Servicing
agreemeni that 1s a designated servicing agreement under the DIP until such time as the DIP 1s terminated

We paid fees of $56 5 milhion in connection with the mtial DIP agreement  These fees were expensed as incurred and are
reported n reorganization items on our Consohidated Statvment of Comprehensive Income

OnQctober 19 2012, the DIPwasamended 'ees of$2 Omilhionwere paid in connection with the amendments Theamendments
permit the Debtors to (1) complete the sale of certamn of their mortgage loans held-for-sale prior to completing the sale ot the Debtors
mortgage ongination and servicing businesses, and {n) to seli up to $200 0 rillion of FHA and VA mortgage loans held-for-sale
that are collateral under the LOC  The proceeds from any completed sales would be required to be used to pay down the DIP

Cn January 29 2013 the DIPwas amended Fecs of $& 9 million were paid in connection with the amendment [he amendment
permiis the Debiors to transact a one-time sale of all or any portion of certain mongage servicing nights without triggering carly
lermination provisions

On January 31, 2013, the $190 0 million revolver portion of the DIP was terminated concurrent with completion ot the Section
3563 Assct Sale wath Walter

On February 5, 2013, $403 7 million of DIP A-1 term notes were repaid concurrent with the completion of the Secuon 363
Asset Sale with Berkshire

The remaming DIP A-1 and A-2 term notcs were pard n {ull on February 15, 2013, concurrent with the completion of Scction
363 Asset Sale with Ocwen and the DIP was terminated

The Ally DIP provides up to $220 0 million ol post-petition debtor-in-possession financing to GMAC Mortgage provided that
the aggregate amount ol the Ally DIP and LOC pre- and post-petition draws {plus any unpaid interest, expenses, or other costs
payable thercunder) may not exceed $600 0 million, and provided further, any borrowngs i excess of $200 0 million shall be made
at Ally lnc's sole discretion The Debtors can use $150 0 million of the proceeds from the Ally DIP solely for the post-petition
purpose of repurchasing FHA and VA loans from GNMA secunitizations in connection with delinquency tniggers apphicable to GMAC
Mortgage under Chapter 18 of the Ginnie Mae Guide, to effect foreclosures, conveyances or other normal course loss mitigation
activitics and to allow for trial modifications under programs implemented by the Debtors  The Ally DIP is secured by any such
repurchased loans and related claims as well as a lien on the Ally Inc Line of Credit (LOC) collateral The Debtors can use $50 0
milhion of the proceeds from the Ally DIP, subject 10 the hmitations noted above for guneral corporate purposes  Draws on the Ally
DIP bear mterest at LIBOR plus 4 0%, with a LIBOR rate floor of | 25%

The Ally DIP automatically tersunates on the carlier of the stated maturity of the DIP or, without further notice or order of the
Bankruptey Court, on the eflective date of the substantial consummaton of a reorganization plan for any Debtor or in the Lvent of
acceleration and wrmmaton of the commument  The Ally DIP was paid 1n fitll and terminated on I'ebruary 5 2013, concurrent
with the completion of the Section 363 Asset Sale with Berkshire

Facilities with Affihates

Ally In¢ Semor Secured Credit Facility

The total principal amount owed as of the Petition Date was $747 1 million GMAC Morlgage and REC (the Borrowers) are
jomtly and severally hable for the amounts outstanding i connection with the Ally Inc Semor Secured Credit Facily  ResCap,
and certain of its subsidianies, are guarantors  This facibity 18 secured by certamn domestic whole loans accounts receivable, notes
receivable, trading securiues and equity investments of the Borrowers  As ordered by the Bankruptey Court we are aceruing and
paying interest on the outstanding balance of the Ally Inc Sentor Secured Credit Facility at the prevailing contractual rale See Note
2 - Voluntary Reorganization Under Chapter 11 for additional informaunon

Ally Inc Line of Credit

1h¢ total principal amount owed as of the Petition Date was $380 0 million  As a result of the Chapier 11 Cascs, Borrowers
abalaty to draw on the LOC 1s hmited to borrow ings permutted under the Ally DIP which was paid in full and terminated on February
5 2013 The Borrowers are jointly and severally lable for the amounts outstanding in connection with the Ally Inc LOC ResCap,
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and certan of ats subsidianies arc guarantors  The L.OC 1s sccured by certain domestic whole loans, accounts recenvable, notes
receivable, mortgage servicing nights and trading securities of the Borrowers  We are accrumg and pay ing contractual mterest on
the LOC in accordance w ith an order of the Bankrupicy Court Sce Note 2 - Voluatary Reorgamzation Under Chapter 11 for addiiional
information

BMMZ Holdings, LL.C Secured Financing Agreement (BMMZ Repo)

The total principal amount owed as of the Petition Date was $250 0 million  All of the outstanding principal and interest due
on the BMMZ. Repo was repaid on May 16, 2012, with funds from the DIP See Note 2 - Voluntary Reorganization Under Chapter
11 for additienal information

Ally Ine Data Centers

On Mav 9, 2012 we entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Ally Inc , whereby Ally Inc purchased a 51% undivided
ownershap interest in the land, building and improvements of a property we own (Shady Qak Data Center) At the same time, we
entered mnto an assignment of lease agreemen with Ally Inc, whereby Ally Inc was assigned a 51% mterest 1n a lease agreement
in which we are a party (Lewisville Data Center Lease) Ally [ne paid $6 O mullion to us m connection with these agreements

Both agrecments contam repurchase obliganons whereby we are required to repurchase the Shady Oak Data Center interest
and the Lewisville Data Center Lease interest for $6 0 mullion from Ally Inc at any time from or alter any sale of substanuaily all
ofour assets, but in no event later than December 31,2014 OnFebruary 14 2013, in connection with closing the sale ofthe Platform
Asscets to Ocwen, we pard Ally Inc $6 0 miltion lor repurchase of the Shady Qak Data Center and the Lewasville Data Center Lease

Lhese agreements have been accounted for as secured borrowings as we continue to have a significant intcrest i the assets
and contimue, through the repurchase obligation, to mamtan significant nisks and rewards of ownership in the underlying assets

Other Funding Facilities

Mortgage Servicing Rights Facility

I'he total principal amount owed as of the Petition Date was $152 0 million  We are accruing and paying contractual interest
on this facility 1n accordance with an order of the Bankruptey Court  This facility was paid in full on January 31, 2013, coneurrent
with the complenion of the Section 363 Asset Sale with Walter

Servicer Advance Funding Facilities

There were two servicer advance funding facilities at December 31 2012 The total pnincipal amount owed on the first facilits
as of the Petition Date was $662 3 mullion tor this servicing advance facility 1 he total principal and nterest due were repaid on
May 16, 2012, with funds from the DIP and with cash funds that were held i accounts for the bunefit of the facihity as of the Petiton
Date  lhe 1ssuer under this facility was a non-Debtor

A sccond secured facility, the Servicer Advance | unding Facility, to fund mortgage servicer advances had capacity of $61 0
millien 1he total principal amount owed as of the Petition Date was $28 3 milhion for this servicing advance facility We continued
10 acerue and pay contractual intercst on this facihity in accordance with the terms of the facility  This facility was pard in full on
January 31, 2013, concurrent with the completion of the Section 363 Asset Sale with Walter

Home Equity Funding Facility

The secured facihity to fund home equity mortgage loans consists of $101 9 milhion of vanable funding notes due (o mature on
February 25, 2031 We contmuce to accrue and pay contractual mterest in accordance with the terms of the facihity  The 1ssuer
under this facihity 15 a non-Debtor and the facility 1s expected to be repaid m accordance with 1its contractual terms

Collateralized Borrowings in Securitization Trusts

We previously sold pools of consumer mortgage loans through private-label secunitizauon transacuons  The purpose of these
securitizations was to provide permanent funding and exut for these assets  Cenain of these securitizations were accounted for as
secured borrowings, and therefore, the debt 1s reflected in collateralized borrow ings or iabihiies of held-for-sale operations on our
Consohlidated Balance Sheet  None of the securitization trusts are Debtors in our Chapter 11 Cases
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Borrowings Subject to Compromise

Jumior Secured Notes

The outstanding balance of the Jumior Secured Notes at December 31, 2012 was 32 3 billion  The Junior Secured Notes are
classified as habilittes subject Lo compromise on our Consolidated Balance Sheet The unamortized balance of deferred concession
recognized as a result of our 2008 exchange offer was $207 8 million at December 31, 2012 Deferred concession amortization was
computed using the effcctive vicld method For each of the three years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, $38 3 nullien
$101 1 milhon and $110 Omullion, respectively of deferred concession was amortized into carnings as areduction of Interest expense
Effective with the Petition Date, we discontimued amortization of the remaming deferred concession  We no longer accrue or pay
contractual interest on the Junior Secured Notes effective as of the Petiton Date

GMAC Mortgage, its immediate parent, GMAC Residential Holding Company, LLC (Res Holdings), RFC, 1ts immediate
parent, GMAC-RFC Hoiding Company, LLC (Rt C Holdings), and Homecommgs | inancial, LL.C (Homecomings), a wholly owned
subsidany of RFC, are all guarantors with respect to the Jumor Secured Nows  Each of the guarantors are Debtors  The Jumor
Secured Notes are secured by second prionty hiens on the same asscts thal secure the Allv Inc Semior Secured Credit Facility

Unsecured Notes

As ol December 31, 2012, unsecured notes include $672 5 million U S§ dollar-denominated semor notes, $130 2 nallion euro-
denominated notes and $170 7 million U K sterling-denominated notes {collectively, the Unsecured Notes) The Unsccured Notes
are classified as habilities subject to compromise on our Consohdated Balance Sheet We previcusls hedged a portion of the interest
rate risk associated with our fixed-rate curo and U K sterhing notes  On May 10, 2012, we terminated our outstandimg interest rate
swap agreements  Lltective as of the Petition Date we discontinued amortizatton of the remaiming deferred issuance costs and we
no longer accrue or pay contractual interest

Medium-term Unsecured Notes

On May 11, 2012, we complcted the sale of our wholly owned subsidiary, GMAC Financiera S A de C V, 50FOM, ENR
(GMAC Finznciera) As a condition of the sale, we received an irrevocable and unconditional release and tlermination of guarantecs
of ResCap, GMAC Mortgage, Res Holdings, RI'C RFC Holdings, and Homecomings with respect to the $124 3 malhon medum-
term unsceured notes issued by GMAC Financiera

Collateral for Secured Debt

The following lable summariscs the carrying value of asscts, including assets of held-for-sale operations that are restricted
pledged, or for which a security interest has been granted as collateral for the payment of certamn debt obligations

2012
Continuing Held-for-sale lotal restrnicted

December 31, (8 in thousands) Operations operations assets 2011
Cash and cash equivalents $1,261,333 $— $1,261,333 $82,389
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 115,572 1,280,475 1,396,047 1,688 037
Finance receivables and loans, net —

Consumer 587,341 60,977 648,318 1,005,982

Commercial — — — 4 226
Total finance receivables and loans, net 587,341 60,977 648,318 1,010,208
Mortgage servicing nights _— 553,317 553,317 855 343
Accounts receivable, nct 595,329 1,945,200 2,540,529 2,404 231
Other assets 65,423 73,980 139,403 81,960
Total assets restnicted as primary collateral $2,624,998 $3,913,949 56,538,947 $6 122 168
Related secured debt 55,693,767 $5 628 297

A portion of the assets inclieded in the table above represent assets of subsidiaries whose equity has been pledged to secure the
Ally Inc Sentor Secured Credit Facbity At December 31 2012, there were $3 0 tillien of equity interests of these subsidianies
pledged to the Ally Inc Semor Secured Credii Facility  Included in the table above 1s $1 8 billion and $2 0 billion at December 31
2012 and December 31 2011, respectively, of collateral pledged that can be re-hy pothecated or re—pledged by the secured party

The table above includes only Primary Collateral as defined in the Ally Inc Sermor Secured Crednt facility agreement and
excludes certain other assels that are subject to a lien for the benefit of the Ally Inc Semor Secured Credit facility and the Junior
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Secured Notes As of December 31, 2012, the excluded assets in continming operations were $363 2 million and held-for-sale
operations were $146 7 million for a total $709 9 million

The tollowing table summarizes the carrying value of assets pledged and the amount of related debt outstanding by facility,
including assets classified as held-for-sale operations

2012 2011
I otal assets Related [otal assets Related
restricted as secured restricted as secured

December 31, ($ in thousands) collateral (a) debt collateral debt
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Facilities

DIP $1,553,703 51,260,000 5— $—

Allv DIP (b) 148,891 189,354 —_ —
Borrowings from Affibiates

Ally Tnc Sentor Secured Credut facility 1,778,217 747,128 1,340,954 755,769

Ally Inc LOC (b) 1,634,216 380,000 1,582,033 183,595

Ally Inc Data Centers 5,539 6,000 — —

BMMZ Repo — — 401,118 250,000
Collateralized borrowings i sccunitization trusts 595,437 500,762 918,232 830,318
Other borrow ings

Junior Secured Notes (¢} — 2,328,292 — 2,366,600

Mortgage servicing rights facility 503,251 152,000 634,345 323,000

Servicer advance funding facility 172,049 28,310 1,086,011 780,385

Home equity funding facility 117,418 101,921 153,191 135,800

Other secured facility — —_— 6,284 2,830
Total $6,508,721 85,693,767 $6,122,168 $5,628,297

(2) Includes only Pnmary Collateral as defined 1n the Ally Inc Semior Secured Credit facihity agreement and excludes certain other assets that
are subject to a hien for the benefit of the Ally Inc Sentor Secured Credit factlity and the Junior Secuved Notes As of December 31 2012
the excluded assets totaled $709 9 mithen

(b) The Ally DIP s also secured by the same collateral that secures the Allv Ine LOC

(¢) The Junior Secured Notes are secured by the same collateral that secures the Allv Inc Senior Secured Credn facihity

12. Liabilities Subject to Compromise

Certamn claims against the Debtors m exastence pnior o the Chapter 11 Cases (pre-petition habilities) may be subject to
compromise and are classified as habilities subject to compromise in our Consolidated Balance Sheet  Eftective on the Petition
Pate, we no longer accrue or pay contractual nterest on habihties subject to compromise  The following table summarizes our
Liabalities subject to compromise

December 31, (8 1 thousands) 2012
Borrowings Subject to Compromise

Junior Secured Notes §2,328,292

Senior Unsecured Notes 672,480

Foreign Unsecured Notes 300,900
Total borrowings subject to compromise 3,301,672
Liability for representation and warranty obligations 630,141
Interest payablc 149,420
Reserve for legal procecdings 67,573
Accounts payable 22,143
Other hiabilities (a) 44,266
Total other habilities subject to compromise 913,543
I otal l1abilities subject to compromise 54,215,215

(a) Liabihties subject to compromise includes $31 3 mithon of federal income tax payable accrued at the ResCap separate company subsidtan
level pursuant to a tax allocation agreementwith Ally Inc [ hese subject to compromise tax pavablesare partially offset by federal taxreceivables
accrued at ResCap and other ResCap separate company subsidiaries as a result of current and cumulative tax net operatmg loss carry forwards
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13. Other Liabilities

The Dbtors recenned approval to pay or otherwise honor certamn pre-petiion obhigations generally designed to stabilize our
operattons, including certain employ ee wages and benefit obhigations, cash management, tax matiers, loan originations and servicing
and payment of pre-petitton claims of certaun v endors deemed cnucal 10 our ongoing business

Other hiabilities includes pre-petition liabilitics subject to first day motions, all post-petiion Liabilitics and Liabilities related to
our non-debtor consolidated subssdiaries

2012

Continuing Held-for-sale
December 31, (3 w1 thousands) operations operations 2011
Liability tor option to repurchase assets (a) §— 82,610,974  $2 386,734
Excculory contract cures 231,451 — —
Accounts payable 192,202 22,395 360,726 (b)
Employ ce compensation and benefits 78,330 62,594 87,542 ‘
Morigage forectosure scttlement 76,599 — 204,000 i
Liability for representation and warranty obligations 60,120 — 824,776 (b)
Reserve lor insurance lossus 54,316 —_ 91,615
[nterest payable 12,408 351 62 225 (b)
Reserve for legal proceedings 8,480 —_ 94,516 (b)
Liabiluy for assets sold with recourse 2,489 — 32,156 (b)
Fair value of derivative instruments 197 — 5,113,531
Payable to Ally Bank — — 21 001
Collaleral received from dervative counterparties — — 656 109 .
Other 10,468 31,073 61,095 (b)
Total other habilines $727,062 §2,727,387  $9,996,026

(a) Werecognize ahabtlity for the condiional repurchase option on certaim assets held by off-balance sheet secunuzation trusts The corresponding
asset i1s recorded 1n mongage loans held-for-sale  See Note 5 — Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sate and Nete 7 — Secuniuzations and Vanable
Interest Enuties for additional informanon

(b)  Includes amountsthat are classified as lrabilitics subject to compromise at December 31 2012 SeeNote 12— Liabihties Subject to Compromise
for additional information

14. Other Revenue, Net

Year ended December 31, (8 in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Change due Lo fairr value option clections

Consumer mortgage finance recervables and loans, net $173,971 $207,804 31,381,950

Collateralized borrow ings (216,944) (271,799) (1,588 233)
Loan broker fee from Ally Bank 184,214 55622 64,543
Insurance income 16,061 21,540 33,462
Other 26917 16,625 56,963
I olal other revenue, net $184,219 $29.792 ($49,315)

Ln
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15. Other Nominterest Expense, Net

Year ended December 31, (§ i1 thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Loan admmstration fees $114,537 $70,246 $71 496
Ally Inc shared services fees net 94,012 67,672 93,263
Legal fees 80,725 68,976 29 089
Equpment and supphies 29,705 30,582 32087
Insurance losses 13,322 31,388 36,113
Advertising 7,039 18,162 369
Restructuring expense (resversals) {1,931) 3,048 17,527
Real estate owned {recovery) expense (3,734) 2,569 30420
Other 55,606 77709 79.676
Total other noninterest expense, net $389,281 $370,352 $390,010

16. Reorganization Items

Year ended December 31, (3 in thousands) 2012

Professional fees $209,211
Debtor 1n possesston credat facility 1ssuance costs 60,799
Personnel 14,138
Debtor in possesston credit facility commitment fees 220
Total reorganization items $285,008

17. Other Comprehensive Income

The following tabie summarizes our activity related to the components of other comprehensive income

Unrealized gmn Forcign Defined benefit  Accumulated
(loss) on currency penston plans other
available for sale transiation over (under) comprehensine
Year ended December 31, (8 i thousands) securities (a) adjustment {(b) funded (c) income (loss)
Balance January 1, 2010 (3265) $5,637 (349 440) ($44,068)
2010 nct change 1,607 21,728 (22,977) 358
Balance December 31 2010 1342 27,365 (72,417) (43710)
2011 net change (1,342) 53 (16,867) (18 156)
Balance at December 31, 2011 — 27418 (89 284) {61,866)
2012 net change — (7,390) 28,286 20,896
Balance at December 31, 2012 S— §20,028 (560,998) (540,970)

{a) Represents the after-tax difference between the fair value and amortized cost of available for sale secunties

{b) Includes after-tax gams and losses on foreign currency translation from operations for which the functional currency 1s other than the U S
dollar There was zero tax impact to the net change amounts for the vears ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

(¢} Includes afier-tax impact of the over {under)-funded status of our defined benefit plans See Note |9 — Employee Benefit Plans for addinonal
information
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['he following table summarizes income (loss) trom continuing operations belore income tax expense

Year ended December 31, (8w thousands) 2012 2011 2010
US (loss) (S825,342) ($732,517) (5116,458)
Non-U S ncome (loss) 46,056 {(10.411) 662,022
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income tax expense (8779,286) ($742928) $545,564
The sigmficant components of ncome 1ax expense from continuing operations were as follows
Year ended December 31, {$ 1 thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Current income tax expense (benefit)
U S Federal $11,960 $14.362 $11,929
Foreign (81) (2,560) (2,504)
State and local 926 4,249 (2 446)
Total current expense 12,805 16,051 6,919
Deferred income tax benefit
U S Tederal (16,086) — —
Fereign — — —
State and local (841) — —
I otal deferred tax benefit (16,927) — —
[ otal income tax {benefit) expense from continuing operations (84,122) $16,051 $6 919

A reconctliation of the statutory U S | ederal income tax rate to the cflective income tax rate for continuing operatiens 1s

shown in the following table

Year ended December 31, 2012 2011 2019
Statutory U § Fedcral rate 350% 350% 35 0%
Change 1n tax rate resulting from
State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 26 35 27
Foreign capital loss — — 02)
Effect of valuauon allowance change (39 3) G9n (G339
Other 22 (16) 23)
Effective tax rate 05% (22)% | 3%

We continue to be in a net deferred tax asset posiuon, which is fully offset by a valuation allowance The net deferred tax asset

includes a sigruficant 1ax net operating loss carryforward Thus the year to date tax benefit on the Toss from continuing operations
15 offset by an increase in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance 1he tax benefit from continuing operations of $4 1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 relates pnmanly to a $17 0 million reductton of expense stemming from the appheation of
intra period tax allocation requirements which provide that all sources of tuture taxable income (¢ g , other comprehensive income)
be considered 1n determining the amount of tax benefits that result from a loss from continuing operations  Incomc tax expense ot
$17 0 mallion was recorded in other comprehensive income, offsetiing the $17 0 milhion benefit in income tax expense  This benefit
was offsct by certain taxes thal are not ehigible to be offset by U S net operauing losses including those on foreign mcome

At December 31 2012 and 2011, a valuation allowance has been established aganst the deferred tax asset 1o the extent it
exceeds the deferred tax hability A valuation allowance has been established because we have determined that il 1s more likely
than not that all such tax asscts will not be realized [he change in the valuation allow ance 15 primarily the result ot pre-tax net
operating losses
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The significant components of deferred 1ax assets and liabihities were as [ollows

.

December 31, (S i thousands) 2012 2011
Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carryforwards $1,135,603 $854,485
Provision for loan losses 268,680 348,338
Debt transactions 176,727 251,886
MSRs 125,586 94,627
State and local taxes 112,251 134,670
Pension 15,405 31282
Mark-to-market on finance receivables and loans 54,724 83 709
Accruals not currently deducuble 83,055 49,651
Basis difterence 1n subsidianes 473 62,192
Other 65,888 4,978
Gross deferred tax asscts 2,038,392 1,915,818
Valuation allowance (1,824,597) {1,651,489)
Net deferred tax assets 213,795 264 329
Deferred tax liabihues
Unreahized gains on secunties 161,874 223,235
Sales of finance receivables and loans 51,921 41,094
MSRs — —
Gross deferred tax habihties 213,795 264,329
Net defurred tax assets §— 53—

AlDccember 31,2012 and 2011, we had U S Federal and state net operating loss carry forwards and capital loss carrvforwards
of $1 4 billion and $1 6 biliion, respectivelv  The federal net operating loss carrvforwards expire m the years 2029-2032  The

capal loss carmy forw ards expire in the vears 2014-2017 The corresponding cxpiration periods for the state operating and capial
loss carry tforwards are 2014-2032 and 2014-2017, respectively

At December 31, 2012, we had foreign net operating loss carry forwards and capital loss carrvforwards ot $157 7 mullion and
$21 émillion respectively The foregn net operating loss carryforwards and capital loss carry forwards in the U K of $67 2 mullion
and $21 6 mithon respectively have an indefinite carry forward period with the remaining net operating loss carm forward of

$112 2 mullion expining in the vears 2012-2032

Al Deeember 31, 2012 and 2011, there were no indefinitely remvested carmings in foraign subsidianies

Tax benefits related to posinons considered uncertain are recogmized only 1t based upon the techmeal merus of the 1ssue 1tis
more likely than niot that we will sustain the position and then at the largest amount that 15 greater than 50% likely to be reahsed

upon ultimate settlement

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending amount ot unrecognized tax benetits

Year cnded December 31, (S i thousands} 2012 2011 2010

Balance at January 1, 5§6,351 $3 936 $3 482
Addiuons for tax posittons of prior ycars —_ 3,304 1,889
Reducuons for tax positions of prior years (3,304) — —
Settlements _— (889) (16)
Expiration of statute of hmitations (837 — (1419)

Balance at December 31, $3,210 $6,351 $3,936
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Asof December 31 2012, 2011 and 2010 the balance of unrecogmzed tax benefits that, 1t recognised, would affect our effective
tax rate, 15 $2 2 million, $6 4 miliion, and $3 9 muhion, respecuvely

We recogmze accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain income tax positions n interest expense and other nomnterest
expense respectively  For the years ended December 31 2012 2011, and 2010, $0 1 million, $0 7 millhion, and $0 4 million
respectively were acerued lor interest and penatties with the cumulative accrued balances totaling $1 7 mullion and $2 4 million at

December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectveh

Ally Inc anticipates the examnation of various U 5 income Lax returns along with the examinations by various loreign, state
and local junisdictions will be completed within the next twelve months  As such 1t1s reasonably possible that certain tax positions
may be scttled and the unrecognized tax benefits would decrease by approximately $0 9 million

Ally Inc files tax returns m the U S Federal, various states and foreign jurisdictions  Fer the most sigmficant operations, at
December 31, 2012, the following summarizes the oldest tax years that remam subject 10 e xammation

Jurisdiction [ax Year
uUs 2007
Canada 2008
Mexico 2007
Netherlands 2007
2009

United Kingdom

19. Employee Benefit Plans

We participate i the GMAC Mortgage Group defined benefit retirement plan - Effective December 31, 2006, benefit accrual
of the defined benefit retrement plan was frozen  No further benefits accrued tor participants subsequent to that date and no new
entrants have been permitied to cnter the plan  Based on the December 31, 2012 actuanal assessment there 18 no contribution
expected duning 2013

Wu participate in Ally Inc 's defined contribution savings plan for domestic employees mecting certain eligibaluts requirements
Employees may contribute a percentage ol eligible compensation to the plan, not to exceed annual [RS himuts  Based on certaimn
employee chigibihly and vesting requirements and eligiblc compensation as dolined by the plan, we contribute toward employces
post-retrement benefits 1n three ways  We contribute a 2% retirement contribution every pay peniod, a dollar for dollar matching
contnbution up to 6% each year and an addimonal discretionany contnibutien of up to 2% based upon Ally Inc 's performance  Funds
contnibuted 1o, and earned by, the defined contnbution savings plans can be withdrawn by participants only under specifiic conditions

The followmg table summarizes information related to employee benefit plan expense from continuing operations

Year ended December 31, (3 in thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Defined benefit reurement plan $67,568 ($4,163) ($6218)
Defined contribution savings plan 15,905 17,058 13,117
(Revenue) Cxpense total 583,473 $12,895 $6 899

The following table summarises mformation related to the defined benefit retirement plan

Year ended December 31, (§ in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Benefit obligatton (§133,115) (5274 802) (8251 439)
Fair value of plan asscts 86,470 254,611 238974
Under funded status (546,645) (520 191} ($12515)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Actions

On October 19 2012, the plan settled the retiree portion of the accrucd benefit obligation through the purchase of non-
participating annuity contract from a third-party insurance company that requires the insurance company to pay and admmsier all
future annwity pavments to the current returee population of the plan at a total cost of $36 0 million On December [4 2012 the plan
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settled $35 0 milhion in accrued benefit obligation through a voluntary lump-sum distribution to approximatly 4 000 ternunated
employec plan participants  In connection with these combined actions a scttlement loss of $72 0 mullion was recognized

A reconciliation of the before and after settlement impact 1s presented below

Year ended December 31, 2012 ($ w2 thousands) Prior to scttlement Eftect of seitlement After settlement
Assets and obligations
Accumulated benefit obligation (a) (170 067) 36 932 (133 115)
Fair value of plan asscts 158,280 {71,809) 86,471
Under funded status (11,787 (34,857) (46.,644)
Net mcome (loss) {b) 34,857

(a) The vested benefits of the retiree population of the plan were seitled by using $36 milbon of plan assets to purchase a nonparticipating annuity
contract  The projected benefit obligatton was reduced by $37 nudlion and a net gan of 31 muthion was included 1 accumulated other
comprehensive income

(b) A lump-sum pavment of $35 million was made to settle pension obligations to the terminated employee population of plan pariicipants  The
pavment was treated as a net loss of 335 milhon included 1n accumulated other comprehensive income

A teconcilianion of the beginning and ending balances of the benefit obhigation and fair value of plan asscts 15 as follows

Benelit Funded

{8 tn thousands) obligation  Plan assets status
Balance at January 1 2010 $216,767 $220,106 $3,339
Interest cost $12973 —_ ($12,973)
Net actvarial gan due to assumption changes 26,209 — {26,209}
Net acluanial gain due to plan experience 1,345 — (1345)
Benelil pavments (5,805) (5,805) —_
Actual return on asscts — 24,673 24,673
Balance at December 31, 2010 $251,489 $238 974 ($12 51%)
[nterest cost $14,317 $— (5143171
Net actuarial gam due to assumption changes 22914 -_ (22,914)
Net actuanal gain due to plan expenience (691) — 691
Bencfit payments (13,227) (13,227} —
Actual return on assets — 28 864 28 864
Balance at December 31, 2011 $274 802 $254,611 ($20,191)
[nterest cost $ 14,129 $ (14,129)
Net actuanal gain due to assumption changus 36,582 (36,582)
Net actuarial gan due to plan expenence 915 — (915}
Benefit pay ments (7,146) (7,146} —_
Seulement {186.167) (187.859) (1,692)
Actual return on assets — 26 864 26,864
Balance at December 31,2012 $133,113 $86,470 ($46,645)

The expected long—term return on plan assets 1s an estimate we determine by summing the expected inflation and the expected
real rate of return on stocks and bonds based on allocation percentages within the trust. AsolDecember 31 2012 the target allocation
of assets was 16% debt sceurtties, 33% equity securiuies, 7% real estate and 44% other  The weighted average assumptions used
for dotermining the net peniodic benefit cost were as follows

Year ended December 31, 212 2011 2010
Discount rate 50% 5 5% 6 0%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 6 8% 8 0% 85%
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The following table presents the scheduled benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five years and an aggregate 10 be

paid thereafier
Expected
payments of
Year ended December 31, (8 i1 thousands) benefits
2013 S514
2014 934
2015 1,088
2016 1,468
2017 1,961
Frve year penod thereafier 18,604

20. Fair Value

Fair Value Measurcments

I"ellowing are descriptions of the valuation methodologies used to measure material asscts and liabihitics at fair value and details
of the valuation models key inputs to those models and sigmificant assumptions uiihized

Marigage loans held—for-sale — We onginate and purchase residential mortgage loans that we intend to sell to the GSEs
We also own nonagency ehigible residential mortgage loans that were onginated or purchased in prior years  Consumer
morigage loans we intend to sell to the GSEs are carried at fair value as a result of a fair value election  Qur nonagency
eligible residential mongage loans are accounted for at the lower of cost or fair value We clected to farr value
nongovernment chigible mortgage loans held—for—sale subjcct to conditional repurchase options recognized on or after
January 1, 2011 Only those non-fair value elected loans that are currently being carried at fair value are included within
our nonrecurring fair value measurement table

Mortgage loans held-lor—sale arc typically pooled together and sold into certain exit markets depending upon
underlying attributes of the loan, such as agency eligibility, product type, interest rate and credit quahty  Iwo valuation
methodologies are used to deterrmine the fair value of mortgage loans held—-for—sale  The methodology used depends on
the exat market as described below

Loans valued uswg observable market prices for dentical or similar assets (a Level 2 four value} - Includes all
aguncy—ehgible mortgage loans carried at fair value due to farr value option elecuion, which are valued predominantly
using published forward agency prices Also includes any domestic [oans and loreign loans where recently negotiated
market prices for the loan pool exist with a counterparty {(which approximates fair valuc) or quoted market pnces for
sumilar loans are available

Loans valued using wnternal models (¢ Level 3 fair value) - Includes all conditional repurchasc option loans
camied at fair value due to the fawr value opution etection and all nonagency eligible residential mongage loans that
are accounted for at the lower of cost or fair value The fair value of these residential mortgage loans are determmined
using nternally developed valuaton models because observable market prices were not avatlable The loans are
priced on a discounted cash flow basis utlizing cash flow projecuions from nternally developed modcls that utihze
prepayment default, and discount rate assumputions To the extent available, we utilize market obscrvable mputs
such as interest rates and market spreads |1 market observable inputs are not available, we are required 0 wuhize
internal inputs such as prepayment speeds, credit losses, and discount rates  While numerous controls exist to
calibrate, corroborate, and vahidate the internal inputs, they require the use of judgment by us and can have asigmificant
impact on the determanation of the loan's fair value

Consumer Finance recetvables and loans, net — We elected the fair value option for consumer mortgage finance
receivables and loans related to our on-balance sheet secunitizations A descrniption ol these sceuritizations is provided in
the On-balance sheet securitizanion debt section later i this Note  The remaming balance of our consumer finance
receivables and loans are reported on our Censoldated Balance Sheet at their prineipal amount outstanding net of charge -
offs allowance for loan losses, and net premiwms/discounts

For the securitizanon trusts for which we elected fair value optien, the loans are measured at fair value using a portfolio
approach The values for loans that with other assets and habihities constitute a securiization trust mas difter considerably
from loans held—{for-sale that can be sold n the whole-loan market  This difference anises primarily due to the Liquidity
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of the ABS/MBS market and 15 evident in the fact that spreads apptied to lowcr rated ABS/MBS are constderably wider
than spreads obscrved on scnior bend classes and 1n the whole-loan market  The objective in linking the fair value of
these loans to the fair value of the related securitization debt 1s to properly account for our retained economic inturest in
the securitizations

*  Morigage servicing rnights — We usc internally developed discounted cash flow models to estmate the fair value of
MSRs These intemal valuation models estimate net cash flows based on internal operating assumptions that we believe
would be used by market participants combined with market-based assumptions for loan prepayment rates, interest rates,
and discount rates that management bolhieves approximalte yields required by investors n this asset  Cash flows pnmanily
mclude servicing fees, float income, and late fees, m cach case less estimated operating costs 10 service the loans The
estimated cash lows are discounted using an option-adyusted spread derved discount rate

*  Dermvanive mnstruments — We enwr nto a varien of denvauve financial instruments as part of our nsk management
strategies Certan of these derivatives are exchange traded, such as Eurodollar futures To determine the fair value of
these imstruments, we utlize the exchange prices for the particular denivative contract, therefore, we classificd these
contracts as Level 1 We did not have any derivative asscts or dertvative habilities reported at fair value as Level 1 at
December 31, 2012

We also execute over—the—counter derivative conlracts, such as interest rale swaps, swaptions forwards, caps, lloors
and agency-to-be-announced (TBAs) securiies  We unhlize third—party—developed valuation models that are widely
accepted in the market to value our over—the~counter denvative contracts  The specific terms of the contract and market
observable mputs (such as interest rate torward curves and interpolated volaulity assumptions) are used in the model

We also hold certan denvative contracts that are structured specifically to meet a particular hedging objective  These
dervative contracts ofien are utihzed 1o hedge nisks inherent within certain on-balance shect secuninzauons  lo hedge
risks on particular bond classcs or securitization collateral, the derivative’s notional amount 15 often indexed to the hedged
item  As aresult, we typically are required to use internally developed prepayment assumplions as an inpul inte the mode!
to forecast future notional amounts on these structured derivative contracts  Accordingly, we classified these denivative
contracts as Level 3

AtDecember 31, 2012, we were counterparty to the Amended MMLPSA with Ally Bank, an agreement whereby we
purchase Ally Bank's Ginmie Mae mortgage loans held-for-sale 1 he purchase price ofthe loans, as defined in the agreement,
15 structured so that Ally Bank 1s effectively reimbursed tor the net cash paid to onginate the retated loans  Ally Bank's
pricing of a loan to a borrower or correspondent 15 calculated using internally developed valuation assumptions, it 1s this
price and related cash paid by Ally Bank to originate the loan that supports the value of the Amended MMLPSA, and
therefore the Amended MMLPSA 1s classified as Level 3 See Note 24 — Related Party 1ransacuons for additional
mformatton

We are required to consider all aspects of nonperformance risk including our own credit standing when measuring
fair value of a hability We reduce credit risk on the majonty of our derivatives by entering into legally enforceable
agreements that cnable the posting and receiving of collateral associated with the fair value of our derivative positions on
an ongowng basis In the event that we do not enterinto legally enforceable agreements that cnable the posting and recewving
of collateral, we wilt consider our credu risk and the credit nisk of our counterparties in the valuation of denvauve
instruments through a credit valuation adjustment (CVA), if warranted

*  On-balance sheet securiizations — We clected the fair valuc option for centamn consumer morigage finance recervables
and loans, and securitization debt for certain of our on-balance sheet securitizations  The objective i measuning these
loans and related securitization debt at fair value 15 w0 approximate our economic exposure to the collateral securing the
secuntization debl  The remawning en-balance sheet sccunitization debt that was not farr value option-elected 1s reported
on the balance sheet at cost, net of premiums or discounts and all 1ssuance costs

We value sccunitization debt that was fair value option—clected, as well as any trading securitics or mnterests retained
n financial asset sales, ustng market obscrvable prices whenever possible  The securiization debt is pnincipally m the
form of asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities collateralized by the underlying consumer mortgage finance
reeewvables and leans  [Due o the attnibutes of the underlying collateral and current capital market cenditions, observable
prices for these instruments are typically not available m active markets  We base valuations on nternally devcloped
discounted cash flow models that use a market-based discount rate In order to estimate cash {lows, we utilize various
significant assumptions, including market obseryable inputs such as forward interest rates, as well as mternally developed
mnputs such as prepayment speeds, delinquency levels, and credit losses  As a result of the rehiance on sigmficant

62



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Residenual Capual, LLLC
{Debtors-in-Possession)

assumptions and estimates for model mputs at December 31 2312 100 0% of fair value option—clected securitization

debuas classilied as Level 3

Recurring Fair Value

The following table presents our assets and habilities from continuing operauons measured at fair value on a recurring basis
including financial mstruments for which we elected the fair value option  See Note 4 - Discontinued Operations and Assets and
Liabilitics Held-for-Sale for additional information  In certain cases, we have historically economically hedge the fair value change
of our assets or habilities with denvatives and other financial instruments  The table below displays the hedges separately from the
hedged items and therefore, does not directlv display the impact of our nsk management activitics

Recurnng fair value measurements

December 31, (3 2 thousands) Level 1 level2 Level 3 lotal
2012
Assets
Mortgage loans held—tor—sate (a) §— 813,156 S— $13,156
Consumer mongage finance recenvables and loans, net (a) — — 469,923 469,923
Other assels
Fair value of derivative contracts in receivable position
Interest rate contracts — 617 103 720
Total assets S— S13,773 $470,026 $483,799
Liabihties
Collateralized borrowings
On-balancc shecl securitization debt (a) — §—- ($447,723) (%447,723)
Other liabilitics
Fair value of derivative contracts 1 hability pesition
Interest rate contracts — (197 — {197)
Total habilities §— (S197)  (S447,723) (5447920
2011
Assets
Mongage loans held—for—sale (a) 3 — 35 27253 § 29723 § 56 976
Consumer mortgage linance receivables and loans, net (a) — — 835,192 835192
Mortgage senvcing nghts e — 1,233 107 1233 107
Other assets
Fair value of derivative contracts n receivable position
Interest rate contracts 61,025 4,780,995 35,038 4877058
Foreign currency contracts — 139 — 139
Trading sccuritics
Mortgage - and asset- backed residential — 434 32,869 33,503
Interests retamed in financial asset sales — — 23,102 23,102
Total assets $ 61,025 § 4808821 § 2189051 § 7058877
Liamhties
Collateralized borrowings
On-balance sheet secuntization debt (a) $ — 3 — % (829,940) 35 (829,940)
Other habihues
Fair valuee of dervative contracts in hability position
Interest rale contracts {18,445)  (5,089,201) 24y (5,107.670)
Foreign currency comntracts — (5.861) — (5.861)
Liability for option to repurchase assels (a) — — {28,504) {28,504)

Total habilities

§  (18,445) § (5,095062) §

(858,468 § (5971,975)

(a) Carned at fair value due to fair value option elections
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The following 1able presents quantnain e anformation regarding the significant unobservable inputs used 1n matenal Level 3
assets and habihities from contmuing operations measured a1 fair value on a recurring basis

Level 3
recurring Valuation Unobservable
December 31,2012 (§ tn thousands} measurements  techmique mnput Range
Assets
Discounted
Consumer mortgage finance receivables and loans, net (a) 5469,923 cash flow Prepayment rate 3 2% - 14 2%
Default rate 12%-13 1%
Loss sevenity 41 0% - 100%
Liabthties
Collateralized borrowings
On-balance sheet secuniizatnon debt (5447,723) (a) {a) (a)
@

A portfoho approach links the value of the consumer mortgage finance receivables and loans net to the on-balance sheet secuntization debt
therefore the valuation techmque unobservable inputs, and retated range for the debt 1s the same as the loans Increases 1n prepayments which
would primanlv be dniven by any combination of lowwr projected mortgage rates and igher projected home values would resull in higher
faur value measurement These drnivers of hugher prepavments (increased ability to refinance due 1o lower rates and higher property values)
have an opposiie impact on the default rate creaung an nverse relationship between prepay ments and defaull frequency on the far value
measurements Generally factors that contnibute to higher default frequency also contribute to higher loss seventy
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The followmg ables present the reconciliation for all Level 3 assets and habilines from conunuing operations measured at fair

value on a recurning basis  Transfers into or out of Level 3 are recognized as of the end of the reporting period in which the transfer
occurred In certain tases we have historically economically hedged the fair value change ol our asseis or habilities with durivatives
and other financial instruments The Level 3 items presented below may be hedged by denvanves and other financial instruments
that are classified as [.evel 1 or Lesel 2 Thus, the following tabies do not fully reflect the impact of our nsk management activities

[ evel 3 recurring fair value measurements

et gains/(losses)

December
Jzmuary I, included 1n earnings 31,2012
2012 L evel realized unrealized 1Level 3 fawr
(5 in thousands) 3 foir value  gains(losses) goins (losses) Purchases Sales (g) Issuances  Scttlements value
Assets
Morigage foans held—for-sale $29.723 (51.021) (5924) $29.81% (a} {$29,678) S— (527,915) —
Consumer mortgage finance recen ables
and leans net 835192 202,290 (b) 116,651 (b) — (305,571 (¢) - (378,639) 169,923
Mortgage servicing rights 1,233,107 — (399,742) (d) _ {849 544) 16,179 —_ —_
Other assets
Fair value of denivative contracts in
receivable position net
Interest rate contracts 35,014 (165,716) (d) {B89) {¢) — - _ 131,694 103
Trading secunhies
Mortgage- and asset-backed
residential 32,869 (12,628) (N 18726 (D — (25,750) 165 (13382) —
Interests retaaned in financial asset
sales 23,102 (301) (N {5) (0 _— —_ — (22,596) —
Fotal assets $1,189,007 $22,424 {$266,133) 329,815 ($1,210,543) 516344 (S310,838) 5470026
Liabilittes
Collateralized borrowings
On balance sheet securitization debt ($829,940) S (136,017) (b} S(168,995) (b) 5— §323,467 (c) 5— §363 762 ($447,723)
Other Labilities
| 1abibity for opuion 10 repurchase
assets (28,504 1,021 924 (29.815) (1) 28,649 — 27,725 —
Total habiliies ($858,d44) ($134,996)  (5168,071) (529,815) 5352,116 S—  S391487  (5447,723)
(a} Includes fair value option elected conditional repurchase leans and the related liability  See Note 7 — Secuntizations and Vanable Interest Fntines for addmienat
information
(b}  Faur value adjustment reparted tn other revenue net and related interest on loans and debt are reported m nterest income and interest expense respectively
(c} Includes removal of $244 6 million from consumer mortgage finance recervables and loans and $270 4 mullion from on balance sheet secunitization debt as a result
of deconsolidations in connection with the sale of our subsidiary GMAC Financiera See Note 4 - Discontinued Operatons and Assets and Liabiliues Held for
Sale for addimonal information
(d)  Faur value adjustment reponed in servicing asset valuation and hedge activinies net
(¢}  See Note 21 — Detivative Instruments and Hedging Activities for the tocation of fair value adyustments in our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(f}  Fair value adjustment reported v other revenue net  Interest accretion on these assets 1s reported n interest income
{g) Reclassificabion of assets and habiliies of held for-sale operations are presented as sales See Note 4  Discontinued Operanions and Assets and | 1abihities Held

for-Sale for additsonal information
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I evel 3 recurning fair value measurcments

Net gains/(losses)

luded December
January | e uded In carmes Other 31 201)
2011 Level 3 realized unreahized  comprehensive Level 3 farr
(5 n thousamds) fair value gamns {losses)  gawns (losses)  income (loss) Purchases Sales Essuances  Scttlements wvalue
Assels
Mortgage loans held-for-
sale $4 084 2 (51 407) 5— $46 520 (a) (S1 388) S5— (518 357) $29723
Ceonsumer morntgage
finance recenvables and
loans net 1014703 217 293 (b} 135 203 (b} - — — —_ (332 007) 835192
Mortgage serviging rights 1991 586 (173)(c) (812 435) (¢} — — (401) 54 357 173 1233107
Other assets
Fair value of derwative
contracts in receivable
(labthty ) position net
Interest rate
contracts 69353 (377100)(d) 255705 (d) - — — — 87056 35014
Trading securities
Mortgage— and asset—
backed residential 44 128 {8 300) (e) 13 305 (e) — —_ - 478 {16 942) 32 869
Available for sale
securities
Debt secunties
Meoengage backed
residential 98% (150} — 491 — (i 007) — (323} —
Inmerests retatned m
financial asset sales 20 588 (1963) () (3 270) (¢} — — — — 7747 21102
Total assets $3 145431 (8170122) ($412 899) 8491 $46 520 {$2 796) $55035  ($472653) $2 189 007
1 rabilities
Collaterahzed borrowings
On-balance sheet
securitization debt ($972 068) 5(187 365)(b) $ (184 701) (b) $— $— 3— $— £514 224 (%829 940)
Other liabihties
Liability for option to
repurchase asse1s -_— (99) 1890 —_ {46 662) (a) — — 16367 (28 504)
Total habilities (5972 D68} ($187 494) ($182811) $— (846 662} $— $— $530591  ($858 444)
(a) Includes newly recognized far value opuion elecied condiuonat repurchase loans and the related iability  See Note 7 — Secunitizations and Varable [nterest
Ennties for additional informanon
(b}  Farr value adjustment reported 1n other revenue net and related interest on loans and debt are reported tn 1nterest income and erest expense respectively
{¢)  Fair value adjustment reported 1n servicing asset valuation and hedge activities net
(d) SecNote 21 — Denvative Instruments and Hedgimg Activities for the location of fair value adjustments 1n our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(e}  Fair value adjustment reported in other revenue net  Interest aceretion on these assets 1s reported In intergst income
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Nonrecurring Fair Value

We may be required to measure certain assets or habilities at farr value from time-to-time  These periodic fair value measures
tvprcally result from application ot lower of cost or fair value or certain impairment measures  These items would constitute
nonrecurring fair value measures  The table below presents those items from continuing operations we measured a1 fawr value on a
nonrecurring basis

lotal gains

Nonrecurring Lower of cost included in
fairvalue measures [ otal or fair value income
estimated or valuation from continuing

December 31, ($ 11 thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 fair value allow ance operalions
2012
Mortgage loans held—for-sale {a) S— S— §590,715 §590,715 (812,455) n/m (e}
Commercial finance recen ables

and loans, nct (b) — 134 — 134 — n/m (e)
Other assets

I oreclosed assets (c) — — 9,583 9,583 (3,180) n/m (e)
Total §— S$134 5600,298 $600,432 ($15,635) §—
2011
Mortgage loans held—for—sale (a) $— $— $478,760 $£478 760 ($60,233) n/m (€)
Commercial finance recenvables

and loans, net (b) — 1,442 21,597 23039 (14,978} nfim (e)
Other assets

Foreclosed assels (c) — 27,591 16,823 44414 (12,581) n/m {e)

Real estate and other

investments (d) — — — — n/m 380 [0)]

Total $— $29 033 $517,180 $546,213 ($87,792) $380

n/m = not meanmngful

(2) Represents loans or pools of loans held-for-sale that are required to be measured at lower of cost er far value  Only loans or pools of loans
wath fair values below cost are included 1n the table above  The related valuation allowance represents the cumulative adjustment to faur value
of those loans and pool of loans

(b) Representsihe poruon of the commercial portfoliothat has been specifically impared The related valuation allow ance represents the cumulative
adjustment Lo fair value of those specific commercial Mnance receivables and loans and represents the most relevant indicator of the impact
on earntngs caused by the fair value measurement The carrying values are inclusine of the respecuve loan loss allowance

(c) The allowance provided for foreclosed assets represents any cumulative valuation adjustments recognized to adjust the assets to fair value less
costs to sell

(d) Ceriain assets within the model home portfolio have been impaired and are being carnied at (a) estimated fair value 1f the model home 15 under
lease or () estimated fair value less costs to sell :f the. model home 1s being marketed for sale

(e) We consider the applicable valuation to be the most relevant indicator of the impact on earnings caused by the far value measurement
Accordingly, the Lable above excludes total gains and losses included n carmngs for these wtems  The carrying values are inclusive of the
respechive valuation

() The total toss included in earmings 15 the most relevant indtcator of the impact on earmings caused by the far value measurement
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The following table presents quantitauve information regarding the significant unobservable inputs used in significant Level
3 assets from continuing operations measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis

Level 3
nonrecurring Valuation Unobservable Range (weighted
December 31,2012 (3 i thousands) measurements techmique input average)
Assets
Discounted cash
Mortgage loans held-for-sale $590,715 flow Prepayment speeds 18%-12 6%
Default rate 54%- 16 6%
Loss seventy 49 9% - 98 5%
Discount Rate 14 55%

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

We have elected to value certain financial assets and habilitics at fair value consistent with our intent to mitigate a divergence
between our accounting results and our retained economic exposure related to these assets and habihities

Financial assets and habilities elected to be measured at far value are as follows

On-balance sheet securittizations — We elecled the fair value option for domestic on-balance sheet sccuritization trusts in
which we estimated that the credit rescrves pertaining Lo securitized assets could have exceeded or already had exceeded
our economic exposure or were required to be consolidated upon the adoption of ASU 2009-17 The fair vatue option
election was made at a securitization level and thus the election was made for both the consumer finance recetvable and
loans and the related securitization debt

The fair value clected loan balances are recorded within consumer finance receivables and loans, net, unless they are
repurchased from a sccuntization trust in which case they are recorded in mortgage loans held-tor—sale er in assets of
held-for-sale operations  Qur policy 1s to separately record mterest income on these fair value elected loans  1he fmr
value adjustment recoerded for consumer finance receivables and loans 1s classified as other revenue, net, and the fair value
adjustment for morigage loans held-for-sale 15 classified as gain on mortgage loans

The fair value elected securitization debt balances are recorded within collateralized borrowings n secunuization
trusts or in labilities of held-for-sale operations  Our policy 15 to separately record nterest expense on the fair value
elected securitization debt, which is classified as interest expense  Ihe farr value adjustment recorded for this debt s
classified as other revenue, net

Governmeni—and agency— eligible loans — We clecled the fair value option for government—and agency—eligible consumer
morigage loans held—for—sale Thiselection includes government—and agency—eligible loans we fund directly to borrowers
and government- and agency-<higible loans we purchase from Ally Bank The fair value option was clecied to mingate
earnings volaulity by better matching the accounting for the assets with the related hedges

We carry fair value option-elected government—- and agency—-chigible loans within mortgage loans held—for-sale
Our policy 15 to separately record interest income on these fair value elected loans  Upiront tees and costs related to the
farr value elected loans are not deferred or capitalized ‘The fair value adjustment recorded for these far value option—
clected loans 15 reported i gain on mortgage loans, net  The far value option election 1s mrevocable once the loan 1s
funded even 11t 18 subsequently determined that a particular loan cannot be sold

Conditional repurchase option loans and ltabidittes — As of Janvary |, 2011, we elected the fair value option for both
nongovernment eligtble mortgage loans held-for—sate subject to conditional repurchase options and the refated liabihity
L he conditional repurchase option allows us to repurchase a transferred financial asset 1f certain events outside our control
are met The typical conditional repurchase option 1s a delinguent loan repurchase option that gives us the option 1o
purchase the loan 1f it exceeds a prespecified delinquency level We have complete discretion regarding when or 1if we
will exercise these options, but generally, we would do so only when 1t 1s m our best interest We are requared to record
the asset and the corresponding hiability on our balance sheet when the option becomes exercisable  The fair value option
election must be made at 1mitial recording  As such, the conditional repurchase option loans and habilities that were
recorded prior to January 1, 2011, were not lawr value elected
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The fair value clected condittonal repurchase option loans are recorded within assets of held—for—sale operauons
The fair value adjyustment is classified as other revenue, net We do not recognize interest mcome on conditional repurchase
option loans unul the option 1s ¢xercised and the loan 15 repurchased

The corresponding fair value clected habihity 1s recorded in habihies of held-for-sale operations  The fair valuc
adjustment recorded for this habihity 1s classified as other revenue, net

I he following table summarizes the fair value option elections for assets and habilities from both continuing operations and

held-for-sale operations and information regarding the amounts recognized in earmings for each fair value option—clected ttem

Changes included 1n our Consohdated
Statement of Comprehensive Income

l.:::::‘it Gamnon Other 1 otal g?:?gful:

. (expense) ~ Mmortgage revenue, included in due to
Year ended December 31, 1§ i1 thousands) (a) loans, net net netincome  orog sk (B)
2012
Assets
Mortgage loans held—for—sale (c} $1,070 $338,480 S— $339,550 £1,022 (d)
Consumer mortgage finance recervables and loans

net 148,421 — 170,520 318,941 (38,637) (¢)
Liabilities
Collateralized borrowings

On-balance sheet securnitizations (87,069) — (217,942) (305,011) (10,448) (f)
Liabihty for option 1o repurchasc assets — — 1,945 1,945 (1,022)
| otal $355,425
2011
Assets
Mortgage loans held—for—sald (¢) $829 5759707 $483 $761,019 ($305) ()
Consumer morigage finance recervables and loans, ()

net 171 233 — 207,804 379,037 (70,372)

Liabilities
Collateralized borrowings

On-balance sheel securitizations (95,401 — 273,590 178,189 (24,620) ()
Liability for option to repurchase assets — — 1,792 1,792 3035
Total $1,320,037
2010
Assets
Mortgage loans held—-for—sale (c) $1.025 $905940 (b) $2.778 909 743 $134 (d)
Consumer mortgage finance recenables and loans (e)

net 519,351 —  L379,170 1,898,521 23 248

Liabihities —
Collateralized borrowings — — — — —

On-balance sheet securitizations (291 3152) — (1 588,233) (1 879,585) B 156 (O
l1otal §928,679

{a)

(b}
{e)
{d)

(e)
v

Inzerest income on consumer mortgage finance recewvables and loans and mortgage loans held-for-sale 1s measured by multuplying the unpaid principal balance
on the loans by the coupon rate and the number of davs of interest due  Interest expense on the on balance sheet securitizations 18 measured by multiplying the
bond principal by the coupon rate and days mnterest due 10 the mmvestor

Factors other than credit quahity that impact the fasr value nclude changes in market nterest rates and the hiquidity or marketability in the curtent marketplace

Lower levels of observable data points i 1lliquid markets generally result in wide bid/offer spreads

Includes the gainfioss recognized on fair value option-¢lecied government= and agency-chigible assets purchased from Ally Bank

The credit impact for monigage loans held-for-sale that are currently ageney eligible 15 zero because the fair value option-elecied GSE loans are salable and any
unsalable assets are currently covered by a govemment guarantee  The eredit intpact for non-ageney ¢higible toans and related habilitv was quantified by epplying
mnternal credit loss assumptions to cash fliow models

The credit impact {or consumer mortgage finance recevables and loans was quantified by applyiny internal credut loss assumptions to cash flow models

The credit impact for on-balanee sheet secunitization debt 15 assumed to be zero until our economic interests i a parucular securiizanon ¢ reduced 10 zeto at
which paint the logses n the underlying collateral will be expected to be passed through to third party bondholders Losses allocated to third party bondholders.
mcluding changes m the amount of losses allocated will result in fawr value changes due to credit. We also monuor credit ratings and may make credut adjustments
to the extent any bond classes are downgraded by rating agencies
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The table below provides the fair value and the unpaid principal balance for our fair value oplion—¢lected loans and related

collaterahized borrowings

2012 2011
Continuing operations Held-for-sale operations
Unpad Unpaid Unpaid
principal Far value principal  Fair value principal
December 31, (8 i thousands) balance {a) balance (a) balance Fair value (a)
Mortgage loans held-tor—salce
Total loans $12,925 §$13,156 $60,841 $30,708 $84.099 $56,975
Nonaccrual loans 1,016 817 57,315 27,967 53502 27.297
l.oans 90+ days past due (b) 827 625 57,124 27,834 53,312 27,179
Consumer mortgage {inance
receivables and loans, net
Total loans 51,519,710 §469,923 S178,433  §60,977 $2,436,218 $8335,192
Nonaccrual loans 228,860 77,511 (¢} 21,419 7,495 (¢) 506,300 209,371 (c)
Loans 90+ day s past due {b) 136,275 47,134 (¢) 13,082 4,656 {¢) 362 002 162,548 {c)
Collateratized borrowings
On-balance shect secuntizations (81,781,370} (8447,723) {8138,427) (853,039) (82,559,093) (8829,940)
Other liabihities
Liability for option to
repurchase assets $— 3— (859,291) (528,649) ($56,568)  (328,504)

(a) Excludes accrued interest receavable

(b) Loans 90+ days past due are also presented within the nonaccrual loans and total loans except those that are government sured and stll

accruing

(c) The far value of consumer morigage finance rcceivables and loans 1s calculated on a pooled basis therefore, we allocated the fair value of
nonaccrual loans and 90+ davs past due 10 indivadual loans based on the unpaid princepal batances

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

I'he following lable presents the carrying and estimated fawr value of assets and Trabihies from continuing operations and held-
for-sale operations that are considered {inancial mstruments  Accordingly, 1lems that do not meet the definition of a financial
instrument are excluded from the table When possible, we use quoled market prices to determine fair value  Where quoted market
prices are not available the fair value 15 imternaliy denved based on appropnate valuation methodologres with respect o the amount
and unng of future cash flows and estimated discount rates  However, considerable judgment 1s required in interpreting market
data to develop estimates of fair value, so the estimates using difierent market assumptions or estimation methodologies could be
matenal to the esumated fawr values  Fair value information presented heren was based on information available at December 31,

2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Carrying Carrying

December 31, (5 in thousands) Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Assets
Mortgage loans held-for-sale

Continuing operations $344,120 £343,351 $4 249,625 $4.365,593

Held-for-sale optrations 3.886,792 4,056,516 —_— —
Financc recervables and loans net

Continuing operations 587,475 550,216 1032131 978,863

Held-for-sale operations 60,977 60,977 —— —
Liatuhities
Debtor-in-possession credit facihies S1,449,354 §1,449,354 $— 5—
Borrowings from AffiLates 1,133,128 1,133,128 1,189,364 1,189,364
Other borrowings not subject to compromisc 282,232 240,722 4,705,404 3,734.978
Other borrowngs subject to compromise 3,301,672 2,582,838 (a) (a)

(a) Notapphcable for penodsprior to May 14 2012 Other borrowingsat December 31 2011 include borrow ings thatmay be subject to compromise

a1 December 3§, 2012
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The followmng describes the methodologies and assumpuions used to determine fair value for the respective classes of financial
wstruments  In addition to the valuation methods discussed below, we also followed guidelines for determining whether a market
was not active and a transaction was not distressed  As such we assumed the price that would be received in an orderly transaction
(including a market-based return) and not in a forced hquidauon or distressed sale

v Mortgage loans held-for-sale — Carry ing value duifurs from fair valuc as certain loans may be required 1o be carried at
cost under lower of cost or fmr value measurements (1 e fair value 1s greater than cost) See discussion of valuation
metheds and assumpuions used for morigage loans held-for-sale within the Farr Falue Measurement section of this Note

»  Consumer morigage finance receivables and loans, ner — Consumer mortgage finance recetvables and loans that are not
farr value etected use valuation methods and assumpttons simular to those used for mortgage loans held-for-sale  [hese
valuations take 1nto account the unmique aunbutions of the respective mortgage loans, such as geography  delinguency
status, product 1ype, and other factors

= Debtor-in-possession credut faciures — The DIP and Ally DIP facilities werc recently negotiated and bear interest at
floaung rates plus a market based spread Ihus, carrying value approximates fair vatue

= Borrowngs from Affiltates — Farr value was determined based upon cstimated redemption amounts, not adjusted tor any
settlements that rmght ulumately be agreed and approved, which approximates carrving value

*  Other borrowings not subject to compromise — Fawr value was determined based upon estunated redemption amounts,
not adjusted for any settlements that might ultimately be agreed and approved

*  Othrer borrowings subject to compromise — Pnimarily represents our secured and unsccured notes  Qur secured and
unsecured notes are valued based on market observable prices

21. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

[n anticipation of our bankruptcy filing, on May 10, 2012 we terminated all of our hedge transacuions with respect to our MSRs
and foreign currency exposure Post-petition we continue to enler mio hedge transactions to mitigate our economic exposure (o
changes i interest rates and other market nsks asseciated with morigage loans held-for-sale In connection with the termunation of
certain of our agreements with Ally Bank, cffective Apnil 30 2012, we terminated certamn of our hedge transacions We have
historically entered into interest rate and foreign currency swaps, futures, forwards, opuions, swaptions, and TBAs i conncction
with our sk management acuvites  Qur primary objective for executing these financial instruments was to mitgate our economic
exposure to tuturc cvents that are outside our control  These financial instruments were utihzed principally to manage market nisk
and cash flow volatility associated with mortgage loans held-for—sale and MSRs, including our total return and forward flow
agreements with Ally Bank Sec Note 24 — Related Party Transactions tor additional mformatien We do not, and did not transact
dervative struments for reasons beyend nisk management

In addition to dernivatives transacted as part of our nsk management activities, we create derivative contracts as part of our
ongoing operations  In particular, we exeeute forward mortgage loan purchase and sale commitments with Ally Bank and linancial
institutions, respectively

Addiionally, we enter into commitments with mortgage borrowers that require us to oniginate a mortgage at a stated amount
and rate these are derivative contracts 1f our intent 15 ultimately to hold the originated loan for sale  We refer to commitments to
purchase mortgage loans from Ally Bank and commitments to originate morigage loans held—for-sale, collectively, as mierest rate
lock commitments (IRLCs)

The following sumtmarizes our significant assetand Liabthity classes, the risk exposures for these classes, and our nisk management
activities utilized to mitigate certain of these risks  The discussion includes both derrvative and nonderivative financial mstruments
utilized as part of these risk management activities

Interest Rate Sensitive Assets/Liabilities

* Mortgage loan commitments and loans held-for-safe — We are exposed to interest rate nisk from the tme an IRLC 15
made, cither directhy or indirectly through the Amended MMLPSA with Aily Bank unul the time the mortgage loan 15
sold Sec Note 23 - Commitments, Conungencies and Other Risks for addinonal informauon Changes in interest rates
impact the market price for the mortgage loan as market interest rates dechine, the value of exisuing IR1 Cs and mortgage
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loans held-for-sale increase and vice versa The primary objective of our nsk management activiiies related to [RLCs
and morigage loans held—for-sale 1s to eliminate or reduce any interest rate nisk associated with these assets

We enter into forward sale contracts of mortgage-backed sccurities, prnimarily agency TBAs, as our pnmary strategy
to miuigate this nnsk  These contracts are ty pically entered nto at the time the miterest rate lock commument is made The
value of the forward sates contracts moves in the opposite dircction of the value of our IRLCs and morigage loans held-
for-sale We may also use other derivauves, such as options and futures 1o cconomically hedge centan portions of the
portfoho  Nonderiyauns ¢ instruments, such as short positions on U § Treasurtes, may also be used to economically hedge
the portfolio  We momitor and actively manage our risk on a daihy basis therefore trading volume can be sigmificant

We do net apply hedge accounting to our derivative porttoho held to economically hedge our IRLCs and morigage
loans held—for-sale Included 1n the denivatives on IRLCs and mortgage loans held—for-sale 1s the Amended MMLPSA
with Ally Bank with a fair value of $0 6 million and an outstanding notional of $46 6 mullion at December 31,2012 See
Note 24 — Related Party [ransactions for additional mformahon

+  Mortgage servicing righis and other retained interests — Qur MSRs and retamed interests are generally subject to loss
in value when mortgage rates decline  Dechmng mortgage rates generally result in an increase 1n refinancing activity
which mcreases prepayments and results in a dechine in the value of MSRs and other retained interests  To mitigate the
impact of this rnisk, we maintamed a porttohio of financial instruments primanly dernvatives, which increased in value
when intercst rates dechined  The primary objective was to mumnuze the overall nisk of loss i the value of MSRs and
other retained nterests due to the change in fair value caused by interest rate changes and their interrelated impact to
prcpayments

We useda vanety of dertvauve instruments to manage the interest rate nisk related to MSRs and other retained interests
These included, but werc not limited to 1nterest rate futures, call or put options on U S Treasurnies, swaptions, mortgage-
backed secunities (MBS) futures, U S Treasury futures, intercst rate swaps interest rate floors and caps While we do not
currently utilize nonderivative nstruments (1 ¢, U S Treasurics) to hedge this portfolie, we have utilized them in the past
and may utilize them again in the future  We are not currently hedging in connection with our MSRs and retamned interests

Prior to May 1, 2012 denivatines hedging MSRs and retained intercsts included a total return swap with Ally Bank
Under the terms of the total return swap, Ally Bank transferred the total economic return of a specificd portfolio of MSRs
owned by Ally Bank to us 1 exchange for a vanable payment based on a fixed spread 1o LIBOR  This agrecement was
termunated on April 30, 2012 Sec Note 24 — Related Party Transactions for additional mformation

Foreign Currency Risk

W¢ have operations outside the Unued Staws  Our foruign subsidiarics maintain both assets and habilitics in local currencies
that are deemed to be the functional currencics of these subsidianies for accounting purpeses  Foreign currency exchange ratc gams
and losses arise when assets or labilities are denominated in currencies that differ from the entities functional currency and are
revalued into the functienal currency  In addition, our equity 15 impacted by the cumulative translation adjustments recognized n
other comprehensive income resulung from the translaton of foreign subsidiary results to U S dellars  oreagn currency nisk 1s
reviewed as part of our nsk management process  The prineipal currencies creauing foreign exchange nisk are the U K Sterling and
the Euro

Unul May 10, 2012, we economically hedged foreign currency risk related to assets and habilities that were denominated in
currencics 1 our U S dollar funcuional curreney entines  The principal ebjective ol the foreign currency hedges was to minigate
the earmings solatilty specifically created by foreign currency exchange rate gains and losses  We held forward currency contracts
o mutigate nsk againsi currency fluctuauon in the U K Sterling and the Euro - We did not elect to treat any foreign currency swaps
as hedges for accounting purposes, principally because the changes in the lair values of the foreign currency swaps were substanually
offset by the foreign currency revaluation gains and losses of the underly ing assets and habihties

Credit Risk and Collateral Arrangements

Dertvative financial mstruments contain an clement of credit nisk 1f counterparties, mcluding affiliates arc unable to meet the
terms of thear agreements  Credit nisk asseciated with denvative financial instruments 1s measured as the net replacement cost should
the counterparties that owe us under the contracts completely fail to perforim under the terms of those contracts, assuming there are
ne recoveries of underlying collateral, as measured by the fair value of the denivatv e financial instruments At December 31 2012
and December 31, 2011 the fair value of derivative financial instruments tn an asset or recetvable positton, were $0 7 million and
$4 9 bilhon, including $0 6 million and 53 2 billion with affiliates, respectivels
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As arcsult of the Chapter 11 Cascs, the number of counterparties witling to enter into denvause transactions with us s hnuted
As aresult, our primary counterparty 1s Ally Investment Management, Inc (Ally IM), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ally Inc We
have entered into legally enlorceable agreements that permit the closeout and netung of transactions with the same counterparty
upon occurrence of certamn evenms Yo further muitigate the nisk of counterpany default, we execute collateral agreements with
counterparties  The agreements require both parties to mamtamn cash deposits in the event the fair values of the derivative financial
mstruments meet established thresholds  We have received cash deposis from counterparties totaling $0 0 million and $636 1
million at December 31, 2012 and, December 31, 2011 respecuvely, for dervative positions in an asset position to us - We have
placed cash deposits totaling $10 0 mallton and $1 1 billion at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respecuvely i accounts
mamntained by counterparties for deris ative posttions in a liability posttion tous  The cash deposits placed and received are mcluded
i accounts recenvable, other assets and other hiabilittes

We are not exposcd to credit nisk related contingent features i any of our denvative contracts thal could be tripgered and
potentially could expose us to future loss

Consolidated Balance Sheet Presentation

Ihe following table summarises the location and fair value amounts of derivative mstruments reported on our Consolhidated
Balance Sheet The far value amounts are presented on a gross basis and are segregated between denivatives that are designated
and quahfying as hedging instruments and those that are not and further segregated by tvpe of contract within those two categories

2012 2011
Fair value of dernvatne Far value of dervatine
contracis in contracts \n
Recen able Payable Notional Recervable Payable Notional
December 31, (3 in thousands) position {a)  position {(b) amount position (a)  position (b) amount
Economic hedges
[nterest rate nsk
MSRs and retained interests §— §— S—  $4.811,804 (55.011,576) $523,142,192
Mortgage loans held—tor—sale _— (197) 86,500 8,770 (96,077) 17,323,000
Debt — — — 21,066 — 251,790
Total interest rate risk — (197) 86,500 4 841 640 (5,107,633) 540 716,982
Foreign exchange risk — - — 520 (5.873) 3 157000
Non-risk management dern atives
Ally Bank MSR swap _ _ - 17,681 — 1,384,835
Ally Bank forward flow 617 — 46,629 16,423 — 9 825783
Mortgage loan Lommitments 103 — 4,793 933 (3) 77 633
I'otal dertvatives $720 (S197) $137,922  $4 877 197 {85113 531} 3555 162 233

(a) Presented in other assets
(b) Presented in other lhabihities
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Presentation

The following table summarizcs the locabon and amount of gans and losses from contimung operations reported w our
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income retated to derivative instruments  Gains and losses are presented scparately for
denivative instruments designated and qualify ing as hedging instruments in fair value hedges and non-designated hedging instruments
We currentlv do not have qualifying cash flow or foreign eurrency hedges

Year Ended December 31, (§ w1 thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Qualifytng accounting hedges
Gam (loss) recognized in earmings on denvatives
Interest rate conlracls
Interest income §— ($3.41D) $1,918
Gain recopnized in carnings on hedged iem
Interest rate conlracts
Interest expense — 3654 3,489
{otal qualifyaing accounung hedges —_ 243 5407
Economuw. hedges

Risk management derivatives
Gain (loss) recognized 1n earungs on derivatives
Interest rate contracts

Intercst expense (2,908) (2,512) (16,389)
Gain on morigage loans, ntt (130,902) (721,939) (336,417)
Servicing asset valuation and hedge activities, net 222,532 816,243 477,977
Other revenue, net — (11,956) 3)
Total inlerest rate contracts 88,722 79.836 131,108
Foreign exchange contracts
Other noninterest expense, net (1,464) (21,296) 37,813
Non-risk management denvauves
Gain on mortgage loans, net (56,767) 238,024 (65,474)
Servicing asset valuation and hedge activities, net (108,949) (359,523) 469,945
Total dernvatives (578,458) ($62,716) $578 859

Our denivative portfolios gencrally are reflected in the operating acuivities section of our Consolidated S1atement of Cash | lows
Dernvative fanr value adjustments are captured 10 our Consohdated Siatement of Comprehensive Income line 1tems described in the
table abovc and, accordingly, are gencrally reflected wathin the respecuve hine items withm the reconcihaton of net income (loss)
to net cash provided by operating activities section of our Consolidated Statement ot Cash Flows [ he remaining changes inderivative

portfolio values are generally reflected within the net change in other assets or net change in other habilities line items on our
Consolidated Statement of Cash 1 lows

22. Nonperforming Assets

Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans and foreclosed asscts  The classification of a loan as nonperforming docs not
necessanly indicate that the pnincipal amount of the loan 1s ulumately uncollectuble in whole orin part  In certain cases, borrowers
make payments to bning their loans contractually current and 1n all cases our mortgage loans are collateralized by residential real
estate  As a result, our cxperience has been that any amount of ultimate loss for mortgage loans other than home equity loans 15
substantially less than the unpaid pringipal balance of a nonperforming loan

Dehinquent loans expose us to igher levels of credit losses and therefore are considered higher nisk loans  The determination
as to whether a loan falls into a parucular delinquency category 1s made as of the closc of business on the balance shect date
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The following table sets forth information concerning the delinquency experience mn our mortgage loans held—for—sale and
consumer finance receivable and loans at carrving value

2012
Continuing operations Held-for-sale operations 2011
December 31, ($ i thousands) Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % ot total
Current 8677922 T22% $977,212 24 8% 32,003,928 38 0%
Past due
30 to 89 days 60,311 6 4% 76,942 19% 137,590 26%
90 days or more and sull
accruing miterest (a) 90,237 96% — —% 73 661 1 4%
90 days or more conditional
repurchase option loans — —% 2,635,168 (b) 66 8% 2,379,926 (b) 45 1%
MNonaccrual 110,444 11 8% 258,448 6 5% 677,250 12 9%
Total 938,914 100 0% 3,947,770 1000% 5,272,355 100 0%
Allowance for loan losses (7,453) — (13,638)
Total, net 5931461 $3,947,770 35258 717

{a) Loans that are 90 day s or more delinquent and still accruing interest are government insured

(b)  We do not record 1nierest income on condiional repurchase option loans  1f these options were exercised and we acquired the loans $2 5
bill:on and $2 3 billion would be classified as 90 days or more and sull accruing due o government guaranices at December 31 2012
and December 31 2G11 respectively The private-label conditional repurchase option loans of $84 7 million and $105 8 million would be
classified as nonaccrual at December 31, 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

The following lable presents the net carrying value of nonperforming assets

2012
Continming  Held-for-sale

December 31, (§ 11 thousands) operations operations 2011
Nonaccrual consumer

I1st Morigage §$82.836 $226,502 $462,275

Home equity 24,861 31,946 71,787

Foreign 2,747 — 143,188
Total nonacerval consumer 110,444 258,448 (a) 677,250 (a)
Nonaccrual commercial

Domestic — — —

Foreign — — 12 534
Total nonaccrual commercial — — 12,534
Foreclosed assets 20,822 — 71,485
Total nonperforming asscls 5131,266 §5258,448 $761,269

(a) Excludes loans subject to conditienal repurchase options of 52 5 bilhon and 52 3 bilhion sold to Ginme Mae guaranteed secuntizations and
$84 7 mallion and $105 8 million seld to off-balance sheet private-label secuntizanion trusts at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011
respectively The corresponding hability 1s recorded in habilities of operations and other habihties respectivels See Note 7 — Secunuizations
and Vanable Interest Entittes for addional information
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23. Commitments, Contingencies and Other Risks

Financing Commitments

The contract amount of financing commitments were as follows

Contract amount

December 31, (3 i thousands) 2012 2011
Commtments to
Onginate/purchase mortgage loans or securities §51,422 $9903415
5ull mortgage loans or sceurities (a) —_ 12,632,000
Home equity lines of credit — 1,648,388
Provide capital lo investees — 9 000

(a) Includes $6 3 billion as of December 31, 2011 of commutments 1o selt secunuies to Ally IM under outstanding TBA transactions  See Note 21
- Denvative Instruments and Hedging Activities for addinonal information

Commitments to originate/purchase mortgage loans or securities

Historically prior to mortgage funding we committed to oniginate loans under IRLCs with borrowers whereby we commatted to
fund loans at a set interest rate, provided the borrower elected to close the loan  We also commitied to purchase loans from Ally
Bank Since our Chapter 11 filing we have not commtted 1o onginate loans directly to borrowers, except in Ohiwo and Nevada
We havy, however, commitied 1o purchase, and have purchased, from Ally Bank mortgage loans insured by the E HA or
guaraniced by the VA pursuant to the Amended MMLPSA  Our commitment to purchase mortgage loans pursuant to that
agreement terminated upon the closing of our servicing plattorm sale on February 15, 2013, except with respect to the remaning
pipeline of mortgage loans that Allv Bank had commutted to a borrower, prior to February 15, 2013 to onginaie, but which had
not yet been onginated as of such date  The esumated fair value for these commitments 15 the current estimated fair value of the
underlying mortgage loan less the par value of commatted loan amount, adjusted for anticipated net origination costs and fees and
any loans that are not expected to be tunded based on our historical expenience  The determuination of the underly ing mortgage
loan fair value 15 estimated using published market mformation associated with commitments to scll similar instruments  All of
these commitments were accounted for as derivatives duning the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

Commitments to sel)l mortgage loans or securities

We enter into forward delivery commutments to sell mortgages and MBS to third party tnvestors  The forward sale commutments
obligate us to sell a certain amount of loans or secunities withan a certamn range of nterest rates 1 a specified time peried  Duc to
the nature of the commuiment, we are exposed to terest rate and market rate risk during the commitment pertod  All of these
commitments were accounted for as denivatives at December 31 2012 and 2011

Home equity lines of credit

Prior to the Petition Date, we had commuuments to fund the remaining undrawn balances on home equity lines of credit
( HOLOCS™) Effective as of the Petition Date, pursuant te an order of the Bankruptcy Ceurt, the Debtors ceasud funding any
HELQC draws

Other Commitments and Contingencies

As described m Nole | - Description of Business, Basis of Presentation and Changes i Significant Accounting Policics and
Noie 2 - Voluntary Reorganization Under Chapter 11, on May 14,2012, the Debtors filed voluntary petihons tor reliet under Chapter
11 of the Umited States Bankruptcy Code i the Unuied States Bankruptey Court for the Southern Disinet of New York  Under
Chapter 11, the filing of a bankruptey pctinon automatically stays most acuions aganst the Debiors, including except otherwise
noted, the matters described below and most other actions to collect pre-petition habilities are expected to be resolved under the
Plan 1f not otherwise satisfied pursuant 1o orders of the Bankruptcy Court  Our matertal pre-petition contingencies and other nisks
are desenbed below
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Mortgage Foreclosure Matters

Settliements with Federal Government and State Attorneys General

On February 9, 2012, Ally Inc, ResCap and certain of our subsidianes reached an agrecment in principle with respect to
investigations into procedures followed by mortgage servicing companies and banks in connection with mortgage ortgmation and
servicing activitics and foreclosure home sales and evictions  On March 12, 2012, the DOJ Settlement was filed as a consent
Judgment inthe U S Dustrict Court for the Disirict of Columbia In addiion we separately reached an independent settlement with
Oklahoma, which did not participate 1 the broader settlement described below, and agreements with two other states for other
releascs

The DOJ Settlement generally resolves potential claims by the state and federal authonties party to the DOJ Settlument ansing,
out of ongination and servicing activities and foreclosure matters, subject to certan exceptions  The DOJ Settlement does not
prevent state and federal authonties from pursuing ciminal enforcement actions, sceuniues-related claims {including actions related
io secuntization activities and Morigage Llectronic Registrauon Systems, or MERS) loan origination claims, claims brought by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and certain other matters  The DOJ Settlement also does not prevent claims that
may be brought by individual borrowers

The DOJ Settlement requires that we provide at least $200 million 1oward borrower relicf, provides incentives for borrower
relief that 1s provided within the first twelve months, and requires that all obligations must be met by March 12, 2015, three years
from the date the consent judgment was filed In addiion, we were required to implement new servicing standards relating to matters
such as foreclosure and bankruptcy information and documentation, oversight, loss mutigation, lunitations on fees, and related
procedural matiers Comphance with these obligations 1s overseen by an independent monitor, who has authority to imposc additional
penalites and fines if we fail to meet estabhished timelines or fail to iImplement required servicing standards  Under the lerms of the
Asset Purchase Agreement and related documents that we entered into with the purchasers of our Platform Assets, the purchascrs
agreed to comply with the terms of the DOJ Settlement and cooperate with us 1 connection with continuing comphance and the
monitor's oversight work

In connection with the DOJ Settlement, we patd $109 6 milhon to a trustee, for distnibution to fedcral and stale governments
in March 2012 In addition we also paid $2 3 million 1n connection with separate state agreements  Qur obligation to provide
borrower rehief can be sansfied by loan modifications, inctuding principal reductions, rate modificauons, and refinancing for
borrowers that meet certain requirements, and participation in ccrtain other programs  Generally, 1f certam basic critenia are met,
borrowers that are wither dehinquent or at imminent risk of default and owe more on therr mortgages than therr homes are worth
could be eligible for principal reductions, and borrowers that arc current on their mortgages but who owe more on their morigage
than their homes are worth could be eligible for refinancing opportunities

Also as part of the DOJ Settlement, we agreed to solicit borrowers 1n both cur own and Ally Bank's loan portfolios that were
chigible for rate and principal modifications as of March 1, 2012 We are commutted to provide loan modifications to all borrowers
who accept a modification offer withen three months of the solicitanon We also agreed to provy ide loan modifications to borrowers
who accept a modification offer withun six months of the sohicatation, untess and unul total borrower rehief provided exceeds $250 0
million We estimated an eligible population of approximately 14 000 borrowers At December 31,2012 we had solieited orreviewed
applications of approximately 11 400 borrowers and completed approximately 4,860 refinancings or modificanons We have also
executed approximatety 4,100 other non-modification borrower relief iransactions, incleding wanvers of toreclosure and short sate
defictencis  These non-medification borrower relief transactions include deficiency waivers where we have a valhid deficiency
under state laws At December 31 2012, we had achieved borrower rehiel creduts, subject to caps and limntations of the DOJ
Settlement and including incentives for activities completed withun the first twelve months, of approximately $336 8 million  This
includes modifications that have not yet met the 90 day borrower performance requirement

On February 14, 2013 the Office of Mortgage Servicer Oversight (Monitor) filed an Interim Consumer Rehiet Report and
Cerufication with the U S Distriet Court for the District of Columbia in respect of the DOJ Sewlement, certifying that ResCap has
provided more than $250 million 1n consumer relict Based on that certificauion, we have exceeded the mimimum amount of consumer
relief required by the DOJ Settiement and are not required 10 provide more consumer rehef except i respect of any relicf that may
be provided mn the remaining outstanding borrower solicitations referenced above  We believe we will compleie the solicitation
process during the third quarter of 2013

We have reimbursed Ally Bank $87 9 nullion n connection with chgible borrower rehief actions completed with respect to

their loan portfolio See Note 24 - Relaled Party Transactions for additional nformanon  The habihits for remaming borrower relic
obligations including future reimbursement to Ally Bank, 1s $42 2 million at December 31, 2012 and 1s recorded in other habilities
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The Indemnification Agreement with and among the Debtors, Ally [ne Ally Bank and the UCC provides thatwe will reimburse
Allv Bank to the extent borrower rettef transactions are exceuted n respect of the Ally Bank loan portfolios  Simultancously with
any reimbursement pay ments by the Debtors 1o Ally Bank in connection with borrower relief activiues, Ally [nc agreed to fund an
escrow account mn an equal amount Lo any post petiion reimbursement payment by any Debtors The Debtors have made payments
of $39 3 nullion to Ally Bank that are subject 1o the cscrow provisions of the Indemmification Agrecment through December 31
2012 At December 31, 2012 we have recorded a hability of $39 3 million for estimated future reimbursements to Ally Bank in
connection with the Indemmfication Agreement

Federal Reserve Board Civil Maoney Penalty

On February 9, 2012, Ally Inc and ResCap agreed with the Board of Governors of the Federal Rescrve (FRB) on a civil money
penalty of $207 0 mullion related to the same activities that were the subject of the DOJ Settlement [ his amount will be reduced
dollar-for-dollar 1n connection with certain aspecls of our sauslaction of the required monetary payment and borrower rehef
obhigauons ncluded within the DOJ Seulement, as well as our participation 1n other sumilar programs that may be approved by the
FRB We behieve we have satisficd the amount of the civil money penalty by virtue of the borrower relict obliganons completed to
date undcr the DOJ Settlement

Other Mortgage Foreclosure Matters

Consent Order

As aresultof an examination conducied by the FRB and FDIC on Apnil 13,2011 we entered 1nto a Consent Order (the Consent
Otder) with the FRB and the FDIC  The Consent Order required that we make improvements o various aspects of our residential
mortgage loan-servicing business, wncluding compliance programs, internal audint, communications with borrowers, vendor
management, management information systems, employee ramning, and oversight by our Board of Dirvctors

The Consent Order required GMAC Mortgage to retamn independent consullants to conduct a nisk assessment related to mortgage
servicing activities and separately to conduct a review of certain past restdennial mortgage foreclosure actions  The risk assessment
was completed in 2011 The review of past residential mortgage foreclosures 1s still underway  We have recorded a liability for
potennal remediation payvments to borrowers of $33 5 million at December 31,2012 The habihity 15 recorded n other lhabibiies
We currently esumate our remediation obligations could range from 331 9million to $59 3million This range reflects management's
estimates using a variety of assumptions, including the sevenity and number of individual penalues  To the extent these assumptions
change, the range of potenual obligations could change  We esumate additonal future out-of-pocket costs 1 connccuon with the
foreclosure review of up to $320 6 milhon

On October 11, 2012 the Bankruptey Court 1ssued orders approving our motions to continue to pay certain professionals in
connection with the our oblhigations under the Consent Order and to continue to take such actions that are necessary to comply with
and adhere to the terms of the Consent Order and the DOJ Settlement  On four occasions, the Bankruptey Court entered further
mterim orders extending the Debtors' authonity to pay these professionals

On February 27 2013, we filed wath the Bankruptey Count a motion disclosing updated esumates reflecting that the overall
costs of conducting the foreclosure review and paying any associaled remediation Our current estimate as of the date of the financial
statements 1s these costs could potenually reach $431 0 10 $458 4 millwon o this motion, we requested that the Bankruptey Court
enter an order classitying GMAC Mortgagd's foreclosure review obhigaton as a general unsecured claim for purposes of any plan
filed in our Chapter 11 Cases and concluding that the aulomatic stay of section 362(a) of the United States Bankruptey Code prevents
any attempt by the povernment to cnforce the foreclosure review obligation outside of the Chapter 11 Cases A final hearing on the
motion 15 expected to be set for latc April 2013 or early May 2013

On January 7,2013, the I RB FDIC and OCC reached a settlement pursuant to which ten other mortgage servicers could satisfy
foreclosure review requirements in their respective consent orders by making a lump sum payment inio a scttlement fund to be
distiibuted among an even larger populatton of borrowers than are the subject of the foreclosure review process, and providing
cerlain borrower assistance  The Debtors werc offered the opportunity to enter into the settlement reached with those other servicers,
but no sctilument has yot been reached  The Diebtors anticipate that discussions will continue with the | RB in respect of a potential
settlement of their foreclosurc review obligations

There are polential nisks related to these mortgage foreclosure maiters that extend beyond potential hiabihty on individual
foreclosure actions Specific nisks eould include, for example, claims and hugation related to foreclosure remediation and
resubmisston claims from mvestors that hold secunities that become adversely impacied by continued delavs in the foreclosure
process, the reduction in foreclosure proceeds due to delay, or by challenges to completed foreclosure sales to the extent 1f any, not
covered by title msurance obtained 10 connection with such sales acuions by courts state attorneys general, or regulators to delay
further the foreclosure process aficr submission of corrected affidavats, or to facihtate claims by borrowers alleging that they were
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harmed by our foreclosure practices (by, for example, foreclosing without offering an appropriate range of alternatine home
presen ation options} additional regulatory fines, sanctions, and other additional costs, and reputational nisks  To the extent any
such claims cxist, however, the associated proots of claim would have necded to be recened by the November 16, 2012 general
clarms bar date set by the Bankrupicy Court Anv claimants who did not (ile their proefs of claim in accordance with the bar date
order are forever barred, estopped and enjoined from asserung such claim against the Debtors

Loan Repurchases and Obhigations Related to Loan Sales

As a result of our Chapter 11 Cases, wo have classified the portion of the liability related o non-GSE reprosentation and
warranty obligations as subject to compromise  We have also engaged 1n settlement discussions with certam iny estors in our priv ate-
label securitizations and have reached a proposed settlement agreement  Any seitlement agreement 1s subject to approval by the
Bankruptcy Count  Sce Private-label Securitizations (PLS) below for additional information

Overview

We have sold loans that take the lorm of secunitizations guaranteed by the GSLs, securitizations sold to private investors, and
to whole-loan imvestors  In connection with a portion of our priv ate-label securitizations, the monolines msured all or some of the
rclaled bonds and guaranteed umely repayment of bond principal and mierest when the issuer defaults  In connection with
securihizations and loan sales, the trustee. for the benefit of the related security holders and, 1t applicabte, the related monohne insurers
are provided v anous representations and warranttes related 1o the loans sold  The specific representations and warranties vary among
different transactions and investors but typically relate to, among other things, the owncrship of the loan, the vahdity of the lien
securing the loan, the loan’s compliance with the cniteria for clusion 1n the transactien, including compliance with underwriting
standards or loan criteria established by the buyer, the ability to deliver required documentation and compliance with applicable
laws In general, the represcntations and warranties described above may be enforced at any tme unless a sunset proviston 18 In
place Upon discovery of a breach of a representation or warranty, the breach is corrected 1n a manner conforming to the provisions
of the sale agreement  This may require us to repurchase the loan, indemnify the investor for incurred losses, or otherwisc make
the investor whole  We have entered into settlement agreements with both Fannic Mac and ! reddic Mac  See Government-sponsored
Enterprises below In connectton with the terminaizon of our MSR Total Return Swap with Ally Bank on Apnil 30, 2012, we de-
recognized $125 7 nulhon of our hiability for representation and warranty obligations This represented the portion of our
representation and warranty obligations for loans purchased from Ally Bank servicing retained and subsequently sold into the
secondan market, generally through securitizations guaranteed by the GSEs  The reversal was recorded in representation and
warranty expense, net and servicing asset valuation and hedging, net on our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  We
recorded a capital contnbution of $125 7 million m connection the de-recognition through the forgiveness ol the MSR Total Return
Swap hability

Originations

Ihetotal exposure to mertgage representation and warranty claims is most significant for loans oniginated and sold between 2004
through 2008, specificalty the 2006 and 2007 vintages that were onginated and sold prior to enhanced underwriung standards and
risk—-mitigation actions implemented an 2008 and forward  Since 2009, we have locused pnimaniy on purchasing prime conlorming
and government-insured mortgages [n addition, we ceased offering interest—only jumbe morigages n 2010 Representation and
warranty risk miigauon strategies include, but are not limited to, pursuing settlements with investors wherw economically beneficial
m order to resolve a pipeline of demands 1 heu of loan-by-loan assessments that could result in repurchasing loans, aggressively
contesting claims we do not consider valid (rescinding claims) and seeking recourse against correspondent lenders from whom we
purchased loans wherever appropriate

Demand/Clatmt Process

Afterrccerving aclaim under representation and warranty obligations, we review the claim to determinc the appropriate response
(¢ g appeal and provide or request additonal information) and take appropriate action (rescind repurchase the loan or remt
indemmification payment) Historically repurchase demands were generally related 10 loans that became dehinquent w ithin the first
lew vears lollowing origination  As a result of market developments since 2007 investor repurchase demand behavior has changed
significantly GSEs and investors are more likely to submu claims for loans at any peint 1n the loans Iife cycle  Representation and
warranty claims are generally reviewcd on aloan-bv—loan basis to vahdate 1f there has been a breach requinng a potenual repurchase
orindemnification payment We acuively conicstciaims to the extent they are not considered valid  We are not required 1o repurchase
& loan or provide an indemmification payment where claims are not vahd

The nsk of repurchase or mdemmification, and the associated credit exposure 1s mandaged through our underwriung and quality
assurance practices and by servicing mortgage loans to meet mestor standards  We believe that 1 general, the tonger a loan
performs prior to default, the less likely it 1s that an alleged breach of representation and warranty will be tound to have a matenial
and adverse impact on the loan’s perlormance. When loans are repurchased, we bear the related credittoss on the loans  Repurchased
loans arc classified as held—for-sale and imitially recorded at fair valuc
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The follow ing table includes amounts paid to investors and monolines with respect to representation and warranty abligations

Year ended December 31, (8 11 thousands) 2012 2011
Loan repurchases (UP13)
GSEs §43,474 £143.340
Private-label securitizations msured (monolines) 6,675 829
Private—label securitizations uninsured — 36,557
Whole-loan investors 2,470 9,285
Total $52,619 $190,011
Indemnifications (make wholes) by investor
GSEs $38,095 $59.269
Private~label securitizations msured (monolines) — 12,474
Private-label securitizations unmsured — 167.354
Whole~loan investors 9,969 25,439
Total 548,064 $264,536

The foltowing table presents the 1otal number and onginal unpaid principal balance of loans related to unresolved representation
and warranty demands (indemnification claims and/or repurchase demands) The table includes demands that we have requesied
be rescinded but which have not yet been agreed to by the imvestor

2012 2011
Number Origimal UPB Number Original UPB
December 31, (8 i thousands} of loans of loans of loans of loans
Unresolved repurchase demands previously receved
GSEs 76 Sl 357 $71 ()
Insured private-label secuntizations
MBIA Insurance Corporation 7,314 490 7,314 490
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company 4,825 382 4,608 369
Other 983 78 730 58
Uninsured private-label secunuzations 647 209 38 7
Whole Loan [nvestors 875 102 475 74
Total unpaid prineipal balance 14,720 $1,272 13,522 $1,069
(a) Excludes $59 0 million of onginal UPB on loans where counterparties have requested addinonal documentation as part of individual loan
file reviews

We are currently in liugauon with MBIA Insurance Corporation {MBIA) and Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (FGIC)
with respect to certam representation and warranty matters related to certain of our private-label secunitizations  The Debtors’ Chapter
i1 Cases automatically stay this ittgation  [has litigation 15 expected to be resolved under the Plan or by orders of the Bankruptcy
Count  Historically we have requested that most of the demands be rescinded, consistent with the clmm/demand process described
above  As the htigauon process proceeds additonal loan reviews arc expected and will likely result in additional repurchase
demands

\

Liabiisty for Representation and Warranty Obliganions

The hability for representation and warranty obligations reflecis management’s best estimate of probable hfetime loss We
constder historical and recent demand trends tn establishing the resene  The methodology used to estmate the reserve considers a
varntety of assumptions including borrower performance (both actual and estimated future defaults), repurchase demand behavior
historical loan defect experience, historical mortgage insurance rescission experience, and historical and estimated future loss
expertence, which includes projecuons of future heme price changes as well as other qualitauve factors including imvestor behavior
In cases where we do not have or have himited current or histonical demand experience with an mnvestor, it 1s difficult to predict and
estimate the level and timing of any potential future demands  In such cases we may not be able to reasonably estimate losses, and
a habihty 15 not recogmsed Management monitors the adequacy ofthe overall resen ¢ and makes adjustments to the level of reserve,
as necessary, after consideration of other qualitative factors including ongoing dialogue and expencnce with counterparties As a
result ot the Chapter 11 Bankrupicy proceedings the filing of addional representation and warranty htigation against the Debtors
has been stayed and the filing of claims for representation and warranty liabilits must now comply with the Bankruptcy Court's
approved claims filing process
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Atthe time a loan 15 sold, an ¢stimate of the fair value of the hability 15 recorded and classificd in other habihties and recorded
as a component of gain on mortgage loans net We recognize changes in the liability when additional relevant information becomes
available Changes in the esumate are recorded as representation and warranty expense, net At Decumber 31, 2012 the iabiluty
relates pnmarily to non-GSE exposure  In connection with the termination of certain of our agrecments with Ally Bank effective
Apnil 30, 2012, we transferred the amount of hability we had recognized in connection with loan sales to the GSEs where Ally Bank
was the servicer  Sew Government-sponsored Lnnities bilow for addittonal information

The followmng table summarizes the changes i our habilusy for representation and warranty obhgations

Year knded December 31, (8 1 thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Balance al Januarvy 1, $824,776 $830 021 $1.262,918
Provision for representation and warranty obligations

Lean sales 5,517 18,924 70,455

Change n estimate 52,937 324 070 670 452
1 otal additions 58,454 342,994 740,907
Realisid losses (a) (76,696) (359,658) (1,185 549)
Recovenies 9414 — —
Transfer o Ally Bank (125,686) 11,419 11,745
Balance at December 31 S 690,262 (b) $824 776 $£830 021

{a) Includes principal losses and acerued interest on repurchased leans indemnification pay ments and settlements with investors

(b) In connection with our Chapter 11 Cases, we have classified $630 1 million of our liabhity for representation and wammanty obliganons at
Drecember 31 2012 as subject te compromise  We continue to satisfy our obligations 1o the GSEs as approved by the Bankruptey Court [n
addition  oblhigations recogmized 1 connection with post-pention loan sales are classified as liabihues not subject to compromise At
December 31 2012 360 t miltion was recorded in other habilities and are not subject to compromise

Gavernment-sponsored Entities

Each GSE has specific gmdelines and eriteria for sellers and servicers ol loans undurlymg their secunties  In addiion the risk
of credu less on the loans sold was generally transferred to investors upon sale of the securiics into the secondary market
Conventronal conforming loans were sold to either Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae, and government—insured loans were secuntized
with Ginnte Mae  Our representation and warranty obligation hability wuth respect to the GSEs considers the existing unresolved
claims and the best estimate of tuture clamms that could be received  We consider our expeniences with the GSEs 1n evaluating our
liability

In connection with the termination of our MSR Total Return Swap with Allty Bank on April 30, 2012, we de-recogmized $125 7
multion ot our iability tor representation and warranty obligations  This represented the portion of our represcniation and w arranty
obhgauons for loans purchased irom Ally Bank scrvicing retained and subsequently sold into the secondary market generally through
securitizations guaraniced by the GSEs

The following table summarises the changes in the oniginat unpard principal balance related to unresolved repurchase demands
with respect our GSE exposure  [he table includes demands that we have requestud be rescinded but as to which rescission has not
been agreed to by the investor

Year ended December 31, (8 in millions} 2012 2011 2010
Balance at January 1, $71 5170 $29¢6
New claims 228 441 842
Resolved clams (a) (112) (349) (756)
Rescinded claims/other (102) (191} (212)
Transfer to Allv Bank (74 — —
Balance at December 31 S11 $71 $170

(a) Includes settlements repurchased loans and claims under which indemnification pay ments are made

[n March 2010, we eniered into an agreement with Freddie Mac under which we made a one-time payment 1o Freddie Mac for
the release of repurchase obligations relating to most of the mortgage loans sold to I reddie Mac prior 1o January 1 2009 This
agreement does notrelease any of our obhgations with respect to exposure tor private-labe ] MBS in w hich Freddie Mac had previousty
invested, loans where our affiliate, Ally Bank 15 the owner of the servicing, s well as defects in certan other specified categortes
of loans  Further we continue to be responsible for other contractual obligations we have with Freddie Mac, including all
mdemmification obhgations that may anse n connection with the servicing of the mortgages  1hese other specified categories
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include (1) loans subject to certain state predatory lending and simular laws (1) groups of 23 or more mortgage loans purchased,
onginaled or serviced by onc of our subsidiaries, the purchase, onigination, or sale of which all invelve a common actor who
commutted fraud (i} * non-loan-level’ representations and warranties which refer to representations and warranties that do not
relate to specific mortgage loans (examples of such non-loan-level representations and warranties mclude the requirement that our
subsidraries meet certain standards to be eligible to sell or service loans for Freddie Mac or our subsidianies sold or serviced loans
for market parucipants that were not acceptable 1o Freddie Mac) and (1v) mortgage loans that are ineligible for purchase by Freddie
Mac under 1ts charter and other applicable documents I, however, a mortgage loan was ineligible under Freddie Mac s charter
solcly because mortgage isurance was rescinded (rather than for example, because the mortgage loan 1s secured by a commereial
property), and Freddie Mac required us or our subsidiary to repurchase that loan beeause of the inchigibility, Freddie Mac would
pay any net loss we suttered on any later iquidation of that mortgage loan

In December 2010, we entered mto an agreement with Fannie Mae under which we made a one-time payment to Fanmic Mae
for the release of repurchase obligations related to most of the mortgage loans we sold to Fannie Mac prior to June 30 2010 lhe
agreement also covers polenuial exposure tor private-label MBS in which Fannie Mae had previously invested  This agreement does
not release any of our obligations with respect to loans where our affiliate Allv Bank, 1s the ovner of the servicing as well as for
deleets i certam other specified categories of loans  Further, we conunue to be responsible for other contractual obliganons we
have with Fannie Mae, including all indemnification obligations that may anse in connection with the scrvicing of the mortgages,
and we continue to be obligated to indemnify Fannte Mac for lugation or third party clmms (including by borrowers) for matters
that may amount to breaches of selling representations and warranties  These other specified categortes melude, among others, (1)
thos that violate anti-predatory laws or statutes or related regulations or that otherwise violate other applicable laws and regulations,
() those that have non-curable defects in title to the secured property, or that have curable title defects, to the extent our subsidiaries
do not cure such defects at our subsidiary’s uxpense (1) any mortgage loan in which tuitle or ownership of the mortgage loan was
defecuive (1) groups of 13 or more mortgage loans, the purchase, origination, sale or servicing of which all invols ¢ a common actor
who committed fraud, and (v) morigage loans not n compliance with Fannie Mae Charter Act requirements (e g, mortgage loans
oncommercial properties or morigage loans without required mortgage msurance coverage) [famortgage loan falls out of compliance
with Fanmie Mae Charter Acl requirements because mertgage insurance coverage has been rescinded and not reinstated or replaced,
upon the borrower s default our subsidianes would have to pav (o Fannie Mae the amount of insurance proceeds that would have
been paid by the mortgage mnsurer with respect to such mortgage loan  If the amount of the loss exceeded the amount of insurance
proceeds, Fanme Mae would be responstble for such excess

We have received subpoenas from the Federal Housing Finance Agency (FHFA), which 1s the conservator of Fannie Mac and
Freddic Mac lhe subpoenas relaung 1o Fannie Mae investments have been withdrawn with prejudice  The FHFA indicated that
documents provided in response to the remaming subpoenas will enable the FHFA 10 determine whether they believe ssuers of
private-label MBS arc potentially hable to Freddie Mac for Josses they might have incurred  Although Freddie Mac has not brought
any representation and warranty claims against us with respect to private-label securities subsequent to the settlement 1t may do so
in the future The FHFA commenced sccunities and related common law fraud htigation against us and certain of our subsidiaries
with respect to certamn of Freddie Mac's private-label secunitses investments, but dismisscd that lingation shortly after the filing of
our Chapter 11 Cases

On January 31, 2013, the Bankrupicy Court eniered a supulauon and order fully resolving Fannie Mae's carhier filed proofs of
claim and cbjections to the Debtors” sale ot their servicing platform  Gencrally, this stipulatton provided that upon the closing of
the sale of the Debtors' servicing platform the Debtors pay | annic Mae $293 3 million, $28 3 million of which represents (he
estimated amount outstanding as of the closing date with respect 1o Servicer Advance "unding Facility dated August 1, 2010 (as
subsequently amended) and $265 0 mullion of which represents the agreed upon aggregate amount necessany to cure all defaults
under vanous Fanme Mae agreements and to allow for assumption and assignment of such Fanme Mac agreements to Walter as pant
of the sale of the Debtors' servicing platform

On February 13, 2013, the Bankruptcy Court entered a stipulation and order by and between the Debtors and Freddie Mac
gencerally resolving Freddic Mac's earhier filed proofs of claim and objections to the Debiors' sale of their servicing platform  This
stipulation provided among other things, that upon the closing of the sale ol the Debtors’ servicing platform, the Debtors pay to
Freddie Mac $39 4 miltion and that subsequent to closing, the Dubtors will honor repurchases 1 process at the date of closing in
the ordinan course

Private-label Securitizations (PLS)

In general, representations and warrantics provided as part of our private—label securitization activities are less nigorous than
those provided o the GSEs and generally impose higher burdens on 1oy estors seeking repurchase  [n order to successfully assert a
clatm, 1115 our position that a claimant must prove a breach of the representations and warranues that matenaliy and adversely affects
the interest of the investor in the allegedly defecuve foan  Securnitizauon documents typically provide the investors with a nght o
request that the trustee investigate and minate a repurchase claim  However, a class of investors generally 1s required to coordinate
with other investors in that class comprising no less than 25% and in some cases 50% of the percentage interest constituung such
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class ol sccurities issucd by the trust 10 pursue claims for breach of representations and warrantics  In addition our private-label
securibizations gencrally requare that the servicer or trustee give notice 1o the other parties whenever 1t becomes aware of facts or
circumstances that reveal a breach of representation that materaally and adversely affects the interest of the ceruficate holders

Regarding our securitization activities, we have exposure to potuntial losses primarniy through two avenues  First investors,
through trustees 1o the extent required by the applicable agreements (or monoline insurers in certan transacuions}, may request
pursuant to applicable agreements that we repurchase loans or make the investor whole for losses incurred 1f 1t 15 determuned that
we violated representations and warranties made at the time of the sale provided that such violatons matenally and adversely
impacted the interest of the investor  Contractual representations and warranues differ based on the speeific deal structure and
nvestor  [11s our positon that hitigation of claims relating to loan level represemations and warrantics must proceed on a loan by
loan basis Thigissue s being disputed throughout the tndustry 10 various pending liigation matters  Similarly in dispute throughout
the industry 1s the degree to which claimants will have to prove that the alleged breaches of representations and warranties actually
caused the losses they claim to have suffered  Ulumate resolution by counts of these and other legal 1ssues will impact hiugation
and treatment of non-lingated claims pursuant to similar contractual provisions  Second, Investors in secunizations may attiempl
torescind of thewr investments or collect damages through liugation by claiming that the applicable offering documents were matenally
deficient I an investor properly made and proved ns allegations, the investor night atiempt to claim that damages could include
loss of market valuc on the mvestment even if there were liltle or no credit loss i the underlying loans

We are actively engaged in settlement negetiations with representatines of institutional investors and trustees in residennial
mortgage-backed securities issued by us At December 31, 2012, insututional investors holding morc than 25% of at teast one class
i each of 334 securitizations have agreed to support the Plan as part of an $8 7 billion proposed settlement agreemunt  The proposed
settlement agreement requires the approval of the Bankruptey Count  These 334 securitizations (out of a total of 392 outstanding
securitizations with an origmal unpaid principal balance of $221 { billion) have an aggregate ongial unpaid principal balance of
more than $188 5 bidlion There can be no assurance that a Plan or the proposed scttlement agreement will be approved  In accordance
with ASC 852, the llability 15 recorded consistent with our accounting policies unul such ume as the clavm s allowed or the amount
for which the claim may ultimately be settled 1s determined A hearing in connection with the proposed settlement is scheduled for
late May 2013

Insured Private-label Securitizations (Monoline)

Historically we have secunitized loans where the monolines insured alt or some of the related bonds and guaranteed the tmely
repayment of bond principal and interest when the ssuer defaults  [ypically any alleged breach requires the msurer to have both
the ability to assert a claim as well as evidence that a defect has had a material and adverse cffeet on the interest of the sceurity
holders or the nsurer Generally, most claims in connection with private-label seeunitizations come from Monoline insurers and
continuc to represent the majority of outstanding repurchase demands For the period 2004 through 2007, we sold 342 7 bilhon of
loans 1nto these monoline insured securitizations

We are currently mn litigation with two Monolines MBIA and I'GIC, m connection with our representation and warranty
obhigations and additional litigation with other Monohines 1s likely  The Debtors' Chapter 11 Cases automaucally stay this hitigatron
This hugation 1s expected to be resolved under the Plan or by orders of the Bankruptey Count

The following table summarizes the changes in the original unpaid principal balance related to unresolved repurchase demands
with respect to our Monoline exposure The table includes demands that we has e requested be rescainded but as to which rescission
has not been agreed to by the investor

Year Ended December 31, (8 i1 miilions) 2012 2011 2010
Balance at January 1, 5917 3661 $553
New claims (a) 38 265 151
Resolved claims (b) (1) (20) (36)
Rescinded claims/other (1) 11 (7
Balance at December 31 5950 3017 3661

(a) Substanually all relate to claims associated with the 2004 through 2007 vintages
(b} Includes settlements, repurchased loans and clatms under which indemmification pay ments are made

Uninsured Private-label Securuizations

Prior to 2012, we sceuritized loans where all or some of the resulling sccurities were unmsured  We were required 1o make
customary representations and warranties about the loans to the investors and/or securitization trust  [ypicatly, any alleged breach
of representations and warranues requires the holder of the secunty to assert a clamm as well as evidence that a defect has had a
material and adverse effect on the interest of the securiy holder During the penod 2004 through 2007 we sold $182 1 billion of
leans into these uninsured private-label securitizations  Claims associated with uninsured PLS were historically seif wdenuficd and
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constituted an immatenial portion of new claims  This unpatd principal balance of these securiizations 15 not representative of
expected future losses

The following table summarizes the changes m our eriginal unpard principal balance related to unresolved repurchase demands
with respect to our uminsured PLS exposure  The table includes demands that we have requested be rescinded but as to which
rescission has not been agreed to by the investor

Year Ended December 31, (5 tn millions) 2012 2011 2010

Balance at Januany 1, S8 $3 $—
New claims 210 8 3
Resalved clamms (a) (7) (3) —
Rescinded claims/other (2) — —
Balance at December 31 5209 £8 $3

{a} [Encledes losses settlements impairments on repurchased loans and indemnification pay ments

Whole—foan Sales

Ihe follew ing table summarizes the changes in the ongimal unpard principal balance related to unresolved repurchase demands
with respect to our whole-loan sales  |he table includes demands that we have requested be rescinded but which have not been
agreed to by the investor

Year Fnded December 31, (S in nutlions) 2012 2011 2010
Balance at January 1, $73 $85 $70
New claims (a) 40 76 123
Resolved clamms (b) (6) an 44)
Rescinded claims/other (5) (37 (64)
Balance at December 31 §102 373 385

{a} [ncludes $40 1 million, $74 3 militon and $120 0 million 1n new ¢laims associated with the 2004 through 2007 vintages tn 2012 and 2011,
respectively
{b) Includes settlements repurchased loans and claim under which indemnification payments are made

Private Mortgage Insurance

Morigage insurance 1s required for certain consumer mortgage loans sold to the GSLs and certain secunitization trusts and may
have been in place for consumer mortgage loans sold to whole-loan mvestors  Mortgage insurance 1s typically required for first-
lien consumer morlgage loans having a loan-to-value ratie at ongimation of greater than 80 percent Mortgage msurers are, in certain
circumstances, permiticd to resemd exisung mortgage msurance that covers consumer loans at they demonstrate certan loan
underwriting requirements have not beenmet Upon receipt of a rescission notice, we assess the notuice and 1f appropniate, we reluic
the notice, or If the nolice cannot be refuted we attempt 1o remedy the defect Lo the event the mortigage wnsurance cannot be
remstated we may be obligated to repurchase the loan or provide an mdemnification payment in the event of a loss, subject to
contractual hmitations  While we make every cffort to rewnstate the mortgage insurance, we have had limited sucecss and as a resuly,
most of these requests result in resaission ol the mortgage msurance At December 31,2012, we have approxamately $202 5 million
m onginal unpaid principal balance of outstanding mortgage insurance rescission notices where we have not received a repurchase
demand However, this unpaid principal amount is not representative of expected future iosscs

Legal Proceedings

We arc subject to potential habiliy under varnous governmental proceedings, claims and legal actions that are pending or
otherwise asserted against us  We are named as defendants in a number of legal actions and we are occasionally myvelved in
gorermnmental proceedings anising in connection with our respective businesses  Some of the pending actions purport to be class
actions, and certan legal actions include claims for substantial compensatory and/or pumitive damages or claims for indeterminate
amounts of damages We establish reserves for legal claims when pay ments associated with the claims become probable and the
payments can be reasonably estimated Guven the inherent didficulty of predicuing the outcome of htigation and regulatory matiers,
it 15 generally very difficult to predict whal the eventual outcome will be, and when the matter will be resohved  The actual costs ot
resolving legal claims may be higher or lower than any amounis resenved for the claims  For the non-PLS/Monoline huganon, we
recorded a Labilitv for probable legal claims of $67 7 million and $94 5 mithon at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011
respectively, a portion of which 1s classtficd as subject to compronuse at December 31, 2012 The Debtors’ Chapter 11 Cases
automatically stays most htigation uniess otherwise ordered by the Bankruptey Court  Each of the following matters 1s subject o
the automatic stay as to any Deblors remaining in the case and 1s expected to be resolved under the Plan or by orders of the Bankrupicy
Court
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Private-label Securities Litigation

We and certarn of our subsidianies have been named as defendants in several cases relaung to our various roles in MBS offerings
The plamntiffs generally allege that the defendants made misstatements and omissions 1n registrahion staluments prospectuses
prospecius sepplements, and other documents related to the MBS offerings  The alleged misstatements and omissions ts pically
concern underwnting standards for restdential mortgage loans  Plamtffs generally claim that such misstatements and omissions
constitule vielations ot state and/or federal securities law and common law including ncghgent misrepresentatson and fraud  Plamu(ts
seek monetary damages and rescission  Sct forth below are descriptions of the most significant of these legal proceedings

Allstate Litigation

OnFebruany 14 2011, the Allstate Insurance Company and v artous of its subsidiaries and affiliates (collectivels Allstate) filed
a complaint 1n Hennepin County District Court, Minnesota, agamnst GMAC Mortgage RFC Residential Funding Secunies LLC
(RFS}) Residential Accredit Loans Inc (RALID, Residenuial Assct Mortgage Products, Ine (RAMP), Residuntial Funding Mortgage
Secunties [ Inc (RFMSI) Residential Funding Mortgage Securities | Ine (RE MSII) and Residential Asset Securities Corporation
(RASC)(collectively the defendants} The complaintalleges that the defendants misrepresented in the ofTering matenals the niskiness
and credit quality of, and omiticd matenal information related to, restdential MBS Allstate purchased  [he complaint asserts claims
for fravd, negligent misrepresentanon, and alleged violation ol the Minnesota Consumer Fraud Act, and sceks money damages and
costs including atomeys' fees On November 28 2011 the court 1ssued an order denying the defendants’ motion to dismuss the
fraud and Consumer Fraud Act claims, bul granted the motion to dismiss the negligent misrepresentation claim

Charles Schwab Lingation

On August 2 2010 The Charles Schwab Corporation {Schwab) filed a complaint in San Francisco County Superior Count
against RALI and RAMP (collectively, the defendanis})  The complaint alleges that the defendants made lalse representations and
ommissions of matenal facts in the offering documents of various secunitization trusts backed by residential mortgage loans and secks
rescisston and money damages for neghgent misrepresentation and violanons of state and federal sccurities laws On April 27,2012
RALI and RAMP answered the Second Amended Complaint

FHF4 Litgation

On September 2, 2011, FHEA, as conservator for Freddic Mac filed a complant aganst Ally [Inc GMAC Mortgage Group
ResCap, GMAC-REC, RFC, RAMP, RASC RALI and certain unaffiliatwd underwniters (collecuvely, the defendants), in New York
County Supreme Court The complant alleges that Freddie Mac purchased over $6 0 billion of residential MBS issued 1n connection
with twenty -one securiizations sponsored and/or underw ritten by the defendants |t further alleges that the registration statements
prospectuses, and other offering matenials associated with these transactions contaned false and misleading statements and omissions
of matenal tacts The complaint asserts claims for negligent misrepresentation, fraud, and violations of state and fedcral securities
laws and seeks rescission and recoven of the consideration reddic Mac pawd for the securities, as well as other compensatory and
pumitive damages Alfly Inc and ResCap removed the case to the United States Court for the Southern District of New York The
case 1s stayed as to the Debtors but s proceeding as 1o the remaining detendants On December 19, 2012, the count ssued an order
granting, dismussal ot claims based on alleged owner-occupancy and LT V-ratio misrepresentations  Virgima Securities Act claims
for certificates purchased before September 6, 2006, and certain other linited claims brought against underw niter de fendants under
state and federal securities laws relaung to ceruificates purchascd from other parties The coun denied the motions to dismiss in all
other respects

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Liugation

On July 14 2011, FHLB of Indianapehs filed an Amended Complaint in Manion County Supenor Count for rescission and
damages asserting claims for common law neghgence and violations of state and federal secunities laws, and names RFMSI and
GMAC Mortgage Group among other defendants (collecuively, the defendants) The complaint alleges that the offering documents
for the secunties underwritien and 1ssued by the defondants contamed matenal misrepresentations of fact evidenced by high default
and foreclosure rates, and secks unspecified damages and an order vording the transactions at issue  On July 3, 2012 the Coun
granted plamufT's request to dismiss Debtor RFMSI

OnApnl 20,2011, FHLB of Boston filed a complaint 1in Suflolk County Supenior Court, naming numcrous defendants including,
GMAC Mornigage Group RALI and RFC (collecuvely, the defendants) The complaint alleges that the defendamis collectivels
packaged, marketed, effered and sold private label MBS, and FHLB of Boston purchased such securittes i reliance upon
misstatements and emisstons of matenial facts in the offering documents  The complaint seeks rescission and damages for neghgent
misrepresentauon and violations of the Massachuscits Umiform Securities Act among other claims
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On Oclober 15,2011, FHLB of Chicago filed a Correcled Amended Complamnt for Rescission and Damages in Cook County
Circuit Court, which names, among other defendants, GMAC Mortgage Group RFC RAMP RASC and RFMSI (collectively the
defendants) The complaint alleges that the offering documents for the securities underaniten and 1ssued by defendants contatned
material misrepresentations of fact and asserts claims for violations of state secuniies law and negligent misrepresentation  The
complaint seeks rescission of the transactions at 1ssue and damages i an amount to be determined at tnal  The case 1s staved as to
the Debtors, but 1s proceeding as to the remamning defendants  On September 19, 2012 the Court demed delundants’ motions to
dismiss in their entirety

Huntuington Bancshares Litigation

On October 11, 2011, Huntingten Bancshares, Inc commenced a lawsuit against GMAC Mortgage, RALL ResCap, GMAC-
RFC RFC, andseveral individuals (collecuvely, the defendants) 1 he complaintalleges that the de fendants made misrepresentations
and emissions of matenal facs related to the onginator's loan underwriting guidehines in the offering matenials for five residential
mortgaged-backed secunitics  The complaint asserts claims for fraud arding and abetung fraud, negligent misrepresentation, and
violation of the Minnesota Securnities Act and seeks rescission money damages, and costs  Although the case 15 stayed as to the
Debtor cntities, it has contimued as to certam former officers and directors  On December 11, 2012 the Court granted all defendants'
motions to disrmss n their entirety A notice of appeal has been filed

Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company Litigation

On I'cbruary 9, 2011, the Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company (MassMutual) filed a complamnt in the Umited States
Dustrict Court for the District of Massachusetts against numerous defendants including RFC, RALL RAMP, and RASC (collectively
the defundants) The complaint alleges that the defendants' public filings and offening docunents associated with MBS MassMutual
purchascd contained false statements and omissions ot matenal tacts  MassMutual asserts claims for violations of the Massachusetls
Uniform Sceurnities Act and seeks both compensatory and statutory damages On February 14, 2012 the Court disnuissed the Debtor
entines

National Credit Union Admunistration Board (NCUAB) Litigation

On August 9, 2011, NCUAB filed a complaint as hquidating agent o U8 Central Federal Credit Union (U 8 Central) and
Western Corporate Federal Credit Umon {WesCorp) against Goldman Sachs & Co as underwniter and seller, and Fremont Morigage
Secunities Corp , GS Mongage Secunues Corp , Long Beach Secunities Corp , and RALI as1ssuers with respect to certain residential
MBS purchased by U S Central and WesCorp  Previously, on June 20, 2011 the NCUAB filcd a complaint as hquidating agent of
US Central against numerous defendants including RFMSIT  The complaints assert claums under the Cahforma securities laws and
Sections 1 1and 12 ofthe Secuniies Actof 1933 alleging the offering documents assoctated with the underlying transactions contained
untruc statements and emissions of matenal facts, and seck money damages and costs

New Jersey Carpenters Litigation

On January 3, 2011, New Jersey Carpenters Health Fund, New Jersey Carpenters Vacation Fund, and Boilermaker Blacksmith
Nauonal Pension Trust, on behalf of themselves and a pulative class (colleetively, New Jersey Carpenters) along with several
intervenor plamuff pension funds, filed a Consohdated Sccond Amended Secunities Class Action Complaint agamnst numerous
defendants mcluding ResCap RFC RALI, Residential Funding Secunities Corporation d/bfa GMAC RI'C Securities and several
individual defendants (collectively, the defendants) The complaint alleges that the plamtffs and the class purchased MBS between
Junc 28 2006, and May 30, 2007, and asserts that the offering documents associated with these transacuons contamned
musrepresentations and omitted matenal information in violation of Secuions 11, 12, and 15 of the Secunties Act of 1933 The
complant seeks compensatory damages, rcscission or a rescissory measure of damages, and attorneys' fees and costs, among other
relief 1he case 1s stayed as to the Debtors but 15 proceeding as to the remaining defendants | he court mnitiallv dented New Jersey
Carpenlurs’ request for class certification of claims with respect to four offerings, but granted class certification upon a motion for
reconswderation  Although New Jersey Carpenters intends to seek class certification with respect to the mtervenor claims as wetl,
amouion for certafication of the intervenor claims has not yet been filed New Jersey Carpenters has also asked the court to reconsider
uts prior decision dismissing claims retating to an additional fifty -five offerings for lack of standing

Suchting Pensioenfonds Litgation

On October 11,2011, Suchung filed a complaint in Minnesota state court agamst Aily Inc - Allv Secunities LLC(Ally Securities)
and a number of ResCap entities and individual directors and officers The amended complaint alleges common law fraud, neghpgent
miusrepresentation, and violation of state securities laws [he action was removed to federal court in 2012 after the ResCap affihates
filed for bankrupiey All remaining defendants have moved to dismiss the amended complaint and briefing on that motion 15 1n
progress
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Western & Southern Litigation

Western & Southern filed a complaint on June 30 2011 in Hanulon County, Ohio against Allv Sccurities and a number of
ResCap entittes and individual defendants  The amended complaint filed in Scptember 2011 alleges violauon of state sccurities
laws, common law fraud, negligent misrepresemantion and civil conspiracy and seeks rescission and money damages ncluding
compensatory and punmitive damages, interest, and attorney 's fees and costs A motion to dismiss was gramied on June 6 2012, as
to the individual delendants

Prvate-label Monoline Bond Invurer Lurgation
MBIA Lingation

MI31A brought two cases in New York County Supreme Court MBIA Insurance Corporation v REC (filed December 4, 2008)
and MBIA Insurance Corporation v GMAC Mortgage (filed Apnl 1,2010) (RI"C and GMAC Mortgage collectively the defendants)
The complaints allege that defendants breached their contractual representations and warranties relatung to the characterisues of
mortgage loans contained in certain msured MBS ofterings |1 he complants further allege that the defendants failed to follow
spectfic remedy procedures set forth in the contracts and improperly serviced the mortgage toans Along with claims for breach of
contract, MBlA also alleges claims for fraud neglhigent misrepresentation and unjustennchment MBIA secks, among other remedtes,
repurchase of certan loans, payments on current and future claims under the relevant pohicies, indemmification for attorneys’ fees
and costs, and puniive damages  Generally, the court granted motions to disnuss MBIA's claims for breach of good faith and fair
dealing, neghgent misrepresentation and unjust enrichment, but denied dismissal of MBIA's fraud and breach of contract claims

FGIC Lingation

On November 29, 2011, FGIC filed three complaints against ResCap i New York County Supreme Court  In two of these
cases, both entitled Financial Guaranty Insurance Company v REC et al , FGIC alleges that defendants breached their contractual
representations and warranties relating to the charactenistics of the mortgage loans contained in certain msured MBS offerings I'GIC
further alleges that the defendants breached their contractual obligations to permit access to loan files and cortain books and records

In the third case, entitled Financial Guaranty Insurance Company v GMAC Mortgage LL.C, etal , FGIC makes similar contract
allegations against GMAC Mortgage and ResCap, as well as aclaum against GMAC Mortgage for fraudulent inducement  Inaddition,
FGIC alleges mding and abetung fraudulent imnducement aganst Ally Bank which oniginawed a large portien of the loans n the
disputed pool, and breach of the custodial agreement for faiting to noufs FGIC of the claimed breaches of representations and
warranties In cach of these cases, FGIC secks among other relicf, reunbursement of all sums it pard under the various policies and
an award of legal rescissory, equitable, and punimive damages

On December 15, 2011, FGIC filed a fourth complaint in New York County Supreme Court related to insurance pehcies 1ssued
in connection with a RFC-sponsored transaction  This complant, entitled Financial Guaranty [nsurance Company v Ally Inc, et
al, names RFC and ResCap, and secks various forms of declaratory and monetary rehiet The complaint alleges that the defendants
are alter cgos of one another, fraudulenily induced FGIC's agreement to provide mnsurance by misreprescnung the nature of REC's
business practices and the credit quality and characteristics of the underlying loans and have now materially breached their agreement
with FGIC by refusing 11s requests for mformation and documents

On December 27, 2011, FGIC filed three additional complaints in New York County Supreme Court against ResCap and RFC
These complaints scek relief nearly 1dentical to that of FGIC's previously filed cases and contain substantially similar allegations
[n particular FGIC alleges that the defendants acting as alter ¢gos of each other, fraudulently induced FGIC to enter into seven
separate insurance and indemmity agreements and breached their contractual obligations under same

Addinonal complaints were [iled by FGIC on January 31, 2012 March 5 2012, March 6, 2012, March 12, 2012 and March
13,2012, respectively [hese complaints seck rehief nearly identical to that of 'GIC's previously filed cases and contain substantially
similar allegations In particular, FGIC alleges that the defindanits, acting as alter cgos of cach other, fraudulently induced FGIC to
enter Into sescn separate nsurance and indemnuty agreements and breached their contractual obligations under same  [n addition
FGIC amended its first-fited complaint to name Ally [nc as a defendant

All of the YGIC cases are now venued in the U S Distnict Court for the Southern District of New York
Assured Guaranty Litigation

Assured Guaranty filed a complaint on May 11, 2012 1n Federal District Court, the Southern District of New York against
Ally Inc Allv Bank and a number of ResCap entiies alleging claims for breach of contract reimbursement and indemnification

87



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residential Capatal, LLC
(Debtors-in-Possession)

under New York law and secks monetary damages i connection with 2004 and 2006 morigage secuntizations ResCap filed
bankruptcy for uselland ats named affihates before that complaint could be served on them

Non-PLS/Monoline Lingation
Kessler Linganon (In Re Communuity Bank of Northern Virgina and Guaranty National Bank of Tallahassee)

Several putanive class actions filted in 2001-2003, all alleging that onginators Community Bank of Northern Virgima and
Guaranty Nauonal Bank of Tallahassee charged cenain interest rates and fees m violauon of the applicable Secondary Mortgage
L.oan Act were consolidated for seitlement purposes m the U § District Court for the Western Distnctofl Pennsy lvama On September
22,2010, the Third Circuit Court of Appeals vacated an order approving the setllement and remanded the case to the tnal court for
turther proceedings On Octeber 10, 2011, plaintiffs filed ajoint consolidated amended ctass action complaint against, among others,
RFC allcging violations of the Real Estate Scttlement Procedures Act the [ruth in Lending Act, as amended by the Home Ownership
and Equity Protection Act and the Racketeer [nfluenced and Corrupt Organizations Act  The Debtors have engaged n scttlement
discussions with the plamnufTs since the filing of the Bankruptey Cases, but no seulement has been reached

Muchell Lingation

In this Missour class actton plamnuffs alleged that Mortgage Caprtal Resources, Inc (MCR) violated the Missoun Second
Mortgage Loan Act by charging Missouri borrowers fees and interest not permutted by the Act RFC and Homecomings, among
others, were named as defendants in their role as assignees of certain of the MCR loans  Poltowmg a imal concluded m January
2008, the jury returned verdicts against all defendants, including an award against RFC and Homecomings for $4 3 million 1n
compensatory damages {plus pre- and post-judgment interest and attorneys' fees) and aganst RFC for $92 0 million i punitive
damages [n a November 2010 deession, the Missourt Court of Appeals affirmed the compensatory damages but ordered a new nal
on punitive damages  Upon remand, RFC paid $12 8 milhion m compensatory damages (including interest and attorneys' fees) At
the end of February 2012, RFC cntered into an agreement in principle to settle all of plamnuffs’ remaimng clams, mcluding the
appeal n respect of plainuffs already-awarded attorneys fees, for a total of $17 3 million

Moore-Cap Re Litigation

In this putative class action plaintifts allege violations of Sectton 8(b) of RESPA by Debtor GMAC Mortgage, non-Debtor
affihate Cap Re of Vermont, and Ally Bank in the refurral of PMI business to PM! companices thal engaged 1n related retnsurance
transactions with Cap Re PlamufTs contend that Cap Re does not mcur any actual risk as a result of the remsurance contracts or
that the compensation provided 15 not commensurate with the nisk transferred  1he case 1s currently stayed as to debtor GMAC
Mortgage and presently in suspense as to the other defendants in the U S Bastrict Coun for the Eastern District of Pennsylvama

Regulatory

Our onginauon, purchase sale, securitizauon and servicing business activities expose us to risks of noncomphance with
cxtensive tederal, state, locat and loreign laws, rules and regulations  Our business activilics are also governed by among other
contracts primary and master servicing agreements that contain covenants and resinctions regarding the purformance of our servicing
actiaties  Our farlure to comply with these laws rules, regulations and contracts can lead to, among other things loss of licenses
and approvals, an mability 10 sell or secunize loans, demands for indemnification or loan repurchases from purchasers of loans,
demands lor indemnilication or other compensauon (rom imvestors in our secunusations, fines, penalues, hugaton mcluding class
action lawsuits, and governmental investigations and enforcement actions, including, in the case of some violations of law possible
criminal habihiy

We contirue to respond to subpoenas and document requests from various government agenctes secking information covering
a wide range of mortgage-related matters and the securitizauon of residential mortgages [ hese inquiries include broad requests for
documentation and other information i connection with the imesugation of potenual fraud and other potennal legal violations
related to mortgage backed securities as well as the onginatton and/or underwriting of mortgage loans It 15 possible that these
ingunries could result in actions aganst us

Operating Leases

The Debtors tease office space under 70 separate agreements  As allowed under Section 365 and other sections of the Bankrupicy
Code, thc Debtors may assume, assume and assign or reject unexpired leases that were entered mnto prior to the Peunon Date  The
Bankruptcy Code requires that Deblers make a dectsion on non-residential real property leases within 120 days of the Petition Date
Fhe Debtors recened a 90-day extension from the Bankruptey Count which exiended the deadline to December 10, 2012 The
Debtors received extensions bevond the December 10 deadline from the landlords of six of us highest-dollar leases  Exwept for

88



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Residential Capatal, L1.C
(Debtors-1n-Possession)

those leases entered into after the Petttion Date, the office space leases where an extension from the landlord was not obtained were
deemed rejected as of December 10, 2012 The lease pavments related to those pre-petion leases where an extension was not
obtained prior to December 10, 2012 deadling 15 30 1 mellon m 2013

Effective as of December 10, 2012, cach of the unexpired leases of nonresidenual real property under which a Debtor was the
lessee was deemed rejecled pursuant to section 363(d)(4)(B){(n) of the Bankrupley Code wuth certamn exceptions  These exceptions
include properties i Dallas, Texas, and Burbank California, for which the Debtors have extended the deadline to assume or reject
the leases to May 31, 2013 In addition, the Debtors extended the deadline to agsume or reject the lease for thewr headquarters 1n
Fort Washington Pennsylvamato Apnl 30, 2013, and 1n connectton with the extension received Bankrupicy Court approval of (1}
the rejection of the lease, effective as of Apnil 30, 2013, and (n) the abandonment of certain property on the premises In connection
with the abandonment, the landlord has agreed to waive any rejection damages claim  In addiuion, the Debtors have assumed leases
for real property n Costa Mesa, Califormia {(which lease was assumed on December 20, 2012} Bloomington, Minnesota {(which
lease was assumed on March 20, 2013), and Fort Washington, Pennsylvama (which lease was assumed on February 7, 2013) One
nonresidential real property lease located in Lewisville, Texas was assumed and assigned to Ocwen on | chruary 15,2013 1n conneclion
with the sale of the Debtors' servicing platform

The table below contans $8 1 million of future lease pay ments associated wath the Lewisville Texas lease  This was the only
office space lease that was assumed and assigned pursuant to the asset purchase agreements thal the Debtor consummated with
Ocwen, Walter and Berkshire Hathaway [t 1s expected that the Debtors will reject or let expire i aceordance with their own terms
the operating lcases not assumed and assigned  Consequently, we anticipate that our habilies pertaming to Ieases will change
significantly 1n the future

As of Decumber 31, 2012, the total future mimimum rental payments were as follows

Leases as part of

Year Ended December 31, ($ in thousands) engoeing operation

2013 §19,723
2014 17,861
2015 14,779
20t6 12,375
2017 12,406
2018 and thereafier 21,183

598.327

'he above table includes all rental payments we are obhgated to pay under non-cancelable operating leases for office space
I hese payments exclude amounts we expect to collect through subleascs or contract termialions as a result of our restructuring
efforts

We recorded rental eapense recorded for the years ended December 31,2012 2011 and 2010 of $11 7 million, $11 3 milhon
and$13 1 milhon respectinely These amounts exclude any leases included mn the restructuring activities and discontinued operations

Other Commitments

W arc subject to potenttal hability under varnious other exposures including tax, nenrecourse loans self-insurance, and other
miscellaneous contingencies  We establish reserves for these contingencies when the item becomes probable and the costs can be
reasonably estimated  1he actual costs of resolving these items may be substantially hagher or lower than the amounts reserved for
any one tem Ulumately all clamms are subject o resolution through the Bankruptey Court process
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24. Related Party Transactions

Balance Sheet

A summary of the balance sheet ¢ffect of our ransactions with Ally Inc  Ally Bank and other affiliates were as follows

Decermber 31, (§ in thousands) 2012 2011
Assels
Mortgage loans held-for=sale ~— purchased from Ally Bank §35,008 $13,518
Other Assets
Restricted cash deposits — Ally Bank 28,795 112,458
Denvaine collateral placed — Ally IM 10,000 1 008,262
I air value of derivative instruments
MSR swap — Ally Bank —_ 17,681
MMLPSA and forward flow agreement — Ally Bank 617 16,423
Receivable (Pay able), net — Ally Bank 34,600 21 001)
Receivable from other affihates 1,920 2,046
Receivable (Payable) — Allv Inc (a) 7 (31,01%9)
Liabilities
Borrowings — Ally Inc Semor Secured Credit Facility (b) 5749034 $757 767
Borrowings — Ally LOC (b) 380,970 185 064
Borrowmgs — BMMZ Repe (b) — 250,351
Borrowings — Ally DIP (b} 190,208 —
Borrowngs — Ally [nc Data Center (b) 6,000 —
Other Liabihities
Liabihty for loans sold with recourse — Ally Bank (c) _ 6,773
Fair value of denvative instruments — Ally IM (d) 197 1,049 420
Other activity
L.oans (UPB) sub-serviced — Ally Bank $130,323,671 $143,172,634
Servicing escrow/deposuts for off-balance sheet loans — Ally Bank 1,942,051 2,003,745
Mortgage loans held-tor-sale — contributions from Ally Inc (¢) 550,185 () 645,357
Home Equity loans (UPB) subject to indemmificaions — Ally Bank (c) — 58,512
Income tax payments — Ally Inc (g) 394 37,498

(a) Includes costs for personnel information technology, communtcations, corporate marketing, procurement and services related to faciliies
incurred by Ally In¢ and allocated 1o us  On Mav [3 2012, we entered into a shared services agreement with Ally Inc 1n connection with
services provided by us to Allv Inc and services provided by Ally Inc to us

(b} Includes principal balance of debt outstanding plus accrued interest  See Note 11 — Borrowings for additional tnformation

(¢) Relates to an indemmification agreement with respect to a porifolio of sccond hien home equity loans  This agreement expired 1n Apnil 2012

(d} Includes the fair value of forwards, TBAs and swaptions execuied 10 connection with our hedgmng activities  See Note 21 -— Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Acuvites for addinonal mformatron

(e) Amount represents the carrying value of the loans coninbuted bv Ally Inc to us in 2009 The UPB of these loans 15 $1 3 bilhion and $1 6
billion at December 31, 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

(f)  Includes $545 8 milhon of mortgage loans held-for-sale classified as held-for-sale operations

(g) See Note 18 — Income taxes for additional information
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

A summary of the income statement cffect of our ransactuions with Ally Inc , Alls Bank and other affiliates were as follows

Year ended December 31, (5 i1 thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Net financing revenue

[nterest income on cash deposits — Ally Bank 5438 51,104 31 267

[nterest expense — Ally Inc Sentor Sceured Credu Facilny 22,765 23,739 35.864

[nterest expense — Ally LOC 10,807 16,406 7358

[nterest expense — BMMZ Repo 4,729 331 —

Interest expense — Ally DIP 5110 - —

Interest expense — Ally Bank 420 4,022 —

Amorusation of deferred 1ssuance costs — Ally Inc — — 3.044

Other revenue

Ga (loss) on mortgage loans, net — denvative mstruments with Ally 1M (136,389) (68,288) 10 281

Gain (loss) on mortgage loans, net — Ally Bank {56,767) 189 %02 (70,058)

Gan on mortgage loans, net — Ally Sccunties, LLC (¢) — 174 968 79,101

Servicing fees — Ally Bank 78,722 34,895 24,060

Servicing assets valuation and hedge activitees, net — denvativ ¢ instruments

with Ally IM 160,600 172,819 97,260

Servicing asscts valuation and hedge activities net — denvative instruments

with Ally Bank (108,948) (359 523) 469,945

l.oan brokerage fecs — Ally Bank (a) 184,214 55,622 64,543

Provision expense — Ally Bank (b) (5,984) 2,868 7.657

Noninterest expense

Mortgage fincs and penaltics - Ally Bank 87,767 — —

(Gam) loss on foreign currency — denvauve instruments with Adly [no {3,264) 21,021 (948)

Shared services agreement fees, net — Ally Inc 94,012 69,714 93,263

Custodial fees — Ally Bank 7.298 7,732 7519

Allocated expenses — Ally Bank 92 452 691

Other activity

Loans purchased (UPB) under the MMLPSA — Ally Bank {d} S12881,041  $56,680 164 $66310743

Loans sold (UPB) under the Chent Agreement — Ally Bank 246,619 27041 94,811

(a) Under the terms of a broker agreement with Allv Bank, we provide loan processing services to support Allv’s loan origination and purchase
activities as well as loan closing services

(b) Relates to provision expenses associaled with the indemmfication agreement with respect o a portfolio of second lten home equity loans This
agreement expired n Apnl 2012

{c) Relates to mortgage and asset-backed secunties brokered to Ally Secunnies, LLC for underwnting distribution and capital markets hquidity
service

(d) Includ:ssrcpurchased loansof$4 Omilhon $1t 7mitlion and $19 8 milhon ferthe y ear ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectivels
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Statement of Changes i Equity

A summary of the cquity effect of our transactions with Ally Inc  Ally Bank and other aflihiates were as lollows

Year ended December 31, (5 i thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Equity
Capital contributions $322,186 $109,405 §—

Durning the vear ended December 31 2012 capital contributions from Ally Inc were recogmsed for $125 7 milhion for the
transfer of the hability for representation and warranty obligations to Ally Bank and for $196 5 militon through the forgincness of
Ally Inc LOC borrowings During the year cnded December 31, 2011 a capital contribution from Ally Inc was recognized tor
$109 4 million through the forgiveness of Ally Inc LOC borrowings

Ally Inc.

We have a shared services agreement whereby we provide services o Ally Inc and Ally Inc provides services to us  The
sharcd services agreement was approved by the Bankruptey Court as part of the Dcebiors' first day motiens These scrvices are
described i vanous statements of work (SOWSs) and relaw to core functional arcas including bul net inuted 0 finance, audit,
treasury, nisk, comphance, legal, information icchnologs, and markcting  We compensate Ally Inc for services provided (o us based
upon an agreed upon menthly charge We charge Ally Inc tor survices we provide to them based upon an agreed upon monthly
charge The individual services provided under the SOWs can be terminated by the reciprent in whole or in part with 90 days writien
notice, subject to the supplier of the service providing termination assistance services for an additional period of tme if requested
by the recipient Termination assistance services may also be requested by the recipient under those circumstances  Priorto executing
the shared services agreement, we reimbursed Ally Inc for costs they incurred on our behalf, including for persennel, information
technology, communtcations, corporate marketing, procurement and services related to facilittes  The shared services agreement
ongnally would have expured May 14, 2013, unless terminated earlier or extended The agreement was amended on February 14
2013, to automatically renew for six month perieds unless notice 15 provided by etther party at least three months prior to the end
of the then current term No such notice has been provided to date

Ally Bank

Under the terms ol our Broker Agreement with Ally Bank, we act i a broker capacity and provide loan processing services to
Ally Bank to support its origination and purchase of loans, as well asloan ¢losmng services  The Broker Agreement has no mandaiony
cxpiration date and can be terminated by cither party with 30 days notice  Under the terms of the Broker Agreement, loans meeting
the undersnting standards of Ally Bank are ongmated (funded) by Ally Bank, while loans not mecting those standards may be
ongmated by us and sold dircctly nto the secondary market We also provide certam representations and warranties and
mdemnifications to Ally Bank with respect to brokered loans  The Broker Agreement was amended April 30, 2012 and became
effccuve May 1, 2012

Under the terms of the MMLPSA with Ally Bank we purchased first- and sccond-lien mortgage 1oans held-for-sale from Ally
Bank Woe sold and delivered such mortgage loans into the secondary market primarnly through Fannte Mae and Freddie Mac
securitizations and Ginnic Mae insured securttizations  Under the MMLPSA we purchased loans from Ally Bank and recogmi zed
gans or losses on the sale of mortgage loans as they were sold by us into the secondary market Loans purchased by us pursuant
to the MMLPSA included mortgage loans originated by third parties and purchased by Ally Bank (correspondent lending) loans
onginated directly by Ally Bank and morigage loans onginated by us and sold to Ally Bank pursuant to a loan sale agreement (the
Client Agreement) Eftective May 1,2012, the MMLPSA and Client Agreement were amended and restated (Amended MMLPSA)
Under the terms of the Amended MMLPSA | effective May 1 2012, we arc obligated to purchase all FHA msured and VA guaranteed
loans eligthle for inclusion in Ginmie Mae securinizations engmated or purchased by Ally Bank  We no longer purchase Fannie Mac
and 'reddie Mac eligibie loans that Allv Bank originates or purchases Loans are purchased under the Amended MMLPSA on a
nonrecourse, service released basis  To the cxtent any loan purchased by us under the Amended MMLPSA 1s determined to be
incligible for purposes of Ginmie Mae certification, Ally Bank will cure the defect, 1f curable, or repurchase the loan at the current
unpaid principal balance plus accrued interest  Qur commument to purchase mortgage loans pursuant to thal agreement ferminated
upen the closing of our servicing platform sale on I'ebruary 15, 2013 except with respect to the remaining pipeline of mortgage
loans that Ally Bank had committed to a borrower, prior to February 15 2013 to onginate, but whuch had not vet been ongmartcd
as of such date

We were counterparty to a forward flow agreement for mortgage loans held-for-sale and interest rate loch commitments held
by Ally Bank that uvitimately were sold (o us under the MMLPSA  The forward (tow agreement transterred the exposure to changes
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n fair value of Ally Bank's mortgage loans held-for-sale and interest rate lock commitments to us  We hedged our exposure to the
forward flow agreement consistent with the hedging of our own mortgage loans held-for-sale and interest rate lock commitments
The forward flow agreement was terminated eflecuve Apnil 30, 2012

We were counterparty 10 2 MSR Tolal Return Swap (the MSR Swap) which iransferred the total economic return of MSRs
owned by Ally Bank to us i exchange for a vaniable payment based wpon a fixed spread to LIBOR  The fixed spread to LIBOR
was pentodically evaluated against available market data We hedged our exposurc to the MSR Swap consisient with the hedging
of our own MSRs ['he MSR Swap was terminated effective Apnil 30, 2012 We were party to an ISDA 2002 Master Agreemenl
with Ally Bank governing the forward flow agreement and MSR Swap We also entered 1nto an Agreement te Set Off Obligations
(the Netting Agreement) which provided Ally Bank the night, but not the obligation o set off any obligation that we had to Ally
Bank against any ocbhigauon of Ally Bank to us  The ISDA 2002 Master Agreement and the Netung Agreement were termnated
effectne Apnl 30, 2012

Under the GSE servicer guides, the scller and servicer of mortgage loans equally share in customary representation and warranty
obligauons  We assumed all of the represemtauion and warranty obhigations for loans we purchased from Ally Bank under the
MMI.PSA that we subsequently sold through a GSE securitization or otherwise sold mnto the secondary market  lo the extent these
loans were onginated by third parties and purchased by Ally Bank and subsequently sold to us under the MMLPSA we pursuc
recovery of losses lrom the third parties under breach ot customary representation and warranties  Pursuant to the Client Agreement,
we also provide curtain representations and warranttes and indemnifications 1o Ally Bank with respect to those loan transactions
For loans that are not eligible to be sold to the GGSEs that reach cenain delinquency thresholds or which are otherwise in breach of
sale representations and warranties contained tn the Client Agreement, we repurchase loans from Ally Bank at thoir carrying cost
In connection with the termination of the MSR Swap, Ally Bank assumed the representation and warranty liability we had recorded
in connection with leans sold by us where Ally Bank retamed the MSR - On May 1, 2012, wereduced our representation and warranty
hiability by $125 7 mullion and recorded the offsct to representation and warranty resene expense i our Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income  We simultaneously recognized this liability in the valuation of the MSR Total Return Swap and recorded
the oftset o servicing asset valuation and hedge activitics, net in our Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income  [he MSR
Total Return Swap valuation hability was forgiven, resulting in a capital contnibution of $125 7 million

GMAC Mortgage 1s designated as subservicer for loans held by Ally Bank and foans sold to us under the MMLPSA where
Ally Bank retamed the servicing nghts (Ally Servicing Agreement) On May 11, 2012, we and Ally Bank amended and restated
the Ally Servicmg Agreementeficetive May 25,2012 Underthe Ally Servicing Agreement, GMAC Mortgage performsall customary
mortgage loan servicing actnvines, including but not imited to, collection of borrower remittances loss mitigation and forectosure
processing dactivities The term of the Ally Servicing Agreement automatically renews for a one year term on an annual basis, unless
notice of termnation as provided by either party with 120 days prior notice We receive subservicing lees which are generally based
on the average datly balance of subserviced loans which differ by loan type and delinquency status  Following a heaning on September
11, 2012, the Bankrupicy Court approved the Servicing Agrecment

[n connection with our DOJ Scitlement obligations, Ally Bank agreed in the Ally Servicing Agreement to participate in borrower
relief programs and activities with respect to thur loan portfolios up to a $75 0 milion mdemnification threshold (Indemmificalion
Obligauons) To the extent activities under the borrower rehef programs are consistent with activ ines currently permitted under the
Ally Servicing Agreement, Ally Bank will not suek to be reimbursed or indemmified lor any losses it incurs in connection with these
borrower rehief activities See Note 23 - Commitments Contingencies and Other Risks for addisonal information retated to the DOJ
Settlement

Following a hcaring on September 11, 2012, the Bankruptey Court 1ssued a stipulation and order reserving certain nghts with
respect to our motton for authonizauon o continue to perform under the Ally Scrvicing Agrecment in the ordinary course of busimess
That supulation and order authonsed and directed us 1o conuinue to perform and make all pavments due to Ally Bank under the Ally
Servicing Agreement, including Indemmification Obligations and any past due payments related thereto  The stipulation and order
required Ally Bank to withdraw any exisung notice of default and confirm that the exisung default has been cured, and granied to
Ally Bank himuted rehief from the automatic stay in order to (1) provide the 120 day notice to termmate the Ally Servicing Agreement
with respect to certain home equity hines of credit and approximately 8 300 consumer mortgage loans, and {1} provide notice of
termination of the Ally Servicing Agreement in s entirety on the carhiest of en davs after the eniny of a court approved platform
sale order or December 10, 2012 Effective wath the closing of the Secuion 363 Assct Sale to Ocwen in February 2043, Ocwen
commenced performung the pnmary servicing acuvities under the Ally Sen icing Agreement on our behall as the subservicer under
the Estate Senvicing Agreement  See Note 8 - Senvicing Activities

The stipulation and order also requires Ally Inc 10 establish an escrow account and deposit funds therein simultaneously with
and 11 amounts ¢qual o, all posti-pention mdemmificauon payments made by us to Ally Bank with respect to Indemmification
Obligations The escrow account 1s sebject to the exclusive yjunisdichion of the Bankruptey Court and will reman 1n place and
continue to be funded until the carhier of (a) an agreement among ResCap the unsecured creditors committee and Ally Inc as 1o the
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proper allocation and disbursement of the funds in the account and (b) the effective date of a Chapter 11 plan that includes a provision
directing the distribution ofthe funds in the account At December31 2012, we had made $87 7 million m Indemnification Obligation
payments to Ally Bank

In the first quarter of 2008 Ally Bank purchased a portfolio of second-hen home equity loans from us We provided an
ndemnification to Ally Bank whereby we reimburse Ally Bank at such ime as any of the loans covered by this agreement are
charged off, typically when the loan becomes 180 days delinquent The mdemmification expired in Aprd 2012

25. Regulatory Matters

Certamn subsidiaries associated with our mortgage and real estate operations are required to mamiam regulatory net worth
requirements  Fatlure to nteet muimimum capital requirements can mitiate curtain mandatory actions by federal, state, and foreign
agencies that can have a matenial eflect on our results of operattons and financial condinon  As of December 31 2012, GMAC
Mortgage faillcd to meet certain of its financial covenants  There were no actions taken with respect to these deficiencies We believe
that any such action(s) as a result of non-complance with these requirements would be subject to the automatic stay under our
Chapter 11 Cases See Note 11 - Borrowings for addinonal mformation

26. Subsequent Events

Events subsequent to December 31,2012, were evaluated through Apnl 19,2013, the date on which these Consolidated Financial
Statements were 1ssued
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Supplemental Schedule Consolidating Financial Statement Information

regulatory and hcensing requirements

These Consolidating Financial Statements are being provided in connecuion with reporung required 1 connection with our

accompanymng Consohidated [Mnancial Statements

(a)
(©

Consolidating Balance Sheet

These Consolidating Financial Statements are presented on the same basis as the

GMAC Elimmations
Morigage REC and ResCap
December 31, 2012 (3 1 thousands) Consoldated  Consohdated Other reclassificatio  Consohdated
Assets o
Cash and cash equivalenrs §248.821 $£197,630 51,183,762 S— $1,630,213
Morigage loans heid-for—sale 335,465 8,655 — —_ 344,120
Finance receivables and loans, net
Consumer 124,871 469,923 — _— 594,794
Commercial — 134 — — 134
Allowance for loan losses (7,453) — — — {7,453)
[olal finance recervables and loans,
nct 117,418 470,057 — — 587,475
Accounts receivable, net 998,983 21,089 38,440 (38,412) 1,020,100
Recevable from Affihates 125,642 (a) 1,845,876 (b) 115,369 (¢) (2.086,887) —
Other assets 835,733 741,620 7,172,887 (8,478,722) 271,518
Assets of held-for-sale operations 5,429,870 1,320,416 (2,800} 111,184 6,858,670
Total assets £8,091,932 $4,605,343 $8,507,658 (810,492.837)  S10,712,096
Liabalities
Liabilities not subject to compromise
Borrowings
Debtor-m-possession credit tacilitivs $945,354 $304,000 §— §— $1,449,354
Botrow mgs from Affihates 856,465 279,641 3,172,356 (3,175,334) 1,133,128
Collateralized borrowings in
sccuritizaton rusts — 447,723 — 447,723
Other borrowings 284,844 — (2,612) — 282,232
Total borrowings 2,086,663 1,231,364 3,169,744 (3,175,334) 3,312,437
Other habilities 652,317 209,326 1,309,051 {1,443,632) 727,062
Liabihues of held-for-sale operatons 2,646,429 139,776 —_ 5.779) 2,780,426
Total iablities not subject to
compromise 5,385,409 1,580,466 4,478,795 (4,624,745) 60,819.925
Liabthties subject to compromise 509,447 450,207 5,409,568 (2,154,007) 4,215,215
Total habilitics 5,894,856 2,030,673 9,888,363 (6,778,752) 11,035,140
Equty
Member’s interest 5,694,152 14,959,295 15,451,168 {24,378,653) 11,755,962
Accumulated (deficit) earmings (3,456,095) (12,390,056) (16,779,920) 20,588,035 (12,038,036)
Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) (40,981) 5431 {81,953) 76,533 (40,970)
Total equity 2,197,076 2,574,670 (1,380,705) (3.714,0853) (323,049)
Total habilities and cquity $8.091,932 84,605,343 $£8,507,658 (510,492,837)  §$10,712,096

Receivable from immediate parent, GMAC Residenual Holdings LILLC
(b} Recervable from ultimate parent, Residential Capial LEC
Receivable 1s with Restdenual Funding Compamy LLC
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Consohdating Statement of Comprehensive Income

GMAC Ehminations
Mortgage RFC und ResCap
Year ended December 31, (3 in thousands) Consolidated Consohidated Other reclassificatt Consohdated
Revenue o
[nterest income 568,310 $226,134 $124,851 ($123,959) 5£295,336
Interest expense 104,470 111,841 181,942 (123,847} 274,406
Net financing revenuc (36,160) 114,293 {57,091) (112) 20,930
Other revenue
Servicing fees 652418 93,297 (422) 745,293
Servicing asset valuatton and hedge activiiies
net (299,752) (27,322) — (327,074
lotal senvicing ingome, net 352,666 65,975 — {422) 418,219
Gain on mortgage loans, net 216,620 32,477 — 423 249,520
Gamn on foreclosed real cstate 647 8,301 — 1 8,949
Other revenue, net 224,806 12,606 (1,317,361) 1,264,168 184,219
Total other revenue 794,739 119,359 (1,317.361) 1,264,170 860,907
I otal net revenue 758,579 233,652 {1,374,452) 1,264,058 881,837
Provision for loan losses 1,465 (2,758) —_ — {1,293)
Nomnterest expense
Compensation and bencfits x 435,522 37,487 1 1 473,011
Professional fees x 152,959 (4,312) 32,798 — 181,445
[ata processing and telecommunications x 67,475 198 93 — 67,766
Occupancy ¥ 19,895 499 26 — 20,420
Executory contract cure costs x 231,413 19 —_ —_ 231,452
Mortgage fines and penalties x 86,722 — — -— 86,722
Represcntation and warranty expense, net x (102,023} 1,408 — 27,869 (72,749)
Other noninterest expense, net 482,329 15,120 12,432 (120.600) 389,281
Total noninterest expnse 1,374,292 50,436 45,350 (92,730) 1,377,348
Income (loss) from continuing operatwns
before reorganization items and income
taxes (617,178) 185,974 (1,419,802} 1,356,788 (494,218)
Reorganization ilems 47,933 25,915 211,219 1 285,068
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes (665,111) 160,059 (1,631,021} 1,356,787 (779,.286)
Income 1ax (benefit) expensc (2,108) 91,014 (93,031} —_ (4,122)
Net inecome (loss) frem continuing operations {663,0006) 69,045 (1,537,990) 1,356,787 (775,164)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax —_ 16,688 — — 16,688
Net income (loss) (663,006) 85,733 (1,537,990} 1,356,787 (758,476)
Other comprehensive income {loss) net of tax 17,903 3,106 38,797 (38.910) 20,890
Comprchensive income (loss) (5645,103) $88.839  (51,499,193) S§1,317,877 ($737,580)
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Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

GMAC Elmmations
Mortgage RFC and ResCap
Year ended December 31, ($n thousands) Consolidated Consohdated Other reclassification  Consohdated
Operating actnvilies ;
Net income (loss) ($663,006) 585,733 (51,537,990) 51,356,787 (8758,476)
Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in} operating actvities
Depreciation and amortization 18,230 3,366 3,065 3y 25,07t
Accretton of deferred concession on secured
notes — — (38,308) — (38,308)
Provision for loan losses 1,465 (2,865} — — (1,400}
Gain on moertgage loans net {216,620} (32,477) — (423) (249,520)
Reorgamization items 12,402 1,226 66,951 — 81,579
Net gain on other assets (3,622) (6,052) — — {9,674)
(Gamn) loss on extingwmshment of debt — (52,824) — 52,824 —
Oniginations and purchases of mortgage loans held—
for-sale (15,844,965) (13,511) — — (15,858,476)
Proceeds from sales and repay ments of mortgage
loans held-for-sale 15,412,152 111,927 — — 15,224,079
Change 1n fair value of mertgage servicing nghts 413,335 27,322 — — 440,657
Net change in
Accounts receivable 1,102,232 (30,579) (36,978) 37,753 1,072,428
Recervable from affiliate 125,642 947 (68,723 (57,866) —
(ther assels 2,654,372 (924,560) 757,775 550,119 3,037,706
Other Liabilitiey {3,108,503) 302,405 1,674,694 (1,800,732) (2,932,136)
Net cash provided by (used in} by operating {396,866) (528,942) 820,486 138,852 33,530
= _AaCIIynes
Invesfing activities
Net decrease in commercial finance receivables and
loans — 2,073 — — 2,073
Net decrease 1 consumer mortgage finance
receivables and loans 92,177 288,833 — — 381,010
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed and owned real
estate 14,050 43,035 — —_ 57,085
Sale of business units net — (80,896) — — (80,896)
Net decrease 1n restricted cash 231,951 3142 1,869 — 236,962
Other net 23,170 39,307 (8,482) 8,487 62,482
Net cash provided by investing activities 361,348 295,494 (6,613) 8,487 658,716
Financing activities
Net decrease in borrowings from Affiliates 231,549 (235,814) 153,416 (8,887) 140,264
Net (decrease) increase in borrowings from Parent (17,614) — 110,220 {92,606) —
Repavments of collaterahized berrowmgs 1n
securntizangn trusts {28,975) {276,952) — — (305,927)
Proceeds from debtor-in-possession credit facihities 945,354 504,000 —_ —_ 1,449,354
Proceeds from other borrowings 1,144,557 24 (5,738) — 1,138,843
Repayments of other borrowings {2,107.835) 52,259 — (53,212} {2.108,788)
Net cash provided by (used 1n) financing activities 167,036 43,517 257,898 (154,705} 313,746
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash
and cash equivatents — (4,323) 2,479 7,366 5,522
Net increase 1n cash and cash equivalents 131,518 (194,254) 1,074,250 — 1,011,514
Cash and cash equivalents at Januars 1 117,303 391,884 109,512 — 618,699
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, $248,821 $197,630 §1,183,762 S— 51,630,213
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